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About us

A strong and resilient business mix

/Support services

In this segment we report the results of our faclities
management, facilities services, rail services, road
mantenance, utility services and consultancy businesses

Underlying
operating profit

£117.7m
+4%

N

£m 2009 2008
Order book Total revenue 2,3895 24635
£1 1 1 bn Total underlying operating profit 1177 1135
Total reported operating profit 906 645
/l\/hddle East construction services )
In this segment we report the results of our building
and awil engineering activities in the Middle East and
North Africa
Underlying
operating profit
£47.0m
0
+36%
fm 2009 2008
Ord & Total revenue 5536 464 2
£ (r)e%)(g n Total underlying operating profi™ 470 345
) Total reported operating profit 470 345

Top - In 2009 a Canlhon-led joint Venture won a £1 0 billion, 7-year contract 1o provide asse1 management
and maintenance services for Openreach, BT's local access network business

Bottom —In 2009 Al Fuitaim Canllion completed the £350 million Yas Hotel which forms the centre piece
of Abu Dhabi's new Formula 1 Grand Prix Circuit, which hosted its first Formula 1 race in November 2009

(1) Before intangible amarusation impairment of other investments
and non recurring operayng items




(p

ublic Private Partnership projects

In this segment we report the equity returns from our
investments in Public Private Partnership projects

Underlying
operating profit

£32.2m
+8%

Order book

£2.4bn
N

£m 2009 2008
Total revenue 2156 178 4
Total underlying operating profit® 322 298
Total reported operating profit 322 177

/Constructlon Services
(excluding the Middle East)

with those of our construction actvities in Canada and
the Canbbean

Underiying
operating profit

£30.9m
+8%

Order book

£3.5bn

.

In this segment we report the results of our UK building,
<l engineening and developments businesses together

fm 2009 2008
Total revenue 2.2678 20997
Total underlying operating profi®” 309 287
Total reported operating profit{loss) 129 37

)

Top —In 2009, a Canllion Joint Venture was awarded a 30-year concession contract to finance, design, build and mamtain the Centre

for Addiction and Mental Health in Toronto Canada ndluding £157 milkon of construction and hife-cycle masntenance services
Bottom - Canlhon 15 bullding the £340 mullion Media Centre for the 2012 London Olympic Games that wall be hame to around

20 000 broadcasters journahsts and photographers dunng the Games




About us

Carillion is a leading
support services company,
delivering integrated
solutions for buildings,
infrastructure and services.
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Another year of strong

earnings growth, +14%

Financial highhghts

)

Operational highlights

Total revenue
2008 £5 2bn +4%

£5.4bn

Net cash/{borrowing)
2008 £{226 Tm)

£24.9m

Underlying profit before tax™
2008 £157 5m +16%

£182.2m

Underlying earnings per share™®
2008 34 3p +14%

39.0p

Reported profit before tax
2008 £1159m +27%

£147.7m

Reported earnings per share
2008 28 4p +18%

33.4p

Total dividend
2008 13 0p +12%

14.6p

Crder book
2008 £204bn-13%

£17.7bn

> Underlying earnings per share up 14% and dwidend up 12%
- continues strong compound annual growth rates in underlying
earnings and dividend over last five years of 15% and 14%, respectively

> Improved total Group operating margin of 4 0% (2008 3 7%)
- support services operating margin increased to 4 9% (2008 4 6%)
with support services making the largest contribution to total underlying
operating profit of 52%

> Strong balance sheet and cash flow - cash flow from operations
of £268 2 million {2008 £198 3 milllon) with net cash of £24 9 million
(31 December 2008 net borrowing £226 7 million)

> Disposed of two non-core businesses, external IT services and
Enwiros, and outsourced internal IT services — generating cash
proceeds of £102 4 milion

> Equity investments in Public Pnivate Partnership (PPP) projects
continue to generate substantial value - the sale of four
investments in 2009 generated proceeds of £100 7 millien

> Middle East construction services continued to perform strongly
— contributed 21% of total underlying operating profit at an improved
operating margin of 8 5% (2008 7 4%} following successful expansion
into Abu Dhab: and a strong performance in Oman

> Construction services (excluding the Middle East) performed
satisfactorily — contributed 13% of total underlying operating profit at
a stable margin of 1 4%

> Stable high-quality order book of some £17 7 billion
{2008 £20 4 billion) - movement in order book due to PPP equity sales
and non-core business disposals, excellent prpeline of probable orders
and contract opportunities

Total revenue
by business segment

Underlying operating profit™®

Reported operating profit

by business segment

by business segment

£5 4bn
+49%"

Support services
W £2,389 5m (2008 £2,463 5m)

£227.8m
+10%"

Support services
W £117 7m (2008 £113 5m)

£1827m
+62%"

Support services
W £90 6m (2008 £64 5m)

Public Private Partnership projects
W £215 6m (2008 £178 4m)

Public Private Partnership projects
M£32 2m (2008 £29 8m)

Public Private Partnership projects
M £32 Zm {2008 £17 7m)

Middle East construction services
M £553 6m (2008 £464 2m)

Middle East construction services
W £47 0m (2008 £34 5m)

Middie East construction services
B £47 0m (2008 £34 5m)

Construction services {excluding the Middle East)

M £2,267 8Bm (2008 £2,099 7m)

Construction services (excluding the Middle East}

W £30 9m (2008 £28 Tm)

Construction serwces (excluding the Middle East)
B £12 9m (2008 £(3 7)m)

(1) After Joint Ventures taxation of £6 5 midlion (2008 £10 7 milkon) and before intangible amortisation impairment of other

Investments non recurring operating items and non-operatng iems

(2) Before intangible amortisation impairment of other iInvestments non recurnng cperatng items and non-operating items
(3) Before Group eliminatons and unallocated 1tems of £10 5 million (2008 £12 4 million) share of jaintly controlled

entities net financial expense and taxation and non recurring operating tems

{4) Growth on 2008

Caritlion ple 0 1
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what we do

Our operations

Carnllion has annual revenue of
over £5 billion, employs around
50,000 people and operates
across the UK, in the Middle East
and North Africa, Canada and

the Carbbean.

Underlying operating profit

Support services

£117.7m”

Public Private
Partnership

projects
£32 2m®
Middle East
canstruction services
{1
Construction £470m

Services (excluding
the Middle East)

£309m"

UK

Operations
Support services

Public Private Partnership projects

Construction services

Revenue

Market sectors

£4,320.9m"

{1} Before ntangible amartisation non-recurring operating items

and non operating items

{2} tncludes £79 7 milhon of revenue generated outside of the UK
Middle East and North Afnca and Canada and the Canbbean

O 2 Carillion plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2009

2009

80%

of total revenue

>

v

v

v

We provide all the faalities
management maintenance and
other services needed to keep
buildings particularly large,
complex property estates, fully
operatignal for pubhec and
private sector customers

We also provide asset
management and maintenance
services for road and raitway
infrastructure and for utilities,
including telecommunications,
water, electricity and gas

We deliver Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects for
schaols hospitals prisons,
defence and other government
accommedation and also for
roads and railways

Woe have a strong and selective
construction services capability
which plays a key role in
provtding mtegrated solutions
far PPP projects and for our
SUPpPOrt services customers




Middle East and North Africa

Operations
Support services
Construction services

Revenue

Market sectors

Canada and the Caribbean

Operations

Support services

Public Private Partnership projects
Construction services

Revenue Market sectors

£564.4m

2009

10%

of total reverue

> We have nearly 40 years
expenence of operating in
the Meddle East with
well-established foint Venture
businesses in the United Arab
Emirates Oman and Egypt
providing consiruction services
for buildings and infrastructure

» These businesses have built
market-leading reputations
for delvering high quality
projects tor a small number
of long-term, financially
robust customers

> We also have a Joini Venture
business in the United Arab
Ermirates that provides facilities
management services, primarndy
tor the builldings we construct

> In 2010 we established a new
business in Qatar focussed on
the construction of major
infrastructure projects

£541.2m

> We have operated in Canada
and the Canbbean for over 40
years, delivering a wide range of

construction services for pubhc
and private sector customers

> An Increasing propertion of
our consiruciion and support
2009 services work in Canada
1 O% notably in Ontano relates to
Publi Private Partnership {PPF)
projects for which Canltion
has built a market-leading
reputation, especially in the
health sector

of wtal revenue

> We have also established
leading positions in the road
maintenance markets of
Ontano and Alberta, where
we have long-term contracts
1o manage and maintain
substantial lengths of the
Provincial highway network

Cartllion ple O 3
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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What we do

Support services

We are one of the UK’s largest
support services companies

with the skills and resources to
provide all the services needed to
manage, maintain and operate
bulldings and infrastructure.

Underlying
operating profit

£117.7/m

Canllton plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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Having the abihity to
combine these services and
use leading-edge technology
to provide customers with
fully integrated, nationwide
solutions 1s a key strength
that helps to differentiate
Carillion from many of our
competitors

The long-term contracts we
have - some of them for
more than 30 years - to
deliver services for hundreds
of thousands of buildings,
over 17,000 km of roads and
substantial sections of the
UK rail and utility networks,
provide good visibility of
future revenues and make

a major contribution to the
resilience of our business mix

© fachties management
Our facihties management
business prowvides an extensive
range of services, notably
Integrated solutions for blue-
chip private sector customers
with large, complex property
estates We have strong
positions in a number of market
sectors, particularly for
customers in the financial
services, commercial, utilities,
media and telecommunications
sectors For example, we
provide integrated facilities
management services for over
7,000 BT properties in the

UK, for Virgin Media, Phtlips,
Siemens, Deutsche Bank, Bank
of Iretand and the Nationwide
Bullding Society

© Government services

In the UK, we are a major
supplier of integrated facilities
management services to
central and local government
departments For example,

{1) Before intangible amorusation non recurnng cperating items

and non-operating items




we are the leading supplier io
Defence Estates and to acute
NHS hospitals We also provide
faclities management services
for the HM Revenue and
Customs estate and we have

a growing presence in the
education sector, as a leading
supplier to the Building Schools
for the Future programme In
Canada, we have a growing
business, driven by our success
in winning Pubhc Private
Partnership projects, especially
in the health sector, for which
we provide facilities
management services

© Planned Maintenance
Carilhon Planned Maintenance
1s one of the top three supphers
of mechanical and electnical
engineering {(M&E} services in
the UK As well as providing

M&E services direct to its

own extensive customer base,
Planned Maintenance plays a
key role in supporting our
facihities management and
government services businesses,
because M&E services form a
substantial part of the
integrated facilities
management contracts we have
for public and private sector
customers These mclude Public
Private Partnership projects,
such as the UK Government
Communications Headguarters,
for which Planned Maintenance
delvers M&E maintenance
services

O Infrastructure services

We have long-term asset
management and maintenance
contracts for roads, railways and
public utility services networks
in the UK, we are a leading
supplier to the Highways
Agency, prowiding integrated

management and maintenance
services for motorways and
trunk roads and we provide
similar services for a number

of Local Highway Authorrties
In Canada, we have market-
leading positions in the Ontario
and Alberta road maintenance
markets In the raill sector, our
main customers are Network
Rail and Transport for London,
for whom we recently secured
a seven-year contract to
maintain the East London Line
We also provide a wide range
of support services to the
telecommunications, water, gas
and electnicity supply industries
We significantly strengthened
our position i the

Support Services
© BT Tower London
€ Great Western Hospital Swandon

telecommunmications sector in
2009, when a Canlhon-led Joint
Venture secured a £1 0 billion,
seven-year contract to provide
nationwide asset management
and masntenance services for
Openreach, BT's local access
network business

© Consulting

Our consultancy business
provides engineering and
architectural design and project
management services This
business has a high-quality
customer base and a strong
track record on high-profite
projects, such as Heathrow
Terminal 5 Our consultancy
business uses its specalist
capabilities to support other
Carillion businesses by providing
the design services they need
in order to deliver integrated
solutions for bulldings and
infrastructure, notably Public
Private Partnershup projects

© Governmeni Communications Headquarters Cheltenham
© Management and maintenance serices for Openreach
5]

Landon Heathrow Terminal 5

Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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What we do

Public Private
Partnership projects

We are a leader in Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects, both

in the UK and in Canada. PPP
projects use private sector finance
to deliver a wide range of asset-
based services for central and
local government.

Underlying
operating profit

£32 2m®

O 6 Canllion ple
Annual Repart and Accounts 2009

Our specialist private finance
team arranges finance for
these projects in which we
make equity investments

on which we target a

15 per cent internal rate of
return over the life of the
concession contract, which (s
typically between 25 and 35
years To date, Canllion has
won concession contracts for
over 50 PPP projects

Once the construction phase
1s complete and the project
has moved successfully into
the operational phase, we
have the option of selling
our equity investments and
reinvesting the proceeds in
new projects To date we
have sold investments in

28 projects, generating
proceeds of some £280
million and a pre-tax profit
of £106 million

© UK - education

Carillion has a strong track
record in the education sector
We have delivered, or are in the
process of delivering, over 140
new schools, most of which
form part of the UK
Government’s £65 bition
Building Schools for the Future
(BSF) programme, which 1s
being partly funded by private
finance We are one of the
leading suppliers to the national
BSF programme, having been
awarded contracts for BSF
programmes i Durham,
Gateshead, Notungham,
Rochdale, South Tyneside and
Tameside The BSF programme
also encompasses the delivery
of the Academy schools
programme for which Cariflion
has been selected by the UK
Government as a framework
supplier

{1) Belore intangble amerisation non-recurmnng opesating items

and non-operaung items.




O UK - health

As a leader in the development
of PPP projects since therr
incephion in the early 1990s,
we delivered the UK's first PPP
hospital in 1997, the Darent
Valley Hospital, in Kent Since
then, we have maintained a
leading position in the health
sector of the UK PPP market To
date, we have secured contracts
for 20 PPP hospitals and other
healthcare facilities, of which

15 are in the UK We have sold
our equity mvestments in eight
hospital projects, but continue
to provide facilities management
services for these hospitals

The construction phase of

the new Queen Alexandra
Hospital in Portsmouth will be
completed in 2010 and Canllion
15 already providing facilities
management services for both
the old and new hospitals, as
part of the 35-year concession
contract

© UK - defence

Canlon has three major PPP
defence projects for the UK

Ministry of Defence The largest
of these 1s Allenby Connaught, a
35-year concession contract that
commenced in 2006 with a
six-year construction phase to
rebuild Army accommodation
across the South of England
Canllion is also providing
faciliies management services
for the old estate as welt as for
the new accommodation being
built to replace it The other two
projects are the Permanent Joint
Headquarters, Northwood,
construction of which 1s nearing
completion and for which our
faclities management contract
15 already fully operational, and
the Royal School of Military
Engineening, based at Bicester,
Chatham and Minley, on

which construction is due

for completion in 2015

O UK - secure and other
Government accommodation
Carllion delivered the first PPP
prison in the UK, namely HM
Prison Altcourse in Liverpool in
1997, and subsequently three

further pnisons and secure
training centres We have sold
our equity investments n all
these projects, but continue to
be well placed to deliver prisons
under any future PPP investment
programmes Carihon also
built the landmark Government
Communications Headquarters
at Cheltenham, one of the
largest, technically complex and
secure accommodation projects
o be delivered under the PPP
programme in the UK to date

O UK -roads

Carllion delivered one of the
first privately financed road
projects in the UK, namely the
widening of 12 kilometres of
the M40 between its junction
with the M25 and Loudwater,
which was completed 1n 1998
The 30-year PPP concession
contract for this project ako
in¢ludes the management
and maintenance

o

Public Private Partnership projects
© Bigwood School Nottingham

by Canllion of around 123 km of
the M40, between the M25 and
Warwick In total, Canllion has
built six PPP road projects,

for which it continues to prowde
long-term maintenance services,
and sold its equity Investments
in three of these, including the
M40 widening project

© Canada - health

The UK PPP procurement model
has been adopted in Canada
where our well-established
business is a leader in this
market, especially in the health
sector Canllion delivered two
of the first PPP hospitals in
Canada, the Royal Ottawa and
the new Willam Osler Hospital
in Ontario, for which Canllion
also has long-term facilities
management contracts
Currently we have three further
hospital projects under
construction in Ontano, the
Sault Area Hospital, the Royal
Victoria Hospital in Barne and
the Centre for Addiction and
Mental Health in Toronto

€) Queen Alexandra Hospital Portsmouth

© The Allenby Connaught project Sabsbury Plain and Aldershot
O Government Communications Headguarters Cheftenham

© M40 motorway PPP project Buckinghamshire

O Centre for Addiction and Mental Health Toronto Canada

Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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What we do

Middle East
construction services

We have nearly 40 years
experience in the Middle

East, during which time our
businesses In the region have
built an outstanding reputation
for quality and reliability, having
delivered some of the region’s
most prestigious buildings and
infrastructure projects.

Underlying
operating profit

£47 0m®

Canllion plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2009

08

The growth we have
achieved over the last two
years, during which time
revenue and underlying
operating profit have
increased by 64% and 85%,
respectively, has been driven
by our strategy of building
strong relationships with a
small number of selected,
financially robust customers
with long-term investment
programmes, for whom
quality and value for
money are paramount

Geographical diversification,
notably the extension of
our operations into Abu
Dhabi in 2008, has enabled
us to continue to deliver
substantial revenue and
profit growth in the region
desprte the downturn

in Dubai

© Abu Dhabi

We extended the operations |
of Al Futtaim Carillion to Abu
Dhabi at the beginning of 2008
Since then, our business in Abu
Dhabi has grown substantially,
contnbuting 55 per cent of our
total Middle East construction
services revenue in 2008 Our
first project in Abu Dhabi was
the prestigious 500-bedroom
Yas Hote! for Abu Dhabr's
targest developer, ALDAR This
stunning hotel forms the centre
prece of Abu Dhabi's new

{1} Before intangible amorusabon nNEN-recurnng operaung items

and non-operating tems




Formula 1 Grand Prix circuit,
which hosted its first F1 race in
November 2009 Currently, we
are building three more major
projects in Abu Dhaby, the Al
Muneera development for
ALDAR, infrastructure for a new
aluminium smelter for EMAL
and a new headquarters for the
Abu Dhabi Investment Council

© Oman

Our business in Oman, Carllion
Alawt, has a long history of
delivering high-profile projects
to exacting standards, ncluding
the Guest Palace Qas’t Al Alam,

the Grand Mosque and, currently,

the Royal QOpera House, which
15 due for completion in 2010
In 2009, we continued to grow
our business in Oman, which
contributes around 23 per cent
of our Middle East construction
services revenue, and won
further major and prestigious
projects, ncluding the Majlis,

a new parllament building,

the National Museum and the
Muscai Court Complex

© Duba

In Duba, Al Futtaim Carilion
also has an outstanding track
record for delivering high
quality projects, including
Dubai Festial City, Motor City,
the infrastructure works for
world-renowned Bur| Dubal
Development and infrastructure
works for Dubar Alummium
Although our activity levels in
Dubai have reduced significantly
over the last 12 months, from
55 per cent of our Middle East
construction services revenue
in 2008 to 20 per cent in 2009,
we expect our markets to
stabilise in 2010 and to use our
market leadmg reputation to
continue to win high-gquality
projects selectively, for
financially robust customers

Middle East construction services
@ Yas Hotel, Abu Dhaby

® Royal Opera House Oman

© Dubai Festival City

©Q Cairo Festval City

Annual Report and Accounts 2009

O Egypt

Al Futtaim Carilion extended
its operations to Egypt to build
the £2 billien Cairo Festival

City development for our Joint
Venture partner, Al Futtaim In
2009, this project contributed
some iwo per cent of our
Muddle East construction
senvices revenue, but we expect
activity levels on the project to
increase 1n 2010 as further
phases of the Cairo Festval City
development are scheduled to
start during the year

Canllion plc
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What we do

Construction services
{excluding the Middle East)

We have a strong and selective
construction capability in the UK
and in Canada, focused on large,
higher added value contracts for
long-term customers.

Undertying
operating profit

£309m”

Canlhon plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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As well as creating value

in Its own right, a strong
construction capability plays
a key role in driving growth
in Public Private Partnership
(PPP) projects and in support
services Itis fundamental
to our ability to provide
customers with the services
they require, not only to
create, but also to manage
and operate buildings and
infrastructure

Having the capabilities

to offer design and
construction services gives
us a competitive advantage
when It comes to optimising
the whole-life cost of
providing, maintaining and
operating assets such as
schools, hospitals, military
accormnmodation, prisons,
roads and railways - an
essential requirement for
PPP projects

© UX buiithng - education
Our construction capability has
played a key role in establishing
the strong positions we have in
our chosen sectors of the UK
PPP market For example,
Carilhon 1s a leading supplier

to the UK Government's

£65 billion Bullding Schools

for the Future programme,
significant parts of which are
being procured through PPP
projects Combining our design
and construction capabilities
with our private finance and
support services skills, has
already secured contracts for
over 140 schools and academies
where we are creating state-of
the-art learning environments

{1) Before intangible amortisation NON recurnng cperating items

and non-operating iterms




© UK building - health

Our design and construction
capabilities are also
fundamental to our success In
the health sector of the PPP
market Carillon has won
cantracts for 20 PPP hospitals
and other healthcare facilities,
of which 15 are In the UK -
induding the UK's first PPP
hospital, the Darent Valley
Hospital in Kent — and five are
in Canada In December 2009,
we were selected as the
preferred bidder for the new
Southmead Hosprtal in Bristol,
on which we have since
achieved financial close, with
building work on the main
hospital scheduled to begin in
spring 2010

© UK building - defence
Having a strong construction
capability 1s also enhancing the
development of our support

services business in the defence

sector For example, our Public
Private Partnership projects,
such as Allenby Connaught,
where we are rebuilding Army
accommodation across the
South of England, and the
Perrnanent Joint Headquarters
project in North London, both
include long-term support
services contracts Being the
leading suppler of facilties
management and maintenance
services for Defence Estates,
also creates opportunities for
our construction business For
example, at Cattenck Garrison,
one of many Ministry of
Defence locations where we
provide faciitres management
and mamtenance services,

we have carried out extensive
bullding work, induding a
new leisure and sports centre

O UK infrastructure

Our largest sectors of the UK
infrastructure market are roads
and railways Current major

contracts mclude upgrading the

AJn Yorkshire to motorway
standards and upgrading the
Airdrie to Bathgate rail ink,
which forms part of a
programme to improve rail
links in central Scotland

Our construction capabihties
In these sectors are also key
o our success In winning
and delivering PPP road

and rail projects, long-term

maintenance contracts for roads

and railways and contracts for
the new ‘managed motorways’
programme This programme
involves the installation and
operation of mandatory
speed limits, together with
hard-shoulder running, to
Improve traffic flow during
peak perods, which requires
both construction and
support services skills

© Canada and the
Canbbean building

In Canada and the Canbbean,
where our businesses were
established over 40 years ago,
we have strong construction
capabilities both for bulldings
and mfrastructure In Canada,
PPP construction 1s growing
strongly Having delivered two
of the first PPP hospitals to be
bullt in Canada, we have since
won a further three major PPP
hospital projects, which are
now under construction In
December 2009, we were
awarded one of our largest
ever contracts in Canada to
extend and refurbish Toronto's
Unian Station, reflecting

the reputaticn we have

for delivering major high-
quality projects

Constructtan senvices (excluding the Middle East)

@ Mortimer College South Shields
@ Southmead Hospial Bnstol

© Cattenck Garrison, Yorkshire

@ A1 trunk road upgrade Yorkshire
© Royal Ottawa Hosprial Canada

Canllton plc 1 1
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Our performance

Chairman’s statement

| am delighted to report that
Carillion achieved its objective of
delivering materially enhanced
earnings in 2009, despite
challenging market condrtions.

This strong performance reflects the resilience of the Group's
business mix, the strength of the management team and the
skills and commitment of Canllion’s people On behalf of the
Board, | should like to thank ali our employees for the
contribution they have made to Canllion's success in 2009

In ine with the Group's strategy, support services continues to
make the largest contribution to earmings This was supported

by a good performance in Public Private Partnershup (PPP) projects,
which more than offset the expected decline 1n UK canstruction
revenue, and substantial growth in Middle East and Canada
construction services

Philip Rogerson
Chairman

Canllion pic
Annual Report and Accounts 2009
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By the year end, cost savings from integrating the Carillion

and Alfred McAlpine businesses had reached a run rate of

£50 milhion per annum, m hine with our expectations, and this
made a significant contribution to margin and earnings growth

Revenue including jomnt ventures increased by four per cent to
£5 4 hilhon (2008 £5 2 billien) and underlying profit before tax'™®
increased by 16 per cent to £182 2 milion (2008 £157 5 million)
Underlying earnings per share® increased by 14 per cent o

39 0 pence (2008 34 3 pence)

The Group's profit was again strongly cash-backed, with
underlying cash flow from operations of £268 2 milion

(2008 £198 3 million) substantially ahead of underlying

profit from operations of £196 8 million (2008 £165 2 million)
This, together with proceeds from the sale of equity investments
in PPP projects and from the disposal of non-core businesses, has
enabled the Group 1o achieve a net cash position of £24 9 million
at 31 December 2009 (2008 net borrowing of £226 7 million)

The Group continues to have a substantal ligh-guality forward
order book that was worth approximately £17 7 billion at the year
end (2008 £20 4 billion), with the reduction since December 2008
primanly due to the sale of equity in PPP projects and the disposal
of non-core businesses Beyond that we have a strong pipeline of
probable orders and contract opportunities, particularly in support
services where we have our largest ever pipeline

Compound annual growth rates
2005-2009

Dmdend

14%

Underlying
earnings per share®?

15%

{1} After Jomt Ventures taxation of £6 5 mithon (2008 £10 7 millkon) and before intangible
amortrsation impa:rment of other Investments non recurnng operating items and
non gperating items

(2} Before intangible amortisation impairment of other investments
non-fecurring operating lems and non-operating items




In view of the Group’s performance in 2009 and prospects for
2010, the Beard 1s recommending a final ordinary dividend for
2009 of 10 0 pence per share, making the total dwvidend for 2009
14 6 pence per share, an increase of 12 per cent on the total paid
in respect of 2008 (13 O pence)

In December 2009, the executive responsibilities for the Group’s
UK Building, Private Finance and Middle East businesses were
combined to streamline Board responsibulities and reflect the
strategic development and needs of these businesses, which

share common skill sets Richard Howson who has been Managing
Director of the Middle East businesses since July 2007, was
appointed to the Board on 10 December 2009 as the Executive
Drrector responsible for those businesses and for our UK Building
and Private Finance businesses Richard bnngs to the Board
considerable knowledge and experience that will enable him to
make a significant contribution to the Group's future development

David Hurcomb, the Executive Director responsible for UK Building
and Private Finance, decided to step down from the Board on

8 December 2009 Dawid left the Group with the Board's best
wishes and grateful thanks for the contribution he has made to
Carilion and to the development of our UK Bullding business

In particular

In view of the wider economic environment we continue o
expect market conditions to remain challenging in 2010
However, our performance has demonstrated that the Group

has a resilient business mix, including strong international
businesses, a substantial mgh-quality order book, a good pipeiine
of contract opportunities, good cash flow and a strong balance
sheet Consequently, the Group continues to be well positioned
and the Board believes that it will make further progress in 2010

Philip Rogerson
Chairman
3 March 2010

Total revenue
fm

+4%

Underlying earnings per share®

+14%'

Underlying profit before tax®™
£m

Dividend per share

+12%'

Reported earnings per share

+18%

Reported profit before tax
£m

+16%

+27%

{1) Growth on 2008

{2) Before intangtble arnortsation impairment of ather Invesiments, non recurnng

operaling items and non-operatng Yems.

(3) After Jont Ventures taxaton of £6 5 million (2008 £10 7 mithon) and before
ntangible amortsation impairment of other investments nan-recurnng

operating ems and non-operating Lems.
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Our performance

Group Chief Executive’s review

A seve nth SUCCQSSive yea r Of Our ability to perform strongly in current market conditions reflects
the benefits of implementing a consistent and successful strategy
substantial gI’OWth N earmngs for sustainable profitable growth, supported by a commitment to
behaving i accordance with our core values and applying ngorous
per Share and d|V|dend IS an risk management policies and processes

outstanding achievement,

Qur strategy
eSp8CIa| Iy N the current eConOMIC > Growing support services and Public Private Partnership (PPP)
projects .
CII mate: Wh |Ch haS made ma rket > Developing and marketing integrated solutions tallored to the
I needs of customers, including preject finance, design and
Condltlons Very Cha"englng construction, mamtenance and lifelime asset management

> Maintaining a strong and selective construction capability !
focused on higher added-value contracts for long-term
customers, especially the delivery of PPP projects and integrated
solutions for support services customers

The effects of our strategy
The success of our strategy 1s clearly evident in our track
record, having

> transformed Canllion from being primarily a UK construction
company into a leading UK support services business
> delivered seven successive years of sgnificant earnings and
dividend growth, with underlying earnings per share and our
dividend increasing over the last five years at compound annual
growth rates of 15 per cent and 14 per cent, respectively
> consistently achieved or exceeded our financial and
strategic objectives
> created a resilient business mix with strong market positions,
both in the UK and internationally |

The transformation of Canllion’s business away from a heavy
dependence on UK construction into one of the UK's leading
support services companies, with a large portfolio of PPP projects
John McDonough and a strong and selective construction capability, has given us the
Group Chief Executive resilience to perform strongly in 2009 and the platform to make
further progress in 2010

A resilient business mix

In 2009, 66 per cent of undertying operating profit came from
long-term contracts for support services and PPP projects, which
are more resilient In cyclical downturns The remaining 34 per cent
of underlying operating profit came from construction services, '
where earnings have also become more resilient, due to contract
selectwity and geographical diversification, which have greatly
reduced our dependence on the UK and increased the
contributions from our international businesses, notably i the
Middle East In 2009, Middle East construction services accounted
for 21 per cent of undertying operating profit, with construction
services {excluding the Middle East) accounting for 13 per cent

1 4 Canlhion plc
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Underlying operating profit by reporting segment™

2008

£206.5m

Support services
m£117.7m 2008 £113 5m)

Public Private Partnership projects
2009 m£32.2m (2008 £29 8m)

£2278m

Middle East construction services
B £47.0m (2008 £34 5m)

Construction services {(excluding the M:ddle Eass)
® £30.9m (2008 £28 7m)

Strong market positions

In transforming our business mix, we have also developed strong
posiions in new market sectors, while selectively capitalsing on
our existing strengths

In support services, through organic growth and acquisitions,
notably Mowlem and Aifred McAlpine, we have built a UK
business that has the skills and resources to provide customers with
nationwide services to manage, mantain and operate property
and infrastructure Our ability to combine our skills and resources
and use leading-edge technology to deliver fully mtegrated services
for large, complex property estates and infrastructure networks, 15
one of our key strengths For example, we prowide facilities
management and other support services for hundreds of
thousands of buddings, including an estate of around 43,000
houses for military personnel in the UK and some 7,000 properties
for BT We also provide management and maintenance services for
over 17,000 kitometres of roads in the UK and Canada and for
extensive sections of the UK's rast and public utiliies networks

We have been a leader in Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects
since the inception of the UK's Private Finance Initiative in the
early 1990s Since then, we have won over 50 PPP contracts

in the UK and Canada, for hospitals, schools, prisons, military
accommaodation, roads and ralways We also led the way m
developing the secondary market for PPP equity and to date we
have sold 28 equity Investments, generating proceeds of some
£279 9 million and a pre-tax profit of £105 6 million

In the Middle East, where we have had Joint Venture construction
businesses for nearly 40 years, we have built an ocutstanding
reputation for quality and rehability through delivering many

of the region’s most prestig:ous projects, including Dubai Festival
City, the Grand Mosque 1n Oman and more recently the Yas Hotel,
which forms the centrepiece of Abu Dhabi's new Formula 1

Grand Prix circurt

In construction services (excluding the Middle East) our
experience spans almost two centuries, as Carflion brings
together the hentage of Tarmac, Mowlem and Alfred McAlpine
Our highly selective approach has focused our construction skills
on fewer higher value-added projects for long-term customers,
particutarly PPP projects for which our ability to provide fully
integrated solutions helps to differentiate us from our competitors
For example, our portfoho incudes the UK Government
Communications Headquarters in Cheltenham, 20 major hospitals
and other healthcare facilities, over 140 new schoals, several
pnisons and numerous motorway, trunk road and rail projects

Our values

> Openness

> Collaboration

> Mutua! dependency

> Professional delivery
> Sustainable profitable growth
> Innovation

Applying our core values 1o everything we do Is creating a culture
focused on understanding the needs of customers and using the

Group’s wide range of skills and resources to create high-quality,

value-for-money solutions to meet those needs

(1) Before Group eliminabons and unabocated tems of £10 5 rmulbon
{2008 £12 4 mllion) share of jontly controlled entities net financal
expense and taxaton and non recurnng operating items
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Our performance

Group Chief Executive’s review
continued

Operational risk management

The application of ngorous risk management policies and
processes also plays an essential role in our success These policies
and processes are firmly embedded in our culture and designed
to identify, mitigate and manage strategic nisks and those specific
to individual business and contracts, including economic, social,
environmental and ethucal nisks These processes are described in
more detall in the Corporate Governance report on page 45

The Group Head of Risk 1s responsible for advising on strategic

nsk issues across the Group and for oversight of risk training

The Group Head of Risk 1s also responsible for carrying out
independent appraisals of all projects before these are submitted to
the Major Projects Committee, which 1s a committee of the Board
that sanctions all major commitments and transactions, including
capital expenditure, major contracts and business acquisitions and
disposals The Committee has delegated authonty up to specfied
levels of nisk, beyond which Board approval s required

We apply our sk management processes to every aspect of our
operations, from choosing our market sectors and the contracts
for which we bid, to the selection of our customers, partners and
suppliers We also apply them to every stage of a contract, from
its inception to completion, in order to delver high-quality services
for our customers and the cash-backed profit we expect

Operational nsk management

The principal nsks faang the Group are summarised in the table
below, together with the measures we have in place to mitigate
and manage these risks

Business disposals

In 2009, we disposed of two non-core businesses, Carilion IT
Services and Enviros, an environmental consultancy business,
generating total gross proceeds of £62 4 millon In kne with our
policy of selling equity investments in Public Private Partnership
projects once they have moved successfully into the operational
phase and renvesting the proceeds in new projects, we sold
investments in a further four mature projects duning 2009,
generating total proceeds of £100 7 million

Group key performance indicators in 2009

The Board set six Group key performance indicators for
2009, in respect of which the Group has performed strengly,
as discussed below

1 To continue to attract, develop and retain excellent
pecple by being an employer of choice

Delivering the high-quality services that our customers expect and
upon which the reputation of Canllion and that of its customers
depend, requires excellent peaple at all levels throughout the
Group The services we provide are often critical to the success

Risk

> Managing our pension schemes to ensure that scheme
habiliies are within a range appropriate to our capital base

Mitigation

> The Group’s main defined benefit schemes have been closed to
future accruals and been replaced with defined contnbution
schemes Investrment policies are reviewed regularly to ensure
that employee and company contributions, together with
scheme benefits, remain appropriate

> Continuing to win orders In markets that are more competitive

> We maintain a firm focus on cost reduction and efficiency to
remain competitive We are committed to ‘lving’ our values in
everything we do to ensure we listen to, and understand the
needs of, our customers and offer solutions tallored to meet
their needs

> The impact of the current global economic downturn on the
financial stabihity of our customers, partners and suppliers

> We apply ngorous selectivity criteria to the choice of customers,
projects, partners and suppliers, in relation to therr financal
stability, the security of project funding and contractual terms
and conditions

> Managing major contracts to ensure they are delivered on time,
to budget and to the required standards

> We apply nigorous selectivity critena to ensure that we take on
contracts only where we understand the nsks involved and can
manage them We apply equally ngorous policies and processes
to moritor and manage contract performance

> Maintaining financial discipline

> We apply strong cash management policies and processes io
deliver cash-backed profit
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of the public and private sector orgamisations for which we work
and for whom Canilion employees are frequently the ‘public face’
Consequently, our ability to attract, develop and retain exceltent
people by being an employer of choice remans our top prionty

In 2009, we continued to develop and implement our bespoke
leadership, personal development and employee engagement
programmes, which are designed to help all our people achieve
therr full potential

We strongly beheve in the power of engaging with, and
empowering, our employees to play a full role in improving service
delvery and the overall development of our business, through
creating a culture of trust and open communication Qur managers
and supervisors seek to engage with all our people through regular
one-to-one meetings, indwidual perfermance and development
reviews and monthly team talks, supported by newsletters and
our national award winning company newspaper, ‘Spectrum’
Successful employee engagement depends on hstening to what
our people tell us and acting upon 1t Therefore, In addition to
one-to-one meetings and team talks, we also conduct regular
employee surveys to help us monitor and measure our progress
For example, every year we conduct ‘The Great Debate’, a major
interactive survey in which our people, selected randomly from
across the Group, share ther views on a wide range of 1ssues that
are important to their personal development and satisfaction and
to the success of Canllion In 2003, 3,867 people took part in The
Great Debate, the results of which showed that we made very
gooad progress across the Group, with improved responses in 21
out of 23 areas tested and signuficant improvements in key areas
relating to the satisfaction of our people, such as the extent to
which they feel valued at work and feel proud to work for Canllion

2 Be a recognised leader In the delivery of safety and
sustainability in the sectors in which we operate

The health and safety of our people and everyone who works with
us or 15 affected by our operattons 1s paramount Qur corporate
objective, known as 'Target Zero', 15 to eliminate all reportable
acadents This demanding objective requires the constant vigilance
and the commitment of everyone in Carillion in order to ensure
that everyone consistently adopts safe working practices

We support the achievement of Target Zero with a wide range of
tools mcluding traiming, audits, our hazard reporting programme
‘Don’t Walk By', Safety Action Groups, strong visible leadership,
such as regular Directors’ Safety Tours and employee engagement
actmties Carnllion’s behaviour standard, ‘Behaving Safely’,

which was launched n 2008, was widely embedded across

our businesses duning 2009 and we have started to measure
progress using workforce feedback

In 2009, the Group's Accident Frequency Rate (AFR) was 013
reportable accdents per 100,000 man hours worked (2008

AFR 0 14), with four out of five operational sites, worldwide,
achieving Target Zero The mprovement we achieved in 2009,

on an already relatively low acadent rate in 2008, reflected our
continuing and ngorous focus on reducing reportable acadents
to zero It is particularly pleasing to note that in 2009 the acadent
rates i our construction businesses in the UK and the Middle East
reduced by around 40 per cent

In 2009, we continued to submit information on the Health and
Safety performances of all our business units to the Corporate
Health and Safety Performance Index, which is sponsored by the
Health and Safety Executive and covers all aspects of Health and
Safety management and performance A wide range of industnes
participates in the Index and this enables us to benchmark our
performance beyond our own industry sector In 2009, our
Index score of 8 3 (2008 8 0) continued to show year-on-year
improvement This score compares very favourably with the
average Index score of 6 7 and places Carillion in equal 16th
place out of the 127 organisations that chose to take part in

the 2009 Index

We deeply regret that in 2009 there was one fatal acadent in
which Kenneth Campbell, a Canlion employee at a quarry In
Scotland, was fatally injured when the vehicle he was driving
overturned on the quarry haui road No other vehicle was
involved Every accident 1s a personal tragedy and our thoughts
are very much with the family and friends of Mr Campbell

Two prosecutions of Canllion comparies by the Health and
Safety Executive were completed in 2009 One of these related
to an acadent that occurred n the former Alfred McAlpine
business, before it was acquired by Carillion

Being a leader in delvering sustainable sofutions for our customers
continues to help differentiate Canllion from its peers In 2009,
Canllion was included in the Top 20 UK companies in the Sunday
Times Best Green Companies We also continued to improve our
ranking in Business in the Community’s (BITC) Corporate
Responsibility Index, moving from a 'Gold’ to a ‘Plaunum’ ranking,
with a score of 96 5 per cent, which topped the support services
sector The Corporate Responsibiiity Index involves a detailed,
independent third-party assessment of company strategy,
management processes and performance The average score of
participating companies was 87 5 per cent, which demonstrates
that Canllion not only continues to be a leader In the support
services sectar, but that our performance ranks favourably with
that of all participating companies Canllion also continues to be a
member of the FTSE4Good Index
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Our performance

Group Chief Executive’s review
continued

3 Dehver integration and re-orgamisation cost savings
arising from the acquisition of Alfred McAlpine of

£35 million 1n 2009 and achieve a run rate of £50 million
per annum by the end of 2009

Absolute integration and re-organisation cost savings were
£35 mulhon in 2009 and by the year end we had achieved a run
rate of £50 million a year, fully meeting this key performance
indicator

4. Deliver matenally enhanced earnings

Underlying earmings per share® increased by 14 per cent to

35 0 pence per share (2008 34 3 pence per share) Achieving this
key performance indicator, despite challenging market conditions,
reflected the resihence of the Group’s business mix, ncluding
strong international businesses, and the benefits of the Alfred
McAlpine integration and re-organisation cost savings

5. Generate cash-backed profit

Delivering cash-backed profit from operations continues to be an
absolute pnornity for all Canillion’s business units A ngorous focus
on cash management has once again resulted in strong underlying
cash flow from operations of £268 2 muillion (2008 £198 3 million),
which represented 136 per cent of underlying profit from
operations of £196 8 million (2008 £165 2 million)

6 Continue to reduce year-end net borrowing

At 31 December, the Group had net cash of £24 9 million,
compared with net borrowing at 31 December 2008 of

£226 7 mullion This reflected the Group’s strong cash flow from
operations, together with total gross cash proceeds of £163 1
million from the sale of investments in Public Private Partnership
projects, in line with the Group’s policy of recycling these
investments, and from the dispoesal of non-core businesses

2010 KPIs

The Board has set the following key performance indicators
for 2010
> To attract, develop and retain excellent people

> Be a recognised leader in Health & Safety and Sustainability
in the sectors in which we operate

> Continuously tmprove customer satisfaction and brand
reputation

> Continue o reduce costs and improve efficiency to support
earnings growth

> Generate cash-backed profit
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OQutiook and prospects

In view of the wider economuc environment, we expect market
conditions to remain challenging in 2010 However, we have

a substantial high-quality order book and a good pipeline of
contract opportunittes in each of our business segments
Consequently, the Group continues to be well positioned with
a resiient business mex and we believe we will make further
progress in 2010

The Group’s order book was worth approximately £17 7 billion
at the year end (2008 £20 4 billion), with the reduction since
December 2008 due to the sale of equity in Public Prvate
Partnership projects and the disposal of non-core bustnesses

In addtion, we had a pipeline of probab'e new orders worth
some £2 0 billion at the year end (2008 £3 1 billion)

Order book

Support services
m £11.1bn (2002 £10 8bn)

Public Private Partnership projects
2009 m£2 4bn zooe €5 3on)

£177bn

Middle East construction services
® £0.7bn (2008 £0 8bn)

Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
m £3 5bn (2008 £3 500

Probable orders

Support services

m £0 6bn (2008 £05bn)

Public Private Partnership projects
2009 m £0.2bn (2008 £0 16n)

Middle East canstruction services
m £0.2bnoos £o 9bn)

£2 0bn

Construction services {excluding the Middle East)
m £1.0bn (2008 £156n)

(1) Before intangble amortisauon impairment of other investments
non recurring operaling items and non operaung dems




tn support services, the outlook 1s positive We have our largest
ever pipeline of contract renewal and new contract opportunities,
and currently only some 15 per cent of expected revenue m 2010
13 not already covered by our order book and probable orders

The levet of new contract opporturities reflects the pressure on
both public and private sector organisations to reduce costs and
increase efficiency through outsourcing non-core services We
expect this trend to continue and in the public sector to accelerate,
following the UK General Election in 2010, as both central and
local government are expected to step up thew efforts to reduce
the costs of delivening better public services As market conditions
are expected to remain competitive, we will maintain our financial
disctphne and continue to apply strict contract selectivity critena in
order to underpin our margins Having increased our operating
margin in this segment to 4 9 per cent in 2008 (2008 4 6 per
cent), we are targeting a margin of around five per cent in 2010

In Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects, we have a good
pipeline of concession contracts for which we are erther the
preferred bidder or shorthsted This reflects the strong positions we
have In our target market sectors in the UK and in Canada, where
we expect continuing opportunrties for new projects, netably In
the education sector in the UK and n the health sector in Canada
Consequently, we expect to continue adding new PPP projects to
our portfolio We also expect to continue to explore opportunities
for selling equrty investments in mature projects, namely once
construction of the asset has been completed and the project

has moved successfully into the operationa! phase with the
support services contract fully established Therefore, we expect
to continue generating sigmficant value for the Group through
our PPP equrty Investments

In Middle East construction services, currently some 85 per
cent of expected revenue in 2010 15 already covered by our order
book and probable orders In addition, we have a strong pipehne
of contract opporturities that is currently worth over £4 billion,

the largest elements of which are in Abu Dhabi and Oman Given
our reputation for delivening projects to the highest standards of
quality and reliability, we expect to continue benefiting from the
region’s major investment programmes, notably in Abu Dhabi and
Oman, and also in Qatar where we have recently established a
new business Following the global economi¢ downturn, rather
than negotiating contracts we are now tendenng competitively
for contracts in this region As a result, we expect our operating
margin to reduce from the very high level we achieved in 2009

of 8 5 per cent (2008 7 4 per cent) However, we are still targeting
a healthy margin of aver six per cent in 2010 Furthermore, given
the scale of opportunities we have in the region, we believe that
the medium to long-term outlook also continues 10 be positive,
with margins expecied to stabilise in the medium term at between
five and six per cent

in construction services (excluding the Middle East), we
expect the contrnbution to revenue from the UK to continue to
decline in 2010, in line with our expectations, by applying strict
contract selectivity citena In Canada, we expect further growth
i 2010 partially to offset the reduction in UK revenue Through
contract selectivity we will continue to ensure that the size of our
construction business 1s appropriate to support the delwery of
PPP projects, the needs of our support services bustness and our
expectations for reduced demand in our other UK construction
markets We have already made significant progress in this regard
and 100 per cent of expected revenue for the year in this segment
15 already covered by the order book and probable orders
Maintaining financial disaphne and contract selectivity will also
support our cbjective of moving the combined operating margin
for all our construction actwvities, including the Middle East,
towards three per cent in 2010

John McDoncugh
Group Chief Executive
3 March 2010
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Our performance

Operating and financial review

Carlion performed strongly in
difficult market conditions during
2009 to deliver a 19 per cent
increase In underlying™ profit
from operations and a 14 per
cent increase m underlying®
earnings per share

This was backed by strong cash generation that resufted

In the Group having net cash at 31 December 2009 of

£24 9 million, compared with net barrowing of £226 7 millien
at 31 December 2008

Profit and earnings growth were due to the Group’s resilient
business mix, which delivered a good underlying operating
performance, together with the benefits of cost savings from
integrating the Alfred McAlpine business, which was acquired
in February 2008

Richard Adam
Group Finance Director
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Carnllion 1s a teading UK support services company with a
substantial portfolio of Public Private Parinership projects and
extensive construction capabiiies Having this wide range of
skills and resources enables the Group 1o deliver fully integrated
solutions for buldings and mfrastructure, from project finance
through design and construction, 1o life-time asset management

The Group has operations in the UK, Middle East and North Africa
and Canada and the Canbbean and our principal market sectors
and activities are described on pages 2 to 11

Accounting policies

The Group's annual consohdated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union The following new
accounting standards and interpretations, which became effective
after 1 January 2009, have been adopted during the year

> Amendments to International Accounting Standard {IAS) 1
‘Presentation of financial statements - a revised presentation’

> Revised International Accounting Standard (1AS) 23
‘Borrowing costs’

> International Financial Reporting Standard {IFRS) 8
‘Operating segments’

> International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) 14 'The IImit on a defined benefit asset, rmimimum
funding requirements and therr interaction’

> Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
2 'Share-based payment — vesting conditions and cancellations’

> Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard {IFRS)
7 ‘Improving disclosure about financial mstruments’

These new standards and tnterpretations, together with the
Group's other significant accounting pohicies are described
on pages 6t to 66

Group overview

Total revenue in 2009 increased by four per cent to

£5,426 5 millon {2008 £5,205 8 million), Including revenue
from Joint Ventures of £922 3 million (2008 £772 O milion}

(1} Before intangible amortsation mparment of other nvestments
and non-recurnng operating items

(2} Before intangble amortsaucn impairment of other nvestments
noN recurnng operating items and non-operating 1ems




Total underlying profit from operations increased by 19 per cent
to £196 8 mullon (2008 £165 2 midhon), iInduding profit from
Jomt Ventures of £65 9 million (2008 £45 1 millon)

The underlying profit from operations margin increased to

3 6 per cent (2008 3 2 per cent) and reflected our continuing
drive to iImprove margins through contract selectivity, cost
reduction and greater efficency

After a net financial expense of £14 6 milion (2008 £7 7 million),
underlying profit before tax was £182 2 million (2008 £1575
mullion), an increase of 16 per cent Underlying earnings per share
on the same measure increased by 14 per cent to 39 0 pence
(2008 34 3 pence)

Intangible amortisation was £30 8 milhon (2008 £54 5 million,
including impairment of other investments) Non-recurnng
operating costs amounted to £15 2 milhon (2008 £22 7 million)
and non-operating income was £11 5 mullion (2008 £35 6 million)
Total non-recurning operating and non-operatng stems therefore
amounted to a net cost of £3 7 million (2008 £12 9 million iIncome),
leaving reported profit before tax of £147 7 millien (2008

£115 9 million)

Group taxation was £11 5 million (2008 £4 1 million}, which
when combined with Joint Ventures taxation of £6 5 milon
(2008 £10 7 million) represented an underlying effective tax
rate of 16 per cent (2008 20 per cent) Profit after tax was

£136 2 milion (2008 £111 8 millien) and minonty interests were
£3 8 milhon {2008 £3 5 milion), leaving profit attributable to
Canllion shareholders of £132 4 million (2008 £108 3 miflion)
Basic earnings per share were 33 4 pence (2008 28 4 pence)

Underlying cash flow from operations of £268 2 millon

(2008 £198 3 mulkon) again comfortably exceeded underilying
profit from operations of £196 8 million {2008 £165 2 mithon)
After payments of £29 0 million to pension funds (2008

£50 5 milhon), in ine with our pension deficit recovery plan,

net capital expenditure of £47 3 mullion (2008 £26 4 mullion),
restructuring and other costs of £17 1 million (2008 £32 4 million),
Interest, tax and dividend payments of £63 2 million (2008

£62 2 million) and a net income from disposals of £142 7 million
(2008 £227 0 milhion net cost), the Group had net cash at

31 December of £24 9 million, compared with net borrowang
at 31 December 2008 of £226 7 million

Segmental reporting and analysis

Operating profit by finanaal reporting segment 1s summarnsed

in the table below and a detailled segmental analysss of

the Group’s businesses I1s provided in Note 2 to the financial

statements on page 66 Operating performance in each of

our financial reporting segments 1s discussed in mere detall

on pages 22 to 25

Financial reporting segments and analysis
Operating profit by financial reporting segment

Change
from
2009 2008 2008
£m £m %
Support services 1M77 135 4
Public Private Partnership progects 322 298 8
Middle East construction services 470 345 36
Construction services
{excluding the Middle East) 309 287 8
2278 2065 10
Group eliminations and unallocated items (105) (12 4) 15
Profit from operations befare
Joint Ventures net financial expense
and taxation 2173 1941 12
Share of Joint Ventures net
financial expense (140) (182) 23
Share of Joint Ventures taxation 65) (107) 39
Underlying profit from operations 1968 1652 19
Intangible amortisation and impairment
of other investments (308) (545 43
Non-recurring operating items (152) (227} 33
Reported profit from operations 1508 880 71

(1} Before intangible amortisation wmpairment of other investments and nen-recurning

operatng tems
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Qur performance

Operating and financial review
continued

Support services

In this segment we report the results of our facilities
management, faciities services, rail services, road
maintenance, utility services and consultancy businesses

Revenue

£2.4bn

Underlying operating profit

£117./m

(£m) 2009 2008 chan;/Z
Revenue
- Group 211083 22271
— Share of joint ventures 2812 2364

2,3895 24635 3)
Underlying operating profit
— Group 1029 995
— Share of joint ventures 148 140

1177 1135 4

{1} Before intangible amostsation impairment of other investments and non recurnng
operatng items
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Underlying operating profit” increased by four per cent to

£117 7 mullion, on revenue three per cent lower at £2,389 5 million,
reflecting a substantial improvement 1n the operating margin from
4 6 per cent 10 4 9 per cent Margins improved, despite more
competitive market conditions, as a result of mamtaining our
financial discpline through continuing to apply stnct contract
selectivity cntena, together with the benefits of the Alfred
McAlpine integration and re-organisation costs savings, which

are coming through as expected

The reduction in revenue reflected the sale of non-core businesses,
the loss of a contract to manage insurance claims for Aviva,
following a strategic decision by Aviva to take In-house services
that involve direct contact wath thesr customers, and the effect of
being financally discplined and selective in respect of contract bids
and re-bids

In 2009, we continued to strengthen our position as one of the
UK’s leading support services companies through our ability to
combine our extensive skills and nationwide resources 1o provide
Innavative cost-effective service solutions tallored to meet the
needs of our customers In particular, having the skills and
resources to provide all the services needed to manage and
maintain large, complex property estates and infrastructure
helps to differentiate Carillion from its competitors Qur use of
leading-edge technology to improve the quality and reduce the
cost of these services has also become increasingly important to
existing and new customers in the current economic chmate

Our order book has increased following a number of notable
successes during the year These included a £1 0 bilion,
seven-year contract awarded to a Canllion-led Joint Venture

to provide Openreach, BT's local access network business, with
nationwide asset management and mantenance services, faclimes
management and services contracts for the NHS worth some
£240 million, road and rail Infrastructure mamntenance contracts
worth £250 milion, and facilities management contracts for other
Government, regulated and blue-chip private sector customers
worth approximately £400 million

The strong positions we hold in Public Private Partnership (PPP)
projects, both in the UK and Canada, through combining our
project finance, design, construction and supports services
capabulities, continue to make significant contributions to this
segment The support services forward order book relating

to PPP projects currently stands at £6 9 billion and provides
exceptional long-term revenue visibility, given PPP contract
peniods are typically between 25 and 35 years

The total value of our forward order book for support services at
31 December 2009 was £11 1 bilhon (2008 £10 8 billion) At the
year end, we also had a pipeline of probable new orders worth
£0 6 billion (2008 £0 6 bilhon} and our largest ever pipeline of
contract opportunities




Public Private
Partnership projects

In this segment we report the equity returns from our
investments in Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects
The results of the support services and construction
services we provide as part of delivering PPP projects
are reported in ‘support services’ and ‘construction
services (excluding the Middle East)’, respectively

Directors valuation after selling equity
mvestments for £100 7m during 2009
Net present value (Em)

Revenue

£0.2bn

Underlying operating profit

£32.2m

%
(£m) 2009 2008 Change
Revenue
- Group 11 09
— Share of joint ventures 2145 1775
2156 178 4 21
Underlying operating profit®
- Group - ©2)
— Share of joint ventures 322 300
322 298 8

{1) Before imangible amortsation imparment of other investmenss and non-recurnag
aperating items

Qur ability to combine our skills and resources in project finance,
design, construction and support services 1o win and successfully
deliver the high-quality assets and services expected from these

projects, continues to generate considerable value for the Group

We target a 15 per cent internal rate of return on our investments
in these projects over the ife of the concession contracts, which
I1s typcally between 25 and 35 years Once construction of the
asset 1s complete and the project has moved successfully into

the operational phase, with the support services contract firmty
established, we have the option of selling our equity investments
and reinvesting the proceeds in new projects

During 2009, we sold investments in four mature projects — Exeter
Schools, Renfrewshire Schools, the New Accommodation Project
(Cheltenham) and Allenby Connaught — generating proceeds of
£100 7 million, which reflected a net present vatue of the cash
flows from these investments based on a discount rate of some
eight per cent Over the last six years, we have sold a total of

28 investments, generating proceeds of some £279 9 million

and a pre-tax profit of £105 & million

During the year, we also continued to add new projects to our
portfolio Canllion joint ventures achieved financial dose on five
projects — two Building Schools for the Future {BSF) programmes,
namely Tameside and Durham, the Lister Surgicentre n
Hertfordshire, the Royal Victoria Hospital in Barrie, Ontario and
the Centre for Addiction and Mental Health in Toronto — In
which Cardlion expects to invest total combined equity of some
£22 8 million

At the year end, we had a portfolio of 23 financially closed projects
in which we had mvested £46 6 mithon and had commitments to
invest a further £74 1 million of equity Following the equity
disposals made during 2009, the Directors’ valuation of our
remaining equrty iInvestments at 31 December 2009 was

£115 milhon {2008 £216 million), based on discounting the cash
flows from these investments at an average discount rate of nine
per cent At 31 December 2009, we had a forward order book
worth £2 4 billion (2008 £5 3 billion), with the reduction on 2008
reflecting the sale of four PPP equity investments dunng the year,
and probable orders worth £0 2 billion (2008 £0 1 billion)

Since the year end, we have achieved financal close on Southmead
Hospital, Bristol, i which we will invest £50 million of equity, and
on the Rochdale BSF programme in which we wall initially invest
some £2 4 mithon of equity We expect to make further equity
Investments in subsequent phases of the Rochdale programme

In addition, we are currently the preferred bidder for the
Wolverhampton BSF pragramme, in which we expect to invest
up to £6 millien of equity and we are shortlisted for a further four
projects in the UK and Canada in which Carillion could potentally
invest up to £59 millon of equity
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Our performance

Operating and financial review
continued

Middle East
construction services

in this segment we report the results of our building
and aivil engineerning activities in the Middle East and
North Africa

Revenue

£0.6bn

uUnderlytng operating profit @

£47.0m

(£m) 2009 2008 Chan:;
Revenue
- Group 1302 117
- Share of joint ventures 4234 3525

5536 464 2 19
Underlying operating profit™
- Group 68 64
— Share of joint ventures 402 281

470 345 36

{1) Before intangible amortisation impairment of other investments and non-recurnng
cperatung items
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Our Middle East construction businesses have again performed
strongly agamst our previously announced target of more than
doubling our share of revenue from these businesses from

£269 miflion in 2006 1o around £600 million in 2009, at an
operating margin in excess of six per cent In 2009, revenue
ncreased by 19 per cent to £554 milion, with the underlying
operating margin up from 7 4 per cent to 8 5 per cent which
resulted 1n an increase of 36 per cent In underlying operating profit
to £47 0 millon Cash flow has also remained strong with receipts
from customers in 2009 of some £555 million, which supported an
increase n the dividend received from our Middle East businesses

We have continued to deliver substantal growth in the Middle East,
despite the slowdown of construction activity in Dubai, through
our strategy of geographical diversification and of focusing on a
small number of finanoally robust customers with whom we have
strong long-term relationships

We commenced operations in Abu Dhab) in early 2008, since when
its contribution to Middle East revenue has increased from 20 per
cent in 2008 to 55 per cent in 2009, while the contribution from
Dubai has reduced as expected from 55 per cent in 2008 to 20 per
cent in 2009 Revenue In Oman has also grown significantly to
leave 1ts contribution broadly unchanged at 23 per cent, with the
balance of two per cent coming from Egypt

The successful completion in October 2008 of the £350 million Yas
Hotel, the centre piece of Abu Dhabr's new Formula 1 Grand Prix
circutt, for developer ALDAR, has further reinforced the reputation
of Al Futtam Canillion as one of the region’s leading contractors,
well positioned to continue winning high-quality work For
example, dunng 2009, Al Futtaim Carillion secured a number of
new orders in Abu Dhab), including a £550 million contract for
ALDAR to build the Al Muneera development and a £150 million
contract to build a new headquarters for the Abu Dhabi Investment
Council, together with further infrastructure works for Emirates
Aluminium and the Qasr Al Muwaij museum for the Authority for
Culture and Heritage, together worth some £50 million

Our business in Oman, Canlion Alawi, also used 1ts reputation

as a market leader in delivering high-quality projects to secure
significant new contracts in 2009, the largest of which being a
£275 million contract for the Royal Court Affairs to build the Maylss,
a prestigious new Parliament bullding In Egypt, we continue to
make progress on the construction of Cairo Festival City, for which
the customer 1s our loint Venture partner, The Al Futtaim Group

At the year end, Cariflion’s share of the forward order book of

our Middle East businesses was £0 7 billlon {2008 £0 8 billion)

We also had probable new orders worth approximately £0 2 billon
(2008 £0 9 billion) and a pipeline of contract opportuntties worth
over £4 billon




Construction services

{(excluding the Midd!e East)

In this segment we report the results of our UK building,
cwvil engineering and developments businesses, together
with those of our construction activities in Canada and the
Canbbean

Revenue

£2.2bn

Undertying operating profit?

£30.9m

%
(Em) 2009 2008 Change
Revenue
— Group 2,2646 2,0941
- Share of joint ventures 32 56
2,2678 20997 8
Underlying operating profit®
- Group 317 268
— Share of jomt ventures {0 8) 19
309 287 8

(1} Before wtangible amorisation imparment of other invesiments and non recurmng
operating items

Total revenue increased by eight per cent to £2,267 8 million
Within this total, UK revenue reduced shightly in ine wath our
expectations, but this was more than offset by growth in Canada,
primarnly due to the acquisiion of the Vanbots Group in October
2008 Undertying operating profit™ increased by eight per cent,
reflecting a stable operating margin of 14 per cent, which was a
satisfactory result in challenging market conditions The operating
margin for all our construction activities, including Middle East
construction services, increased to 2 8 per cent {2008 2 5 per cent)

The UK contnbution to revenue reduced shghtly as a result of
continuing o apply strict contract selectivity and risk management
cnteria, in arder to secure high-quality projects for long-term
customers in our chosen sectors of the non-housing, new-build
market As a result, we have continued to adjust the scope

and scale of our construction capability to ensure it has the

critical mass necessary to support the delivery of Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects and the needs of our support services
business, while taking account of our expectations for reduced
future demand in other UK construction markets

The intake of new orders has remained healthy Notable successes
in the UK included contracts for the Bullding Schools for the
Future (BSF) programme worth £800 millien, a £209 million
contract to upgrade the A1 trunk road to motorway standard

in Yorkshire, a £430 million contract for a luxury residential
development for Grosvenor on London's South Bank and a

£116 million contract for HM Prison Low Moss in Scotland

In Canada and the Carbbean, we have had a very successful year
The acguisition of the Vanhots Group further strengthened our
construction capabiity and leadershup position in the growing PPP
projects market in Canada, as ewdenced by a number of major
contract wins i 2009 Notable successes in Canada included two
PPP projects in the health sector - the £144 milhon Royal Victoria
Hospital in Barrie, Ontano, and the £107 milon Centre for
Addiction and Mental Health in Toronto ~ and a £360 million
contract for the rewtatisation of Union Station in Toronto

At the year end, our forward order book for construction

services (excluding the Middle East) was worth £3 5 billion
(2008 £3 5 bilhon) and we had a pipeline of probable new
orders worth approximately £1 0 billion (2008 £1 5 billion}

Since the year end, we have achieved financial close on the
Rochdale BSF programme and the Southmead Hospital
PPP project in Bristol, which together will generate over
£600 millon of construction services revenue for Carillion

Canllion ple 2 5
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Our performance

Operating and financial review
continued

Intangible amortisation and impairment of

other investments

Intangible amortisation of £30 8 milken (2008 £54 5 million)
relates to the amortisation of intangible assets ansing primarily
trom the acquisition of Mowlem in 2006 and Alfred McAlpine
and the Vanbots Group In 2008 The £54 5 miflion charge in
2008 included an imparrment charge of £11 7 milion in respect
of the investment in the Alice Springs to Darwin rallway,

a Pubiic Private Partnership project acquired with Mowlem

Non-recurring operating items
These costs are summarised in the table below

{(Em) 2008 2008
Rationalisation costs @9 -
Office of Fair Trading penalty (54) -
Curtailment gain 01 355
Alfred McAlpine integration and re-organisation costs — (55 0}
Vanbots Group integration and re-organisation costs - (3 2)

(152) (227)

Rationalisation costs of £9 9 million relate to redundancy and other
assocated costs incurred in rationalising the Group's structure at
the end of 2008 This includes ensuning that the size of the Group's
UK construction capability reflects the expected decline in our
general construction markets, while maintaming the capability we
need 1o support the delvery of Public Private Partnership projects
and meet the needs of our support services business

The Office of Farr Trading (OFT) penalty of £5 4 million was
imposed on Carillion JM Limited, which was formerly Mowlem plc
prior to1ts acquisition by Carillion Mowlem was one of 103
companies penahsed following an OFT investigation into cover
pricing in the construction industry under the Competition Act
1998 The ant-competitive activities for which Mowlem was
penalised related to the activities of Mowtem prior to its acquisition
by Canllion in February 2006 No other Carillion companies were
subject to the OFT investigation

A curtalment gain of £35 5 million was recogmised in 2008,

as a result of dosing four Carllion defined benefit pension
schemes to future accrual, net of £2 8 million of expenses
From 31 December 2009, benefits paid in respect of the Alfred
McAlpine Pension Plan will no longer be linked to final salary
(see also ‘Retirement benefits’ on page 28) This gave nse to a
curtaiment gain of £0 1 million (net of expenses)

2 6 Canlhon plc
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Non-operating items

Non-operating income in 2009 amounted to £11 5 million
(2008 £35 6 million) and compnsed a profit of £1 2 million on
the sale of investments in Public Private Partnership projects and
a provisional profit of £10 3 million on the sale of two non-core
businesses ~ Canllion IT Services and the Group’s environmental
consultancy business, Enviros

Net financial expense

The Group had a net financat expense of £14 & mihon (2008

£7 7 milton) This comprised a net expense of £15 8 million In

respect of borrowings, a net interest charge of £2 2 millon in

respect of retrement benefit schemes and an interest credit of
£3 4 milhon in respect of loans to Special Purpose Companies

for Public Private Partnership projects

Taxation

The effective tax rate on underlying profit was 16 per cent,

which 1s below the UK standard rate of corporation tax, principally
reflecting the change to UK legislation in July 2009 that made
dividends receved from overseas companies exempt from

UK taxation, together with the utilisation of UK tax losses

At 31 December 2009 the Group had £375 milion (2008

£355 million) of corporate tax losses n the UK that are available
to reduce fuiure 1ax payments

Earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share increased by 14 per cent to

39 0 pence (2008 34 3 pence) This substantial increase reflected
the Group's strong operating performance, notably through
growing operating margins and by reducing central costs

Dividend

Carilhon has a dividend policy of progressively increasing the
dividend paid to shareholders broadly in ine with earnings growth,
after taking account of the investment needs of the business
Consistent with this policy, the Board has recommended a final
dnadend in respect of 2009 of 10 0 pence, making the full-year
dividend 14 6 pence, an increase of 12 per cent on the total paid
in respect of 2008 (13 0 pence} Underlying dvidend cover was

27 times {2008 2 6 times)




Cash flow
A summary of the Group's cash flows 1s shown below

{fm) 2009 2008
Underlying Group operating profit 1309 1201
Depreciation and other non-cash items 388 192
Working captal 599 340
Dwvidends received from Jomnt Ventures 386 250
Total underlying cash inflow

from operations 2682 1983
Deficit penston contributions (290) (509
Restructuring costs (171) (324
Interest, tax and dwidends 632) (622)
Net capital expenditure (473) (264
Acquisitions and disposals 1427 (2270)
Other 27) 184
Change in net berrowing 2516 (1818)
Net borrowing at 1 January (226 7) (449
Net cash/(borrowing) at 31 December 249 (2267)

Average net borrowing (274 4) (329 8"

(1) Post the acquisition of Alfred McAlpine

Our continuing focus on strong cash management and the
delivery of cash-backed profit has produced underlying cash

flow from operations of £268 2 million, significantly ahead of
underlying profit from operations of £196 8 million This, together
with proceeds from the sale of four investments in Public private
Partnership (PPP) projects and from the disposal of non-core
businesses, namely, Canllion IT Services and Enviros, has

resulted in the Group having net cash at 31 December 2009 of
£24 9 millien, compared with net borrowing of £226 7 million

at 31 December 2008

Additional cash payments to the Group’s pension’s schemes
amounted to £29 0 million, In hine with our pension defiat
recovery plan The cash cost of restructuring of £171 mulkion
includes costs relating to the integration of the Alfred McAlpine
and Vanbots Group businesses, which were acquired in 2008, and
costs relating to restructuring the Canllion Group, as described
under "Non-recurring operating items’ on page 26 Net capital
expenditure of £47 3 millon was higher than in 2008, because the
latter was net of disposal proceeds of £15 0 milhon, not repeated
in 2009 Overail caprial expenditure was higher than the Group's
annual depreciation charge, because of addiional investment in

IT infrastructure, in order to accommodate the Alfred McApine
businesses and deliver planned synergy benefits, and in plant and
equipment to support the growth of our business in Canada

The cash inflow 1n respect of acquisitions and disposals in 2009
reflected £1579 million of proceeds (net of costs) from the sale

of nvestments tn PPP projects and non-core businesses, net of
£15 2 milhon of further investments in PPP projects

Balance sheet

Carlfion’s balance sheet remains strong and 1s supporied by
committed bank facilities of £655 muillion, the largest of which s a
£590 million syndicated facility which matures in September 2012

(Em) 2009 2008
Property, plant and equipment 168 2 1672
Intangible assets 1.2413 11,2769
Investments 1771 2386
15866 16827
Inventories, recevables and payables (608 0) (4904)
Net retirement benefits hability (net of tax) (2111) (76 2)
Other {15 2) {218)
Net operating assets 7523 10943
Net cash/(borrowing) 249 (2267)
Net assets 7772 8676

Intangible assets reduced primanly as a result of amortisation

The reduction in investments reflects the sale of four of the
Group's equity investments in PPP projects The movement in
inventores, recewables and payables was pnimanly due to a

£40 million receipt resulting from outsourang Carillion’s internal
IT functions to Accenture, as announced in June 2009, and a
reduction in working capwal of some £33 million ansing from the
disposal of Enviros and our external IT business The increase in the
Group's net retirement benefits lability was due to a number of
factors, but primanly reftects a reduction in market bond yields
since December 2008, partially offset by addittonal cash payments
to our pension schemes under our pension deficit recovery plan
and a curtailment gain, which 15 explained on page 28 in the
section headed ‘Retirement benefits’
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Our performance

Operating and financial review
continued

Share price

Carifhon’s share price was 303 8 pence at close of business on
31 December 2009, an increase of 22 5 per cent In the closing
pnce on 31 December 2008 of 248 0 pence

Carlhon’s total shareholder return increased in 2009 by 23 per
cent, broadly in ine with the return for the FTSE 350 Over the
last five years, Canllion’s total shareholder return has sigrificantly
outperformed the FTSE 350 The FTSE 350 has been chosen

by the Board as the best comparator to illustrate Carllion’s
performance against a broad equity market index

Five-year total shareholder return

One-year total shareholder return

2 8 Canilion plc
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Retirement benefits

The Group's ongoing pensions charge against profit in 2009
was £28 6 millon {2008 £35 8 million) After additiona! cash
payments to the Group’s pension schemes of £29 0 milkon
(2008 £50 5 million), n Iine with our deficit recovery plan, and a
curtailment gain of £3 3 mullion (2008 £38 3 million), the Group's
pension schemes had a total deficit net of tax at 31 December
2009 of £2111 million (2008 £76 2 million) As part of the
Group’s sirategy for managing the risks and liabilities associated
with its defined benefit pension schemes, the henefits for
members of the Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan will, as with other
Carlhon schemes, no longer be inked to final salary with effect
from 31 December 2009

Commutted bank facilities

The Group’s main committed bank facilities of £655 million
comprise a £590 milhon syndicated five-year facility, bilateral
facihties of £50 million and a £15 milion 364-day faciity The
£590 million facility 1s repayable on 30 September 2012, having
been arranged in September 2007 on favourable terms, before
the severe tighterung of the credit markets The bdateral faclhities
have repayment dates between September and December 2012
These faciliues have proved to be more than adequate to support
the operations of the Group

Operational and financial risk management

Canillion has ngorous policies and processes in place to identify,
mitigate and manage strategic risks and those speafic to
idimidual businesses and contracts, including economic,

sooal, environmental and ethical risks These are summarised
on page 16 of the Group Chief Executive’s review

Treasury policy and finanaal nsk management

The Group has a centralised Treasury function whose primary

role 1s to manage funding, iquidity and financial nsks In addition,
Treasury sources and administers contract bond and guarantee
facilities for the Group Treasury 15 not a profit centre and does not
enter into speculative transactions The Board sets policies within
which Treasury operates that ensure the most effective finanang
of the Group's operations and bmit exposure to financial risk The
areas of significant financial nsk facing the Group relate to funding
and quidity, counterparty nisk, foreign exchange and interest rates




Funding and hquidity

In addition to Carillion plc’s principal borrowing facilities descnbed
on page 28, money market and short-term overdraft facilities are
available to Carfion pl¢ and certain subsidianes Operating leases
are also employed to fund longer-term assets The quantum of
committed borrowing facihives available to the Group is reqularly
reviewed Dy the Canllion Board and 15 designed to satisfy the
requirements of the Group’s business plan At 31 December 2009,
the Group had undrawn committed facilities amounting to

£518 4 milion (2008 £242 3 milkior) This excdludes the Group's
share of cash balances amounting to £144 5 million (2008

£157 7 milhion) within jointly controlled operations, which are
outside of the Group's faciliies These cash balances are available
to the Group to the extent that they are not needed 1o meet the
working capital requirements of the jointly controlled operations

Counterparty risk

The Group undertakes significant financial transactions only with
counterparties that have strong ¢rednt ratings The limits and
requirements in respect of such transactions are reviewed regularly
by the Board of Carihon plc

Foreign exchange

The Group hedges all significant currency transaction exposures
using forergn exchiange nisk management techrmques In order to
protect the Group's balance sheet from the impact of exchange
rate volatility, foreign currency net assets are hedged using
matching currency toans equivalent to at teast 60 per cent of
the net asset value, where these assets exceed the equivalent
of £10 million Profits arising wathin overseas subsidiaries are
not hedged unless 1t 1s planned to make a distrbution Such
distributions are then treated as currency transactions and
hedged accordingly

The average and year-end exchange rates used to translate the
Group’s overseas operations were as foliows

Average Year end
(£ sterling) 2009 2008 2009 2008
Middle East (US Dollar} 156 184 161 144
Oman (Rial) 060 071 062 0655
UAE (Dirhams) 572 675 593 528
Canada (Dollar) 178 195 169 177
Trnmdad (Doltar) 981 1152 1023 904

Interest rates

The Group's horrowing facilities are at floating rates of interest
linked to the London Inter Bank Offered Rate, UX base rate or
prevailing local currency interest rates Short-term bank deposits
and foreign currency hedging transactions are executed only with
highly credit-rated authorised counterparties and credit exposures
to counterparties are monitored reqularly so that exposure to any
one counterparty Is either within Board approved imits or approved

by the Board The Group has not entered into interest rate
derivatives to fix or hedge interest rate risk and currently none are
outstanding Certain longer-term assets have been financed using
fixed rate leases

Carilion has invested equity in a number of Joint Venture Specal
Purpose Companies (SPC) to deliver Public Private Partnership
projects SPCs obtamn funding for these projects in the form of
long-term bank loans or corporate bonds without recourse to
the Joint Venture partners and secured on the assets of the SPC
A number of SPCs have entered into interest rate dervatives as
a means of hedging interest rate nsk These derivates are
interest rate swaps that effectively fix the rate of interest payable

Credit nisk
An analysss of the Group's credit risk 15 provided in Note 27 on
page 95

Goeing concern

The Group’s business actvities, together with the factors likely

to affect its future development, performance and position, the
finanaial positton of the Group, its cash flows, lquidity position
and borrowing faciities are described in Section 3 on pages 12 to
29, entitted 'Our Performance’ In addition, note 27 to the financial
statements includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes
for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives,
details of its financal instruments and hedging activities and its
exposures 10 credit and hiqundity nsk

The Group has considerable financtal resources together

with long-term contracts with a number of customers and
suppliers across different gecgraphic areas and industries

As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group s well
placed to manage its business nsks successfully despite the
current uncertain economic outlook

The Directors confirm that, after making enquines, they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the

going concern basis in preparnng the finanaal statements

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Director
3 March 2010
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Our performance

Sustainability review

In this section of our Annual
Report we provide a summary

of what we are doing to make
our business more sustainable A
more detailled account is provided
in our 2009 Sustainabiiity Report,
which will be published on our
website www.carlillionplc.com/
sustainability in April 2010.
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Strategy

We have a well-established strategy mode! for sustainable
development, which 1s aligned with the four prionty areas defined
by the UK Government in its sustainable development strategy,
‘Securing the Future’, namely

> Sustainable communities and workforce

> Natural resource protection and environmental enhancement
> Climate change and energy

> Sustainable consumption and production

We have identified 12 behaviours and activities across these four
priority areas, as llustrated in the diagram below, which affect the
delivery of our business objectives




Managing sustainabihity

QOur commitment to sustamability 1s driven by our Board, supported
by a Sustainability Committee This Commuttee is chaired by our
Chief Executive, John McDonough, and ncludes a number of
Executive and Senior Directors The Committee also benefits from
expert advice from two external members, Dame Julia Cleverdon,
Vice President of Business in The Community (BITC) and Jonathan
Porntt, Founder Director of Forum for the Future

The Sustarnability Commuitee 15 supported by a Sustainability
Forum, compnsing our senior business leaders, that informs the
development of our sustainabiity strategy, shares best practice and
ensures the effective dissemination of our sustainability strategy
and policies to our business units All our business urits have a
sustainability plan and objectives, which form an integral part of
therr annual business plans Our seventh annual Sustainability
Woeek was again organised to coincide with World Environment
Day In 2009, our focus for sustainability week was on carbon
reduction and our chosen chanty for the week was The Prince’s
Trust, for which we raised over £6,500 from employees’
fundraising activities We chose The Prince’s Trust, because we
already support the work it does to promote more sustainable
practices, for example the ‘Get Into Construction’ programme

Qur performance

In 2008, Carlion was included n the Top 20 UK companies in
the Sunday Times Best Green Companies We also continued
to improve our ranking i1 BITC's Corporate Responsibility Index,
maoving up from a ‘Gold’ to a ‘Platinum’ ranking, with a score
of 96 5 per cent The Corporate Responsibility Index involves a
detalled, independent assessment of Carillion’s sustainability
strategy, management processes and performance Such
assessments enable us to benchmark our performance against
other companies, including those in different market sectors

Carnllion continues to be a member of the FTSE4Good Index and
this year we submitted a full response to the Carbon Disclosure
Project for the first time

Our Middle East and North Africa (MENA) business won the
Corporate Social Responsibifity {CSR) of the Year Award and the
Build Safe UAE Award for best practice, at the 2009 Construction
Week Awards held in Dubai To win this award, our MENA
business had to demonstrate that it has its employees’ welfare
and that of the community at heart Our MENA business was
speaifically recognised for 1ts efforts to protect the environment
through efficient waste management techniques and a number
of dlean-up campaigns

Our Joint Venture business, Al Futtaim Carnllion, received The
Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) award for ‘Build Safe UAF’
for its diligent and ngorous efforts to make 1ts construction sites
across the Middle East as safe as possible and by taking a very
active role (n the Build Safe UAE programme

In 2009, as well as continuing to set speafic sustainability targets
for each of our business groups and for the Group as a whole,
we focused on a number of important speafic areas, namely

> embedding our carbon reduction strategy into all areas of
our business with action plans to support the delvery of our
target to reduce carbon emissions by 50 per cent by 2010,
measured against a 2006 baseline

> delivening the commitment we have made to halve the
volume of construction waste sent to landfill by 2012

> through the Business Action on Homelessrness programme,
enabling 100 candidates to gain valuable two-week
work placements in our businesses and supporting their
re-introduction to employment

> working with communities and in particular ensuring that
at least one per cent of our pre-tax profits are given in cash
or kind to community activities

> monitoring progress with implementing our apprenticeshtp
charter to ensure at least 250 apprentices are gaming
valuable work expenence on our contracts and projects and

> delivertng our commitments on sustainable procurement
through applying the framework methodology developed by
the UK Government's Sustainable Procurement Task Force

The Group's sustanability targets for 2009 were based on

14 speafic and measurable targets In order 1o drive continuous
improvement we set demanding targets and our performance
agamnst them 15 independently venfied by Bureau Ventas A full
report on what we have achieved will be published in our 2009
Sustamnability Report, in Apnl 2010
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QOur performance

Sustainability review
continued

Sustainable communities and workforce

Creating a sustainable business requires the commitment of ail our
people We seek to achieve this through our Health and Safety,
leadership, personal development and employee engagement
programmes, which are descnbed in more detall on pages 16,

17, 37 and 38

How we do business 1s based on our belief that 1t s not only
what we do that matters, but also how we do 1t, which drives
our commitment to living our values in everything we do We
make Values Awards 1o our people to recognise the outstanding
contributions they make to our success in delivering an excellent
service 1o our customers and to creating a positive impact on the
communities In which we operate

We feel proud that our people are also winning prestigious
awards Our Group Chief Engineer, Professor Quentin Leiper,
was awarded the CBE in Her Majesty the Queen’s 2009 Birthday
Honours List Quentin receved the award for services to the
Sustamnabihty agenda as an employee of Carillion and also

as a former President of the Institution of Civil Engineers

Cartlhon Bullding’s Tony Fleming won the Business in the
Community (BITC) Midlands Region, Volunteer of the Year Award
Tony received this award for showing exceptional commitment

to volunteering, through Carillion, to make a positive impact on
his local community Tony, who was also a Business Action on
Homelessness champion, has now retired from Carillion, but
remains committed to his involvermnent in the Carilien programme

Our commitment to sustainable communities also extends beyond
the roles played by our own people We have a community
engagement strategy for all cur major worksites and projects

and we encourage our people to understand how Canllion ¢an
have positive impacts on the communities i which we operate
and to participate in community activities

Carillion gives over one per cent of its pre-tax profits in cash or

in kind to community activities We are a national partner in the
Business Action on Homelessness (BACH) campaign, designed

to help homeless people break the cycle of ‘no home, no job’

and since becoming a partner n 2006 we have assisted over 100
homeless people every year on therr journey to full employment
As 2009 marked Carillion's tenth anniversary as an independent
company, we donated £25,000 to chanties in the UK, Canada and
the Middle East Donations of £500 were made to 50 different
chanties, nominated by our employees

As one of the UK's leading providers of training for support
services and construction skills, we continue to work with the
Construction Industry Training Board and contrbute to the
development of individuals and communities In 2009, 69 per cent
of our apprentices successfully completed their traning in one of
our 18 UK training centres, including 258 people who were trained
through The Prince's Trust ‘Get into Construction’ programme
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National resource protection and

environmental enhancement

What we do and how we do it can have significant impacts on
the use of natural resources and the environment We use our
knowledge and skills to develop sustamnable service solutions for
customers to create positive Impacts in these areas

Carilion has developed and implemented environmental
martagement systems across the Group and all our UK and Middle
East and North Africa operations are accredited to 1ISO14001 by a
registered third party

The preservation of natural habstats and the wildlife they support
15 Important both socially and envircnmentally Since 2000, we
have supported the UK Wildlife Trusts through the Carillion Natural
Habitats Fund, and to date we have given over £255,000 to the
Trusts to support 44 projects The local Wildlife Trusts, which care
for almost 2,500 nature reserves across the country, are able to
apply for a grant from the Fund to support a conservation project
We also encourage our employees to work with their local Wildlife
Trusts on these projects to improve nature conservation, especially
where projects are close to Canllion offices or worksites

In recognition of our ongoing commitment to Integrate
sustainabdity into everything we do, we have adepted the UK
Government's Sustainable Procurement Taskforce (SPTF) ‘Flexible
Framework' This framework provides a step-by-step approach to
demanstrating leadership 1n sustainable procurement and we have
plans in place to achieve the requirements of each phase of the
framework

Carlion continues to be a member of the WWF-UK Forest and
Trade Network (FTN) and durning 2009 we continued to work
towards ensuring we use timber products from sources certified by
the Forest Stewardship Counal on all our projects We report the
volumes and sources of the imber we use to the WWF-UK FTN
annually and develop detaled action plans for improvement




Climate change and energy

Climate change i1s increasingly recognised as the most serious
long-term threat to human prosperity and lifestyle The effective
management and reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
has become increasingly important, as it 1s now widely accepted
that companies will need to make substantial changes to the ways
inwhich they operate, if we are to respond effectively to this threat

In 2007, Carillion set the challenging target of reducing its direct
carbon emissions by 50% by 2010 This target will be measured
against the Group's 2006 carbon emissions, adjusted for revenue
growth In order to achieve this target, we have developed a
carbon reduction strategy and policy, which involves measunng
and reporting our carbon footprint each quarter, in accordance
with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol carbon accounting standard
Qur carbon footprint covers our direct emissions generated from
buldings, transport, travel, waste and from plant powered by fossil
fuel on project sites

We are focusing on our activities in areas where we can have the
greatest direct impact by reduaing carbon emissions generated by

> employee business travel
> commercial vehicles

> plant fuel

> Canllion offices

In order to manage our carbon emissions effectively, we have
begun a programme of work to understand our indirect impacts
and in 2010 we will be trialing our models for managing these
)mpacts on a selection of construction sites

In 2009, we continued to develop our understanding of how our
operations affect cimate change, together with our commitment
to developing new measures to reduce these effects We regard
this as fundamental to the development of our business and we
have also linked this to other measures we are pursuing, including
the reduction of our overall cost base We continue to promote
the use of telephone and video conferencing to reduce the need
to travel, introduced more fuel efficient cars and procured all

the electricity we use from renewable or chmate change
levy-exempt sources We are also working with our customers to
provide sustamable bullding, infrastructure and lfetime facilities
management and services

Our 2009 sustanability report provides more information on our
carbon reduction programme and will be published in April 2010
on our website

Sustamnable consumption and production

Carnillion’s leadership in developing and implementing its
sustainability strategy model, which relates our impacts on the
environment and on society to business performance, has made
a major contnbution to the Group’s nsk management policies
and processes

These peolices and processes address strategic nisks and those
specific to indmdual businesses and contracts, indluding economic,
social, environmental and ethical risks, and are therefore
fundamental to the management of the Group and all its
operations

We believe that our leadership in sustainability differentiates us
from our competitors We seek to understand the needs of our
customers and their objectives in respect of sustainability and to
use our knowledge and skills to meet their needs by developing
sustainable service solutions We also seek to promote sustainable
solutions by explaining to our customers how a sustainable
approach can not only create positive impacts on the environment
and on socety, but also reduce costs, increase efficency and
improve the quality of the services we offer

For example, Carlion recently secured the prestigious Pubhic
Private Partnership project to finance, design, build and operate
the new Southmead Hospital in Bristol The delvery of sustainable
solutions for all aspects of this project were key to Carillion's
success, as Carillion and the North Bristol NHS Trust are both
committed to achieving the highest standards of sustainability
The project will nvolve creating a state-of-the-art buillding that wall
be the most sustainable masor acute hospital in the UK, with low
energy utiisation and a carbon footpnnt below the government
target of 3 43Te CO, a year This demonstrates how Carillion’s
leadership in sustainability helps to differentiate us from our
competitors and contributes 1o the strong positions we hold in
our chosen market sectors
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Governance

Board of Directors

01 Philip Rogerson

Chairman

Age 65 Philip was appainted to the Board in October 2004
becoming Chairman n May 2005 He is Chairman of the
Nomnations Committee Philip 1s also Chairman of Aggreko plc
and Bunzl plc He was an Executive Director of BG ple from 1992
1o 1998, latterly as Deputy Chairman Phitip joined the Board of
Bunzl plc on 1 January 2010 becormung Chairman on 1 March 2010
In order to take up this appomtment, Philip retired as Chairman
of Northgate plc on 31 December 2009 and as a Non-Executive
Director of Dawis Service Group plc on 28 February 2010

02 John McDonough

Group Chief Executive

Age 58 John was appointed Group Chief Executive In January
2001 having formerly been Vice President, Integrated Facilities
Management, Europe, the Middle East and Africa of Johnson
Controls Inc He 1s Chairman of the CBI's Construction Councail
and a member of the CBI's President’s Committee John s a
Non-Executive Director of Tomkins plc where he 1s also Chairman
of the Remuneration Commuittee John 1s a member of the
Nominations Committee

03 Richard Adam

Group Finance Director

Age 52 Richard was appointed Group Finance Director in April
2007 He qualified as a chartered accountant with KPMG in 1982
and gained broad expenence in a number of public and private
company finance director roles from the age of 30 Immediately
prior to joinmg Carilion, Richard was Group Finance Director of
Associated British Ports Holdings plc He 1s also a Non-Executive
Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of SSL
International plc
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04 David Garman

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Age 58 Appointed to the Board in September 2004, David is
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit and Nominations Committees Dawvid was Group Chief
Executive of TDG plc until its takeover in 2008 before which he
was an Executive Director of Associated British Foods plg, having
previously held sentor positions in a number of leading UK food
companies He 15 also a Non-Executive Director of Phoenix IT
Group plc and a Director of the Oakwood Partnership Ltd

05 Richard Howson

Executive Director

Age 41 Richard was appointed to the Board on 10 December
2009 with responstbility for Canllion’s UK Building, Private Finance
and Middle East and North Africa businesses Richard has been
the Managing Director of Carillion's Middle East and North Africa
businesses since June 2007 prior to which he held senior positions
In the Group's Infrastructure and Bullding businesses Richard has
groupwide responsibility for health and safety matters

04 05




06 Don Kenny

Executive Director

Age 55 Don was appointed to the Board in September 2006

and 1s responstble for much of Canllion's Support Services

business Don also has responsibility for the Group's sustainability
programme He joined Carillion from Johnsen Controls Inc in 2002,
having held a number of senior positions in lohnson Controls and
prior to that in Mowlem plc Don is a member of the CBI's Public
Services' Strategy Board He 1s a chartered certified accountant

07 David Maloney

Non-Executive Director

Age 54 Dawvid was appointed to the Board n November 2005
and 1s Chatrman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nominations and Remuneration Committees Dawid 1s Chairman
of Hoseasons Holdings Ltd and a Non-Executive Director of

Micro Focus International ple, Ludorum ple, Cineworld Group ple
and Enterprise Inns plc He 15 also Chairman of the Board of
Trustees for Make a Wish Foundation UK Before taking up these
appointments, Dawvid held senior positions in a number of services
sector companies, including Chief Financial Officer for Le Mendien
Hotels and Resorts Limited, Chief Financial Officer for Thomson
Travel Group (Holdings) plc and Group Finance Director of Avis
Europe plc

06 07

08 Steve Mogford

Non-Executive Director

Age 53 Steve was appointed to the Board in September 2006
and 1s a member of the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration
Commuttees Steve s Chief Executive of SELEX Galileo Limited, a
Finmeccanica company, which he joined in May 2007 From April
2000 to May 2007, he was a Director of BAE Systems plc with
responsibility for fixed wing military arrcraft and naval business

09 Vanda Murray OBE

Non-Executive Director

Age 49 Vanda was appointed to the Board in June 2005 and

15 @ member of the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration
Commuttees Vanda is Deputy Chairman of the North West
Development Agency and is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute

of Marketing She is also a Non-Executive Director of SIG plc and
The Manchester Airport Group plc Vanda was Chief Executive
Officer of Blick plc from 2001 to 2004, a Dwrector of Ultraframe plc
from 2002 to 2006, Non-Executive Chairman of Eazyfone Lirruted
from 2006 to 2009 and has also served as a Trustee and
Non-Executive Director of The Manufacturing Institute She was
appointed OBE in 2002 for Services to Industry and to Export
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Governance

Report of the Directors

The Directors of Carillion plc
present their report to the
Company and confirm that at the
date of this Report, and as far as
they are individually aware, the
Company’s auditors are aware

of all relevant audit information
and each Director has taken all
reasonable steps to make himself
or herself aware of relevant audit
iInformation and to establish that
the Company’s auditors are aware
of that information.

The Directors’ report should be read in conjunction with the
Charman’s statement, the Group Chief Executive’s review, the
Operating and financial review, the Corporate Governance report
and the Remuneration report which are incorporated by reference
n {and shall be deemed to form part of) this report

Principal activities and business review

Carillion is one of the UK’s largest support services companies,
with a substantial portfolio of Public Private Partnership projects
and extensive construction capabilities The Group has operations
in the UK, the M:ddle East and in Canada and the Canbbean

A review of the Group's businesses, financial performance and
future developments i1s contained in the Chairman's statement,
Group Chief Executive's review and the Operating and financial
review

The following specific 1ssues are discussed in the sections shown
in brackets

> achievements in respect of the Group's Key Performance
Indicators (KPl) in 2009 and the KPls set for 2010 (Group Chief
Executive’s review ~ see pages 16 to 19)

> finanaial performance in 2009 (Operating and financial review
- see pages 20 to 29)

> principal operational nsks and nsk management (Group Chief
Executive’s review — see page 16)
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> treasury policy and financial nsk management (Operating and
financial revew — see pages 28 10 29)

> social, community and environmenial issues (Sustainability
review — see pages 30 to 33)

> resources and employees (Group Chief Executive’s review —
see page 16 and Report of the Directors — see pages 37 to 38}

Analysis of turnover and net assets by business segment and
geographical location are given in Note 2 to the financial
staternents on page 66

Share capital
Canllion has only one ¢lass of shares, with one vote for every share

Profits and dividends
The consolidated income statement 1s shown on page 56 Profit
befare tax was £147 7 milhon (2008 £115 9 million)

A 2009 intenm dividend of 4 6 pence per ordinary share (2008

4 1 pence) was paid in November 2009 It 1s proposed to pay a
final dwidend of 10 O pence per ordinary share (2008 8 9 pence)
on 18 June 2010 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 23 April 2010 The payment of these 2009 interm and
final dmidends amounts to £579 mullion {2008 £51 4 million)

A dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) will also be offered allowing
shareholders a conventent means of reinvesting their dividends in
the Company by buying further shares A DRIP application form
1s avallable from the share registrar, EQuiniti (see page 122 for
contact details)

Dwrectors

The Directors of the Company who served dunng 2009 are shown
on page 48 of the Remuneration Report Biographical details for
each Director at 31 December 2009 are given on pages 34 and 35

Richard Howsoen was appointed a Drrector on 10 December 2009
and will hald office until the Annual General Meeting on 5 May
2010 at which, being eligible, he offers tumself for election
Richard Howson has a contract of service which 15 subject to one
year's notice of terrmination by the Company

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Richard Adam,

Don Kenny, John McDonough and Steve Mogford retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting on 5 May 2010 Richard Adam, Don Kenny and
John McDancugh have contracts of service all of which are subject
1o one year's notice of termination by the Company

Roger Robinson served as an executive director until he stood
down from the Board in May 2009 Roger was appointed to the
Board of Canfien ple in May 1999 and had groupwide
responsibility for Canllion’s UK infrastructure and international
businesses in the Middle East and Canada and the Canbbean He
was also the Board member responsible for Group Health and
Safety matters




David Hurcomb served as an executive director until he stood
down from the Board in December 2009 having been appointed
to the Board on 1 January 2008 David had responsibility for
Canllion's UK Bullding and PFl businesses

The interests of the Directors and therr families in the share capital
of the Company are shown on page 39

Indemnity

To the extent permitted by the Companies Acts, the Company may
indemnify any Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company
agamnst any lability and may purchase and maintain insurance
against any lability The Company purchased and maintained
throughout 2009, Directors’ and Officers’ lability insurance

Conflicts of interest

The Company’s Articles of Association permit the Board to
consider and, if it sees fit, to authorise situations where a Director
has an interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the
interests of the Company The Board considers that the procedures
it has in place for reporting and considenng conflicts of interest
are effective

Key contractual arrangements

There are no persons with whom the Group or Company has
contractual or other arrangements, who are deemed to be
essential 1o the business of the Group or Company

Employees
Information relating to employee numbers and remuneration 1s
given in Note 7 on page 73

Employees are key to achieving Canlhon's business strategy and the
Group i1s committed to improwving therr skills through training and
development and through nurturing a culture in which employees
feel valued for the contributions they make to the Company and
motivated to achieve therr full potential

Canfhon’s core values of openness, collaboration, mutual
dependency, sustainable profitable growth, professional delivery
and innovation help to differentiate Canilion from its competitors
by creating a culture in which everyone in Canillion 1s encouraged
to understand the needs of their customers and to work in
partnership with customers and supplers to deliver high-quality,
value-for-money services

It is Canllion’s aim to foster a working erwaronment in which all
employees are treated with courtesy, dignity and respect Carillion
strives continually to elininate all bias and unlawful discimination
in relation to job applicants, employees, business partners and
members of the public

The objectives of Canllion’s Equal Qpporturity and Diversity Policy
are to

> have a workforce that represents and responds to the diversity
of customers and today's socety

> \mprove safety and quality delivered through a balanced and
productive workforce

> develop the Group’s public mage and market reputation and to
improve links with the communities in which 1t operates

> adhere to legal requirements

> reduce employee turnover, absenteeistm and sickness levels and
thereby reduce costs and improve efficiency

> provide a fair working environment in which discimination s not
tolerated

> create a working environment free from discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and bullying

> waork towards finding ways in which under-represented groups
can fully realise their potential wathin the Group and to take
reasonable steps to help such groups

> ensure that all employees are aware of the Group Equal
Opportunities and Diversity Policy and to provide any necessary
ongoing training to enable them to comply with 1t

> be an organisation that understands and values employee
diversity and recogrises the merts of having a workforce that
reflects the diverse backgrounds and skills available within the
total population and accordingly provides all employees with
opporturuties to develop and reach therr full potential

Carilion places great importance on open and regular
communication with employees threugh both formal and informal
processes As part of this commitment, a Group newspaper,
‘Spectrum’, 1s produced on a regular basis for all employees

The views of employees on matters atfecting their interests

and the success of Canllion are also sought through ‘The Great
Debate’, ‘People Forums’, “Team Talks', and one-to-one meetings
between employees and therr ine managers

The ‘Great Debate’ 15 a major exeraise, which has been undertaken
by the Group tn each of the last six years, involving a wide range of
emptoyees that forms a statistically sigrificant sample In 2009,
around 3,900 UK employees took part in ‘The Great Debate” The
results of each Great Debate are used to inform and guide the
development of work related initratives as part of Carillon’s
strategy to become an employer of choice

Canllion pfec
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Governance

Report of the Directors
continued

‘The Great Debate’ forms part of the Group's ongoing
programme to

> engage with employees to improve motivation and morale

> empower employees to contribute to the Group's development
both as an employer and as a business

> demonstrate Carillion's commitment to listening to, and
responding to, the views of 1ts employees

Carllion also involves, engages and consults with employees
through ‘People Forums’, which give employees an opportunity
10 express thewr views on business issues The main objectives of
the 'People Forums’ are to

> improve employee information and consultation

> help employees feel more involved and valued

> support the continued education and development of
employees

> improve business performance by improving the awareness of
employees to the business climate in which they operate

> help employees to be responsive and better prepared for
change

‘Teamn Talks’, which are held monthly, provide Carllion empioyees
with a face-to-face communicatton with ther ne managers

and facilitates two-way communication, discussion and feedback
It focuses on local issues and key corporate messages and
information

One-to-one meetings between individual emptoyees and therr ine
managers are also held to discuss performance and progress in
order to help all employees to develop and reach their full potental

Employees can also exchange best practice information via a
Business Exchange forum on the Group intranet

Canllion seeks to involve all employees in its leading-edge
programmes 1o integrate safety into every aspect of the Group’s
operations and to improve 1ts environmental performance,
including the understanding and application of the prinaiples

of sustamability Further information on Health and Safety 1s
given in the Group Chief Executive’s review on page 17 and on
Sustainability in the Sustainability review on pages 30 to 33

Employees with disabilities

Carilhon 1s committed to providing equal opportunitres to all
employees and s supportive of the employment and advancement
of disabled and disadvantaged persons Employees who become
disabled are, wherever possible, retramed or provided with
equipment s that they can continue their employment

Share Capital and Shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, the 1ssued share capital of the Company
compnsed a single dass of ordinary shares of 50 pence each

The authonsed share caprtal of the Company 1s £350 milfion,
comprising 700 million ordinary shares of 50 pence each Details
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of shares issued during the year and outstanding options are given
in Notes 23 and 25 on pages 88 and 90 to the consolidated
financial statements which form part of this report Detalls of the
share schemes in place are also provided on pages 50 to 53 of the
Remuneration Report

On a show of hands at a general meeting of the Company, every
holder of ordinary shares present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote shall have one vote and, on a poll, every holder of
ordinary shares present in person or by proxy and entitled io vote,
shall have one vote for every ordinary share held

The notice of Annual General Meeting specifies deadlines for
exercising voting nghts and apponting a proxy or proxies to vote in
refation to resoluttons to be put to the Annual General Meeting

All proxy votes are counted and the numbers far, against or
withheld in relation to each resolutton are announced and
published on the Company’s websie after the meeting

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the
Company other than in relation to certain restrictions that are
imposed from time to time by aws and regulations (for exarmple
insider trading laws) tn addstion, pursuant to the Listing Rules of
the Finanaal Services Authority, Directors and certain officers and
employees of the Group require the approval of the Company to
deal In ordinary shares of the Company

The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that restrict the transfer of shares or voting nghts
attached to the shares

At 3 March 2010, the Company had recewved formal notification
under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following
material holdings in its shares

Number of shares held Percentage
Schroders plc 59,520,743 14 98
Standard Life Investments Ltd 32,079,188 807
F&C Asset Management pic 19,246,558 4 84
Legal & General Group Plc 15,783,867 397
HBOS plc 14,036,048 353
UBS Investment Bank 13,424,716 338

Policy for payment of suppliers

The Group's policy s that its mdvidual businesses should agree
terms and conditions for transactions with 1ts suppliers and for
payment to be made on these terms providing suppliers meet
their obligations to the businesses’ satisfaction The Group as a
whole does not apply a general payment policy as this would
not be practicable or appropnate, given the diverse nature of
the transactions undertaken by its business units The Company
does not have any trade creditors

The number of days credit outstanding for the Group averaged
58 days at 31 December 2009 (65 days at 31 December 2008}




Change of control

A number of agreements take effect, alter or terminate upon
a change of control of the Company following a takeover bid,
such as bank oan agreements and employee share plans

Canlhion’s main ¢crednt facilities, including the £590 million
Syndicated Multicurrency Revolving Credit Facifity dated

4 September 2007, contain a provision such that in the event of
a change of control any lender may, within a Imrted time period
and if 1t so requires, notify the Company that it wishes to cancel
its commutment Any such cancellation of commitment and the
repayment of any outstanding borrowings will occur on the date
faling 30 days after the date of the change of control

Chantable and political contributions

Payments for chantable purposes made by the Group dunng the
year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to £200,000 (2008
£129,000) The primary beneficianies of these charitable donations
were The Transformation Trust, The Whldhfe Trust, the British
Occupational Health Research Foundation, Business in the
Community, CRASH, RedR and The Prince’s Trust

The Carnllion Group also contributes more than one per ¢ent of
profits per annum in cash or in-kind (staff ume on community
projectsy to community actvities and 1s a corporate member of
Business in the Community

The Company and its subsidiaries made no political donations
during the penod under review

Financial Instruments

Information on the Candlion Group's use of financial nstruments,
financial nsk management objectives and pohicies and exposure is
given In Note 27 on page 92 of the consolidated financial
staternents

Directors’ share interests

Ordinary shares

The beneficial interests of the Directors and therr immediate
families in the ordinary share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2009 are shown below

Fully paid 50p Asat 1 January 2009 As at 31 Decemnber 2009
ordinary shares owned Number Number
Executive Director

Richard Adam 15,647 16,419
Richard Howson 2,331 2,435
Den Kenny 88,153 92,505
John McDonough 794,083 992,211
Non-Executive Directors

Dawd Garman 14,300 14,300
David Maloney 10,000 10,000
Steve Mogford - -
Vanda Murray 12,300 12,300
Philip Rogerson 39,630 39,630

There has been no change in Directors” interests in the penod
1 January 2010 to 3 March 2010

Additional information for shareho!ders

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the
Company I1s governed by its Articles of Association, the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance and the Companies Act 2006
and related legislation The Articles of Association themselves may
be amended by special resolution of the shareholders The powers
of the Board are detalled on pages 41 and 42 of the Corporate
Governange report

The Directors were authorised at the 2009 AGM to purchase

the Company’s own shares within certain limits Although no
such purchases were made dunng the financial year, the Directors
will seek approval to renew this authonity at the 2010 AGM

{see below)

In September 2009 the Office of Fair Trading (OFT} imposed a
penalty of £5 4m on Canllion JM Limited (formerly Mowlem)
following the conclusion of the OFT's nvestigation of cover priang
in the construction industry {under the Competition Act 1998}
The penalty relates to Carillion JM Limited’s construction business
and relates entirely to the penod pnor to Canlion JM Limited’s
acquisition by Carillion No other member of the Group was
subject to the investigation

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 12 noon on
Wednesday 5 May 2010 at Austin Court, 80 Cambridge Street,
Birmingham B1 2NP The notice of the Annual General Meeting
accompanies this Annual Report and Accounts

Included in the AGM business are the following proposals

() to renew the authonty for the Company to purchase its
own shares (As at 31 December 2009, the Company had
authonty from shareholders for the purchase of 39,571,417
of its own shares)

(n) 1o adopt new Articles of Association that fully comply with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Auditor

Resolutions to re-appoint KPMG Audit PIc as audrtor and to
authonse the Drrectors to determine 1ts remuneration will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Approved by order of the Board

CJCJTW

R F Tapp
Secretary
3 March 2010
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Governance

Corporate Governance report

The Board is firmly committed
to high standards of corporate
governance

General prinaples

The Board 1s firmly committed to high standards of corporate
governance Duning the year to 31 December 2009, as detalled
below and in the Remuneration report on page 47, the Company
complied with both the main principles and the prowisions set out
in Section 1 of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
{June 2008) except In respect of Board Balance {principle A 3 2)
The reason for non-comphance in this matter s explamned on
page 41 of this report Since the Annual General Meeting on

6 May 2008, the Company has been fully comphant with the
Combined Code

Ethics and Business Integrity Policy

Carnlhon has a dear and uneguivocal approach to business integnty
and ethics which underlies the Group's core values of openness,
collaboration, mutual dependency, sustainable profitable growth,
professional delivery and innovation The Ethrcs and Integnity Policy
15 designed to ensure that Cariflion will conduct 11s business to the
hughest ethical standards

The policy applies to ali employees of any Canllion Group
company The way Canlhon delivers this policy 1s reflected in the
way the Group competes for business and delivers its services,
focused on quality, value for money and the reliabiity and
reputation of its employees

Canlhan plc
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The policy 15

> business integnty we do not give or accept bribes, we do
not sanction or accept any lllegal payments, allowances,
or gifts-in-kind, we investgate fully all alleged breaches of
this policy and will dismiss any employee who has breached
this polcy

> mutual respect we do what we say we will do, we treat our
people farly and with respect at all times, avoiding
discrmination and bullying, we prowide a safe and healthy
working environment, and respect sustainable principles in all
the Group's operations

> trust we engender trust within our work groups and companies,
respecting diverse traditions and cultures, we respect the trust
placed n us by others, not least when we are asked to take
responsibitity for aspects of their business or resources, we
maintain and demand high professional standards and demand
hcnesty and openness, we avoid conflicts of interest wherever
possible, and we proactively declare any unavordable conflicts
for open scrutiny and resolution

> legality we respect the rule of law in all our dealings, we clearly
communicate procedures for disciplining those who do not
comply with the law or our standards and polices, we maintan
a system for confidential reporting of breaches of our standards
and policies

> human nights we support the belef that human nghts are
universal and adhere to the principles of human rights in our
operations, we support the United Nations Uriversal Declaration
on Human Rights

This policy 1s applied into Carillion’s business through a series

of detalled procedures They allow Carillion to carry Into practice
its reputation for conducting business to the highest ethical
standards, which are essential to its relatonships with customers,
business pariners, employees, shareholders and the public

The detailed procedures reflect the way Carillion competes for
business, through the quality and value of its work and through
the rehability and reputation of its people

The Ethics and Business integrity Policy and rits implementation
I1s reviewed annually by the Board The policy 1s currently under
review 1n hght of the Bribery Bill




Directors

The Board

Wwith effect from 6 May 2009, the Company has been led by a
Board cormprising four Executive and five Non-Executive Directors
The Chairman and each of the Non-Executive Directors are
considered to be independent of management They each have
substantial relevant expenence and have no business or other
relationship that could matenally interfere with their independent
judgement Dawid Garman is the Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director

Between 1 January and 6 May 2009, the Board compnsed five
Executive and five Non-Executive Directors However, Roger
Robmson retired from the Board at the Annual Generat Meeting
on 6 May 2009 such that the Company was once again fully
complant with the prowisions set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance

In accordance with the Combined Code, the Executive Directors’
service contracts are terminable by one year's notice

In 2009, a detalled internal evaluation of the Board's corporate
governance procedures and compliance was conducted by the
Charrman in compnction with the Company Secretary The internal
evaluation took Into account the views of each of the Directors on
(1) the rale of Directors, (n) the performance of the Board, the
Charrman and the Non-Executive Directors, () Board Commuttees
() leadership and culture, (v) Corporate Governance (vi) Directors’
remuneration, {wi) relations with shareholders and {vin) Board
accountability and audit The Board at 1ts meeting in November
20089 reviewed the resuits of the internal evaluation and, where
reguired, 1ssues were acted upon in order to further enhance the
effectiveness of the Board's procedures and working practices
Such an evaluation has been conducted in each of the last eght
years and the intention 1s to repeat it annually In addition, the
performance of each individual Director has been reviewed

g

The division of responsibitities between the Chairman and the
Group Chief Executive has been agreed by the Board and
encompasses the following parameters

> the pnmary job of the Charman of a public company 1s to
provide continuity, expenence and governance while the
Group Chief Executive provides leadership, energy, imagmnation
and the driving force
> the Chairman I1s viewed by investors as the ultimate steward
of the business and the guardian of the interests of all the
shareholders Nonetheless, 1t is essential that the outline of
their respective roles encourages the Charman and Group
Chief Executive to work well together to provide effective and
complementary stewardship
> the Chairman must
—take overall responsibility for the composition and capability
of the Board
- consult regularly with the Group Chief Executive and be
available on a flexible basis for prowiding advice, counsel
and support to the Group Chief Executive
> the Group Chief Executive must
- manage the Executive Directors and the Group's day to
day activities
- prepare and present to the Board strategic options for
growth in shareholder value
- set the operating plans and budgets required to deliver
the agreed strategy
~ ensure that the Group has in place appropriate nsk
management and control mechanisms

The Board had a programme of ten meetings n 2009 and 1t
also met on an ad hoc basis as required

A formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board for
consideration and decision 1s maintained These matters include

> statutory 1ssues such as the approval of final and interm
financial statements and the recommendation of dividends

> appointments to, and removals from, the Board and the terms
of reference and membership of Board commitiees

> approval of Group strategy and annual budgets

> approval of authonity levels, financial and treasury policies

> authonsation for any acquisiion or disposal

> review of the internal control arrangements and risk
management strategies

> review of corporate governance arrangements

The Executive Directors and the Cardlion subsidiary comparues
operate within clearly defined limits of authonty delegated by the
Board and any matters outside of these imits must be referred to
the Board for consideration

Canthon plc 4 ‘I
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Governance

Corporate Governance report
continued

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary, whois
responsible to the Board for ensurning that agreed procedures and
apphcable rules and regulations are observed The Board approves
the appomntment and removal of the Company Secretary

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice when necessary, at the expense of the
Company

The Board 1s provided with regular and timely information on the
financial performance of businesses within the Group, and of the
Group as a whole, together with reports on trading matters,
markets, sustainability and other relevant 1ssues

Board Committees

The principal Board Committees are the Remuneration Commuttee,
the Audit Committee and the Nominations Committee The
Company Secretary acts as secretary 1o each of these committees
The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees are
avatlable on the Carillion website at www carillionplc com or on
request from the Company Secretary

The membership of each of the principal committees is as follows

Remuneration Committee
David Garman, Chairman
David Maloney

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Committee consists entirely of independent Non-Executive
Directors and has a key role in reviewing and adwvising the Board on
the appropriate remuneration for the Executive Directors of
Carillion plc Further details on remuneration issues are given on
pages 47 to 53

Audit Committee

David Maloney, Chairman
David Garman

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

This Commuttee consists entirely of independent Non-Executive
Directors For further information see the Report of the Audit
Committee on pages 44 t0 46

Nominations Committee
Philip Rogerson, Chairman
David Garman

David Maloney

John McDonough

Steven Mogford

Vanda Murray

42 Canlhon pic
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The Commuttee reviews the structure, size, composition, balance of
skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes that
are deemed desirable The Commuttee also reviews succession
planning to ensure that processes and plans are in place with
regard to both Board and semor appointments

Attendance at meetings in 2009
The number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings
attended by each Director during 2009 was as follows

Audit Remuneration Nonwnations
Board  Committee  Commuttee  Committee

Number of

meetings held 10 4 3 1
Richard Adam 10 - - -
David Garman 10 4 3 1
David Hurcomb* 9 - - -
Don Kenny 10 - - -
David Maloney 0 4 3 1
John McDenough 10 - - 1
Steven Mogford 9 4 3 1
Vanda Murray 10 4 3 1
Roger Robinson* 4 - - -

10 - -

—_

Philip Rogerson

*  Roger Rogerson retived 2s a Director on 6 May 2003 and David Hurcomb on
8 December 2009

Richard Howson was apponited to the Beard on 10 December 2009 which was after the
completion of the 2009 schedule of Board meetings

Other Board matters

Policy on external appointments

Recognising that external appamtments can broaden therr
knowledge and so be of benefit to the Company, Executive
Directors are permitted, at the discretion of the Board, to accept a
limited number of such appointments and retam the fees received
for such appaintments John McDonough is 2 Non-Executive
Director of Tomkins plc and Richard Adam 15 a Non-Executive
Director of SSL International plc

Nomination and remuneration of Directors
The appointment of a Director 1s a matter for resolution by the
Board as a whole, taking advice from the Nominations Committee

For Board appointments, the Nominations Commuittee uses the
services of the executive recrutment consultants JCA and Odgers
Details of potential candidates are provided by the consultant

and mitially reviewed by a sub-committee of the Nominations
Commitiee Meetings with selected candidates are then held with
Directors Subsequently, the Nominations Committee meets to
recommend an appointment, which 1s then proposed to the Board
for approval




In the case of Non-Executive Directors, initial appointments are
normally for three years, re-appointment is subject 10 review and 1§
not automatic

The fees of Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board
as a whole, taking into account the commitment required and
participation 1n the work of committees and other advisory services
in relation to the business of the Group In advising the Board on
such fees, it is the policy of the Executive Directors 1o seek
independent external advice concerning the appropriateness of the
amounts by companson with general practice The level of fees
currently payable to the Non-Executive Directors is based on
independent external advice

The remuneration of the Directors 15 dealt with in the
Remuneration Report on pages 47 to 53

Retirement of Directors by rotation

All Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election
at least every three years The Directors retinng and seeking
re-electton at the Annual General Meeting to be held on

5 May 2010 are Richard Adam, Don Kenny, John McDonough
and Steve Mogford

Addrtionally, new Directors are subject to election by shareholders
at the first opportunity following therr appointment Accordingly,
Richard Howsen will seek election at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 5 May 2010

The service contracts of the Executive Directors and the terms and
conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are
avallable for inspection at the registered office of the Company
dunng normal business hours on any weekday (bank holidays
excepted) and at the Annual General Meeting

Induction and development of Directors

Cirectors are provided with a comprehensive information pack on
jaining the Company and are advised of ther legal and other
duties and obligations as a director of a listed company In
addtion, all new Directors receive Induction on therr appoiniment
covering such matters as the operation and activities of the Group,
the role of the Board and the Company’s corporate governance
procedures Directors are also briefed by the Company’s external
advisors, where appropriate, on changes to legislation or
regulation or market practice as well as receving briefings from
business groups throughout the year

At least once a year, the Board visits an operational site and n
November 2009 the Directors visited the Group's operations in
Dubar and Abu Dhabi Directors alsc visit other operations and
meet a wide range of employees

The regular updating of Directors’ skills and knowledge i1s
encouraged and a procedure has been established whereby the
Company Secretary 15 notified by Directors of their requirements in
this respect

Relations with shareholders

in addition to communicating with shareholders generally from
time to time, the Executwe Directors and the Director of Group
Corporate Affarrs meet regularly with representatives of major
shareholders in order to foster the mutual understanding of
objectives Meetings are also held with other shareholders and
prospective shareholders The details of these meetings are
reported to the Board The Charman and Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director are availlable for meetings with
representatives of major shareholders as required

Private and institutional shareholders are encouraged to attend
the Company’s Annuat General Meeting

The Company complies fully with the provisions of the Combined
Code in respect of the notice, content of agenda and conguct of
its Annual General Meetings The Charrmen of the Remuneration
and Audit Committees will be present at the Annual General
Meeting on 5 May 2010 to respond to shareholders' questions

Accountability and Audit

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Commiitee consists entirely of independent Non-
Executive Directors

David Maloney, Charman
David Garman
Steve Mogford
Vanda Murray

David Maloney 15 an accountant who 1s Chairman of Hoseasons
Holdings Ltd and a Non-Executive Director of Micro Focus
International plc, Ludorum plc, Cineworld Group plc and Enterprise
Inns plc He is also Chairman of the Board of Trustees for Make a
Wish Foundation UK Before taking up these appantments, David
held senior positions In a number of services sector companies,
including Chief Financial Officer for Le Mendien Hotels and Resorts
Limited, Chief Financial Officer for Thomson Travel Group
(Holdings) plc and Group Finance Director of Avis Europe plc

Dawvid Garman was Group Chief Executive of TDG plc until its
takeover in 2008 before which he was an Executive Director

of Associated Brrish Foods plc, having previously held senior
positions In 3 number of leading UK food companies He is also a
Non-Executive Director of Phoenix IT Group plc and a Director of
the Oakwood Partnership Ltd

Canllion plg
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Corporate Governance report
continued

Vanda Murray s Deputy Chairman of the North West
Development Agency and Is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing She is also a Non-Executive Drrector of SIG plc and The
Manchester Awrport Group plc Vanda was Chief Executive Officer
of Blick plc from 2001 to 2004, a Director of Ultraframe pl¢ from
2002 to 2006, Non-Executive Chaurman of Eazyfone Limited from
2006 to 2009 and has also served as a Trustee and Non-Executive
Director of The Manufacturing Institute She was appointed OBE
in 2002 for Services 1o Industry and to Export

Steve Mogford s Chief Executive of SELEX Galileo Limited, a
Finmeccanica company, which he joined in May 2007 From April
2000 to May 2007, he was a Director of BAE Systems plc with
responsibility for fixed wing miltary aircraft and naval business

Appointments to the Committee are made by the Board

The Audit Committee has in attendance at meetings, by invitation
of the Committee, Executive Directors, representatives of the
external auditors (KPMG Audit Plc), the Group Head of Risk and
the Head of Internal Audit It 1s also able to invite others as it
requires from time to tme The Commuttee also meets privately
with both the external and internal auditors

The responsibihties of the Audit Commitiee include

> the review of the annual and intenm financial statements

> consideration of the impact of changes to accounting
regulations and the financial and accounting policies of
the Group

> compliance with statutory and other external requirements

> reviewing the role of the internal audit function and the results
of its audit work and the response of management

= reviewing the scope and results of the external audit and rts
cost-effectiveness

> ensuring that the internal and external audnt functions are
complementary

> monitoring the independence and objectivity of the external
audrtors and ensurning that the services provided {inciuding
non-audit services) provide a proper balance between objectivity
and value for money

> recommending to the Board the external auditors to be
proposed to shareholders for appointment

The Commuttee 1s authonsed by the Board to (1) seek any
infarmation necessary to fulfil its duties, (i) call any member of
staft to be gquestioned at a meeting of the Committee as and
when required and (i) obtain external professional advice, at the
Company's expense, which rmight be necessary for the fulfilment
of its duties

Canlhon pl¢
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In 2009, the Committee met on four occasions and dealt with the
following matters

> internal audit reports including control of nisk
> annual and intenm financial statements

> KPMG Audit Plc audit review

> top ten nisks

> reappointment of KPMG Audit Plc

> 2009 external audit plan

> internal audit review

> 2010 miemal audit plan

> assessment of the going concern basis

> review of compliance with the Combined Code
> the external audit fee

The members of the Committee receive fees as Non-Executive
Directors which also reflect their membership of the Audit
Committee and other Board comrmittees Details of remuneration
are given an page 48

Main activities of the Audit Committee In the year

to 31 December 2009

Financial statements

The Audit Committee reviews and discusses with management
and the external auditors the annual and intenm staterments n this
context, the Committee also reviews the written reports of KPMG
Audit Plc on issues ansing from the annual audit and the review of
the interim results

Internal controls

The Board 1s ultimately responsible for the Group’s system of
Iinternal control Thus responsibility ncludes clearly determining the
control environment and reviewsng annually the effectiveness of
the internal control system Howvever, such a system can provide
only reasonable and not absclute assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or loss

In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance for Directors ‘Internal
Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’, the Board
confirms that there 15 an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluatting and managing the significant nsks (hoth financial and
non-financial and including Corporate Social Responsibility risks)
faced by the Group (including Joint Ventures and overseas
businesses) The process has been in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts and I1s regularly reviewed by the Board




Assurance over the design and operation of internal controls across
the Group 1s provided through a combination of techniques

> Internal Audit carnes out audits 10 assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of intarnal controls over the key risks faced by the
business and reports its findings to management, the Executive
Directors and the Audit Committee The Audit Plan 1s presented
to and approved by the Audit Commuttee annually

> recommendations to improve the system of control are made by
Internal Audit The implementation of these recommendations 1s
followed up and reported on quarterly

> Internal Audit independently reviews the rnisk identification
procedures and control processes implemented by management

> a process of Control Risk Self-Assessment 15 used in the Group
where Directors and senior managers are required to detal and
certify controls in operation 1o ensure the control environment in
their business areas 1s appropriate They also confirm annually, in
writing, that nsk management processes and appropriaie
controls are in place and are operating effectively

> Internal Audit advises on aspects of the design and application
of nternal controls in key business projects and on policy and
procedure changes

Internal Audit reports to the Audit Committee on a regular basis
The Audit Committee reviews the assurance procedures and
ensures that the level of confidence required by the Board 15
obtained It also ensures the financial reporting process is credible
and rehable The Audit Commuttee presents its findings to the
Board regularly and the Head of Internal Audit has direct access to
the Audit Committee members

Any significant internal control ssues would be disclosed In this
report On the basis of the assurances given in 2009, no disclosures
In this respect are required

Following a review 1n 2009, the decision was taken to cutsource
the internal audit function to Deloitte LLP After a transition
perod, Deloitte LLP assumed full responsibility for internal

audit in Januvary 2010

Risk management

The Group Head of Risk 1s respansible for advising on strateqic nisk
1ssues across the Group, and for oversight of nisk training The
Group Head of Risk s also responsible for carrying out an
independent appraisal of all projects before submission to the
Major Projects Committee (see below) This apprarsal ensures that
the differentiating factors of the Group’s offer have been properly
identifled so maximising the opportunities available, it also involves
ensunng that alt mherent and residual nsks associated with the
project have been properly identifted and considered

In addition, the Risk Forum, a committee of professionals from
each of the business groups, meets on a quarterly basis to assess
the strategic nisks facing the Canllion Group The conclusions of the
Risk Forum are reported to the Board

Management i1s responsible for the identification and evaluation

of significant risks apphcable to its areas of business together

with the design, operation and monitoring of surtable internal
controls These risks are assessed on a continual basis and may

be associated with a vanety of internal or external scurces,
including control breakdowns, disruption in information systems,
competition, corporate social responsibility, natural catastrophe
and regulatory requirements Management 15 also responsible for
umely and accurate reporting of business performance and for
ensuring complance with the policies set by the Board in its

areas of business Regular performance review meetings are held
where management reports to the Executive Directors on business
performance, risk and internal control matters The results of these
meetings are presented to the Board

The Major Projects Committee, a commitiee of the Board, acts
as the sanctioning body for major commitments and transactions
including caprtal expenditure, major contracts and company and
business acquisitions and disposals This committee has delegated
authonty up to specified levels of nsk as determined by a nsk
assessment matnx, beyond which Board approval 1s required

In addition, practical guidance for all staff 1s maintained in Group
policy and procedure documents regarding the authorisation levels
for commitments, contract selectivity and bidding, the prowsion of
guarantees and management accounting as well as reporting and
resolution of suspected fraudulent activities

The Board has a policy to prosecute mdmduals found to have
defrauded the Company or its subsidianes Learning points for
management are identified and action plans implemented to
minimise the recurrence of fraud

Employees are encouraged to raise genuine concerns about
malpractice at the earliest possible stage and a confidential
‘whistleblowing” hoiline provided by an independent third party
15 avallable

The Executive Directors report o the Board on material changes in
the business and the external environment that affect significant
nsks The Group Finance Director provides the Board with regular
financial nformation, which includes key performance indicators
and a summary of nisk These key performance indicators and risks
are listed In the Group Chief Executive’s Review on pages 14 to 19
Where areas for improvement are identrfied, the Board considers
the recommendations made both by the Executive Directors and
by the Audit Committee

Canllion pic
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Corporate Governance report
continued

This report 1s reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee

Audit independence

The Audit Committee and Board place great emphasis on the
objectivity of the Group's auditor, KPMG Audit Plc (KPMG), in
therr reporting to shareholders

The KPMG audit director 1s present at Audit Commitiee meetings
to ensure full communication of matters relating to the audit

The overall performance of the auditor 15 reviewed annually by the
Audit Committee, taking Into account the views of management,
and feedback is provided to senior members of KPMG unrelated to
the audit This actvity also forms part of KPMG’s own systern of
quality contrel The Audit Committee also has discussions with the
auditor, without management being present, on the adequacy of
controls and on any judgmental areas These discussions have
proved satisfactory to date

The scope of the forthcoming year's audit 1s discussed in advance
by the Audit Committee Audit fees are reviewed by the Audit
Committee after discussions between the businesses and the local
KPMG offices and are then referred to the Board for approval
Rotation of audit director’s responsibilities within KPMG 1s required
by their profession’s ethical standards The current audit director
responsible for the Canllion engagement is in his first year of
sigring the report There s also rotation of key members within
the audit team

Assignments awarded to KPMG and 1ts associates have been and
are subject to controls by managemeni that have been agreed by
the Audit Committee so that audit independence 1s not
compromised In summary, the procedures are

> audit related services as auditor this 1s the main area of work of
KPMG and its associates !f any additional accounting support 15
required then this 1s considered competitively

> tax consulting In cases where they are best suited, Carillion uses
KPMG and its associates but the Group also uses other tax
consultancies Significant pieces of tax work are evaluated
competitively

> general and systems consulting all sigmificant consuiting projects
are subject to competitive tender
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Other than audit, the Group Finance Director is required to give
prior approval of work carmed out by KPMG and 1ts associates, part
of this review s to determine that other potential providers of the
services have been adequately considered

These controls provide the Audit Committee with adequate
confidence in the iIndependence of KPMG 1n their reporting on the
audit of the Group

Health and safety and sustamability

A review of the Group's progress on health and safety s provided

in the Group Chief Executive’'s review on page 17 and the Group's
Sustainability performance 15 contained in the Sustainability review
on pages 30 to 33

R F Tapp
Secretary
3 March 2010




Remuneration report

This report explains what we pay
to the Directors of Carillion plc
and why. It has been prepared
on behalf of the Board by the
Remuneration Committee it

will be presented for approval at
the Annual General Meeting on
5 May 2010 and David Garman,
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, will be available

to answer shareholders’ questions.

Remuneration Committee members and advisers

The Remuneration Committee consists exclusively of independent
Non-Executive Directors, David Garman, David Maloney, Steve
Mogford and Vanda Murray Its terms of reference can be found
on the Company's website www carllionplc com The Committee
determines policy for remuneration of the Executive Directors of
Carillion plc and key members of the senior management team

The Remuneration Committee is assisted in its work by Susan
Morton, Group HR Director and by John McDonough, Group
Chief Executive The Group Chief Executive 15 consulted on the
remuneration of those who report directly to him and alse of
other senior executives No Executive Director or employee 15
present or takes part in discussions in respect of matters relating
directly to therr own remuneration

Additionally, the Remuneration Committee uses Deloitte LLP to
provide salary survey and benchmarking information and external
and internal contextual mformation and analysts as required
Deloitte LLP, which was appointed 1n 2005, also provides internal
audrt services and certain specialist consultancy services but
otherwise has no other connections with the Group

The Committee adopts the principles of good governance as set
out in the Combined Code and complies with the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Regulations 2002 It met three times during the year and all
members attended all meetings

Remuneration philosophy

Canfhon's remuneration philosophy 15 that reward should be used
to incentivise Executive Directors In @ manner which is consistent
with the Group’s objectives and

(t supports its strategic objective of attracting, developing and
retaining excellent people and encouraging them to work in
line wath Carllion’s values

(1) aligns the interests of the Directors with those of shareholders
and other stakeholders As a result, a substantial proportion
of Executive Directors’ remuneration is vanable

(m) applies demanding performance conditions to deliver
sustained profitable growth

(v) has due regard to actual and expected market conditions and

() includes achieving hugh standards in respect of Canllion's
health and safety, environmental and socal performance
targets

Remuneratton and other benefits are reviewed annually with
regard to competitive market practice and, where considered
appropnate, are supported by external independent surveys

Elements of remuneration

Basic salary

This 1s reviewed annually, taking account of indmdual expenence
and performange and by reference to information provided by
ndependent sources The Remuneration Commuttee has adopted
a policy of setting basic salary within the market range of salaries
for equivalent roles and expecis to pay around the median when
the indmdual has been performing in the role for a reasonable
period of time

Salary ncreases for Executive Directors in 2009 were two per cent
reflecting the economic dimate and in 2010 will be zero, both In
line with pay for other employees in both years

Annual performance bonus and deferred bonus plan

The bonus plan 15 designed to drive and reward excellent
operational performance, inking the interests of sharehotder and
participants by paying one half of the bonus in cash immediately
and investing the other half in shares of the Company for a two
year deferment period

Canlhon plc
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Remuneration report
continued

Long-term share incentives

These require and reward exceptional performance based on performance targets that are aligned to the interests of shareholders
Awards are made under the Canihon plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2006, known internally as the Leadership Equity Award Plan (' LEAP*)
Each Execute Director s reguired to hold shares acquired through LEAP until the value of therr total shareholding 1s equal to their
annual salary "Geood leavers’ durning the performance period receve a pro-rata award at the normal release date provided the plan
meets its performance requirements

Carillion share mcentives comply with the share dilution guidelines

Pension benefits

Fellowing the closure to future accrual of its defined benefit pension schemes in Apri 2009, the Company offers competitive defined
contribution pensions to all Executive Directors Pensionable salary 1s imited by an mternal cap and salary supplements are paid on
earnings above the cap

Other benefits
These include a car or car allowance by individual choice, and private healthcare

2009 Remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors of Carillion plc for the year ended 31 December 2008 s set out in the table below This is audited
nformation

Annual

Basic performance Other
salary/fees bonus®* benefits Compensation™ Total 2009 Total 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Richard Adam 408 221 m - 740 908
Richard Howson* 18 6 9 - 33 -
David Hurcomb* 262 129 63 398 852 607
Don Kenny 3N 153 84 - 548 686
John McDonough 632 342 188 - 1,162 1,419
Roger Robinson* 186 H 50 - 327 820
Total for Executive Directors 1,817 942 505 398 3,662 4,440
David Garman 61 - - - 61 58
David Maloney 58 - - - 58 56
Steve Mogford 48 - - - 48 46
Vanda Murray 48 - - - 48 46
Philip Rogerson 188 - - - 188 183
Total for Non-Executive Directors 403 - - - 403 389
Total for all Directors 2,220 942 505 398 4,065 4,829

*  Roger Robinson reured a5 a dwector of Canillion pke on 6 May 2009 and David Hurcomb stepped down 3s a directer on 8 December 2008 Richard Howson was appointed to the 8oard on
10 Decembper 2009

() There are no long term benefits other than pensions (see page 49 to 50) and share incentives (see pages 50 to 52)

() Induded in ‘Other benefits’ 15 a salary supplement for John McDonough of £169,788 {2008 £167,890), for Roger Robinson of
£41,521 (2008 £82,210), for Don Kenny £61,832 (2008 £62,050C), for David Hurcomb of £48,179 (2008 £51,970) and for Richard
Adam of £94,390 (2008 £93,970) In respect of salary over the internal pensions earnings cap

() The Board determines the fees of the Non-Executive Directors based on independent external advice

(v) John McDonough retains the fee of £75,000 (including the purchase value of 2,000 ordinary shares in Tomkins pk) he was paid in
20089 as a Non-Executive Director of Tomkins ple and Richard Adam retains the fee of £50,000 paid as a Non-Executive Director of
SSL International plc

(v} With the exception of David Hurcomb and Roger Robinson where 1t is paid entirely in cash, 50% of the bonus 15 payable in cash and

the balance deferred in Carillion shares unul March 2012
{(vi) Compensation in respect of his employment contract was paid to David Hurcomb in January 2010
(v} Salary and benefits for Richard Howson are pro-rata to his appomntment as an Executive Director
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2009 Benus Plan

In 2009, Executive Directors had the opportunity to eam up to 100 per cent of thewr basic salary through the bonus plan comprising up
t0 25 per cent for personal objectives and 75 per cent for financial cbjectves Awards under the personal element are based on delvery
against clear and stretching abjectives closely aligned to the strategic aims of the Company The financial element s determined by
outstanding performance against stretching targets based on growth in earnings per share The 2009 plan limits the amounit of any
award that may be taken in cash to 50 per cent of the bonus earned overall The balance 15 deferred into shares of the Company that are
held in trust in the participant’s name and vest after two years The number of shares allocated is determined by the price prevailing at
the date of bonus award and by using this mechanism, the value individuals recewve at the point of vesting 1s aligned to the value
delwered to shareholders over the same perniod The bonuses awarded 1o the Executive Directors in respect of 2009 are shown in the
remuneration table on page 48 (half of these benefits being paid in cash in 2010 and the balance deferred to March 2012) Tax and
national insurance Is calculated on the deferred element based on the value of the shares at the vesting date and paid at that point

Similar deferral mechanisms have operated in respect of earlier years and during 2009 the following deferred bonus shareholdings vested

Bonus year Number of shares
Richard Adam - Nil
Richard Howson 2007 9,882
Dawid Hurcomb 2007 40,000
Don Kenny - Nil
John McDonough 2006 7591
Roger Robinson 2006 47857

The price prevailing on the above shares at the date of award was 406 0 pence (2007 bonus) and 382 5 pence (2006 bonus) At the
vesting date the share price was 218 0 pence

Pension benefits

in April 2009, the Company closed the Canllion ‘B* Pension Scheme to future accrual and the Executive Directors who were members of
this scheme became deferred pensioners, therr deferred benefits being based on pensionable salary and service at the date of closure
Future service accrual will be on a defined contribution basis and benefits will be delivered through the Carillion 2009 Pension Plan
Thisis a trust-based, contracted-in defined contribution plan set up for former members of the four closed defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit pensions accruing during the period to Sth April 2009 to Executive Directors in their capacity as Directors of Carillion plc
are set out below This 1s audrted information

Transfer
Increase in Increase in value of
accrued accrued pension
pension pension accrued Increase in
over year over year during transfer value
Accrued excluding including the penod over the percd
pension at inflation inflation less member  Transfer value Transfer value  after member
31 Dec 2009 allowance allowance™ contnbutions®™ atstart of year  atend of year™® contnbutions ¥
£ per annum £ per annum £ per annum [ £ £ £
Don Kenny 26,316 708 o4 (195} 442,625 463,982 15,234
John McDonough 32,978 631 (144) (3.397) 644,534 669,549 22,893
Roger Robinson 70,095 (2,129} {1,587) (42,282} 1,536,811 1,664,563 125,629

(1) The accrued pension for Roger Robanson rs as at 1 Apnl 2009 his date of reurement from the scheme

(2) The accrued pension for John McDonough and Don Kenny are leawing service benefits at 5 Apnl 2009 increased by nflation to 31 December 2009

(3) These are the accrued pensions at 31 December 2009 less the accrued pensions at 31 December 2008 {the 2008 figure hawng been increased for inflaton 1o 31 December 2009
{31 March 200 for Roger Robunson)

(4) The value of accrued benefits inchudes the provision of kife cover over the entire year (1o the date of retirement for Roger Robinson)

(5) Pigures based on market conditions at 3% December 2009
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Governance

Remuneration report
continued

The total number of Directors to whom retirement benefits
accrued during the year was 3 (2008 3)

The Group makes contributions of 40% of the internal earnings
cap to registered defined contribution plans on behalf of the
Executive Directors in respect of earnings up to the internal
earnings cap Executive Drrectors are required to pay 10% of the
earnings cap

The contributions made to defined contribution pension plans on
behalf of the Directors are set out in the table below This s
audited information

Plan Amount £

Richard Adam Canllion Pension Plan 50,830
Richard Howson*  Canllion 2009 Pension Plan 972
Dawid Hurcomb Carillion Pension Plan 66,055
Don Kenny Carilion 2008 Pension Plan 48,375
lohn McDonough  Canllion 2008 Pension Plan 48,375
Roger Robinson Canlhon 2009 Pension Plan 16,125

* These contnbutions are in respect of the penod 10 December 1o 31 December 200%

Death in service benefits are provided as part of membership of
these plans Where applicable, the value of these benefits 1s also
disclosed in the table above

The Company agreed with the Trustees of the Carillion pension
schemes to continue to operate an earnings cap after Aprid 2006
when the external cap was removed The Carillion cap commenced
at the level of £110,000 for the tax year 2006-07 and rises in line
with the published increases in HMRC's Life Time Allowance up
until 2010 in ine with the table below

Year Cap £
2008-10 129,000
2010-11 132,700

All the Executive Directors will be subject to this cap on salary in
respect of therr pensionable pay Bonus and other benefits received
by Executive Direciors do net count towards pensionable pay

In addition, a salary supplement of 33 6% s paid In respect of
earnings over the internal cap in place of the contnbutions the
Company would have made towards pension provision had the
cap not been in place Salary supplements are taxed at source

Canlhon plc
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The Company does not contribute to any pension arrangements
for Non-Executive Directors

Service contracts

Name Commencement Notice Period Term
Richard Adam 2 Aprl 2007 12 months rolling
Richard Howson 10 December 2009 12 months rolling
Don Kenny 1 July 2006 12 months rolling
John McDonough 1 January 2001 12 months rolling

Executive Directors have no additional entitlement to
compensation for loss of office Service contracts contain provision
for early termination and in such cases, the Remuneration
Commitiee will consider the specific circumstances together with
the Company’s commitments under the indivdual’s contract and
the requirement to mitigate Mitigation is applied to reduce any
compensation payable to departing directors

Non-Executive Directors are not employed under contracts of
service, but are generally appointed for fixed terms of three years
renewable for further terms of one to three years, if both parties
agree Steve Mogford, who will stand for re-election at the Annuat
General Meeting on 5 May 2010, has a letter of appontment until
4 September 2012 subject to re-appoiniment at the Annual
General Meeting

Long-term (share) incentives

The Leadership Equity Award Plan ('LEAP}

The LEAP 15 offered to key people in the Company to provide an
opportunity to earn a potentially higher level of reward but only
where there 1s commitment from those individuals and stretching
performance targets are met

In any finanaal year, Executive Directors may recewve an award

under the LEAP over shares worth 150 per cent of therr basic

annual salary {excluding bonuses and benefits in kind), other senior

executives may receive an award under the LEAP over shares

worth up to 100 per cent of ther basic annual salary The extra

50 per cent awarded to Executive Directors will only vest if

exceptional performance 1s achieved In exceptional circumstances

a first award of up to 200 per cent of salary can be made under

the rules Thereafter the maximum cpportunity will be 150 per ‘
cent of basic salary [

Under the terms of the LEAP, awards of ordinary shares in the
Company can be made for nil consideration !




All awards/options are subject to a mimimum three-year performance period from the date of the award The vesting of the shares 1s
subject to the relevant partbapant remairung in employment and the achievement of specified stretching performance conditions based
on annual average growth in earmings per share above the Retail Price Index ‘Good leavers’ durning the performance penod receive a
pro-rata award at the normal release date provided the plan meets its performance requirements The progression 15 inear between
each of the target levels specified The requirements for current plans are as follows

Growth in earnings per share

Level 1 RPI + 3% pa
Level 2 RPl + 7% pa
Level 3 RPIl + 12% pa
Level 4 RPI + 25% pa

30% vests
50% vests
100% vests

Extra 50% vests

Levels 1 to 3 apply to all participants, level 4 applies to the Executive Directors

Awards were made i July 2006, Apnl 2007, Apr1 2008 and Aprl 2009 At 31 December 2009 a total of 3,173,881 shares were

outstanding under the LEAP

The awards held by Executive Directors of the Company under LEAP as at 31 December 2009 are shown below This I1s audited information

As at LEAP Awards Awards/options As at Mid market
1Januvary awards granted  vesting dunng lapsing dunng 31 December share price on
2009 dunng the year the year the year 009 Date of  date of award
Number Number Number Number Number award Pence
John McDonough
LEAP 2006 (maximum) 218,354 - 189,240 29,114 Nl 06 07 2006 3190
LEAP 2007 {maximumy 206,773 - - - 206,773 10 04 2007 4208
LEAP 2008 {maximum) 242,187 - - - 242,187 04 04 2008 3838
LEAP 2009 (maximum) - 366,963 - - 366,963 0704 2009 25225
Richard Adam
LEAP 2007 {maxtmum) 180,629 - - - 180,629 10 04 2007 4208
LEAP 2008 {maximum) 156,250 - - - 156,250 04 04 2008 3838
LEAP 2009 {(maximum) - 236,750 - - 236,750 07 04 2009 25225
Don Kenny
LEAP 2006 (maximum) 71,202 - 71,202 - NIl 06 07 2006 3190
LEAP 2007 (maximum) 98,039 - - - 98,039 10 04 2007 4208
LEAP 2008 {maximum} 115,140 - - - 119,140 04 04 2008 3838
LEAP 2009 {(maximum} — 180,522 - — 180,522 0704 2009 25225
Richard Howson®
LEAP 2007 (maximum) 15,013 - - - 19,013 10 04 2007 4208
LEAP 2008 {maximum} 25,296 - - - 29,296 04 04 2008 3838
LEAP 2009 {maximum} - 68,544 - - 68,544 0704 2008 252 25
David Hurcomb®
LEAP 2006 {maxtmum) 26,898 - 26,898 - NIl 06 07 2006 3190
LEAP 2007 (maximumy} 53,475 - - - 53,475 10 04 2007 420 8
LEAP 2008 {maximum) 107,421 - - 35,808 71613 04 04 2008 3838
LEAP 2009 (maximum) - 162,765 - 162,765 il 0704 2009 252 25
Roger Robinson’
LEAP 2006 (maximum} 137,658 - 118,304 18,354 NIl 06 072006 3180
LEAP 2007 (maximum) 121,675 - - 44,108 77567 10 04 2007 4208
LEAP 2008 {maximum) 142,578 - - 83,170 59,408 04 04 2008 3838

The LEAP 2C06 performance condition was, at level 4,

189,240 shares

met at 130% wath the result that John McDonough became entitled to

On 27 August 2009, 189,240 shares vested to John McDonough, 26,898 to David Hurcomb, 71,202 to Don Kenny and 119,304
to Roger Robinson The market price of Carillion shares on 27 August 2009 was 294 0 pence The net asset value recewved by these
Directors/former Director was therefore, respectively, £556,366, £79,080, £209,334 and £350,753

* Roger Robinson retired from the Board on 6 May 2009 and David Hurcomb on 8 December 2009 Richard Howson was appointed
1o the Board on 10 December 2009
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Governance

Remuneration report
continued

Share options held by Executive Directors
The number of options over Carilhion plc shares held by Executive Directors of the Company under the Executive Share Option Scheme
(ESOS) and Sharesave scheme as at 31 December 2009 are shown below This is audited information

Options Mid market
As at Granted Exercised lapsing As at Earliest share price
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise date from on date
2009 the year the year the year 2009 price which Expiry of grant
Number Number Number Number Number Pence exerusable date Pence
John McDonough
ESOS 2001 501,830 - - - 501,930 1295 090104 0901 N 1355
ESOS 2002 254,532 - - — 254532 2307 190305 190312 1975
ESQS 2003 150,795 - - - 150,795 1634 010706 010713 158 0
ESQS 2004 124,728 - - - 124,728 1849 310307 310314 1870
Don Kenny
ESOS 2002 123,801 - 123,80 - Nil 1252 171G 05 171012 128 0
ESQS 2003 60,709 - 60,709 - Nil 1634 010706 010713 159 0
ESOS 2004 53,894 - 53,854 - Nl 1849 310307 310314 1870
David Hurcomb
£S05 2005 30,895 - 30,895 - Nil 24275 150308 150315 244 5
Sharesave 2006 840 - - - 840 3375 010210 300710 3850

Don Kenny exercised Executive Share Options on 14 September 2009 The market price of Carnllion Shares on this date was 293 pence
The net asset value received by Don Kenny was therefore £344,676 Similarly, Dawid Hurcomb exercised an Executive Share Option on
25 Novemnber 2009 when the market price of Carillion shares was 300 pence The net asset value receved by David Hurcomb was £17,687

The ESOS options were granted at an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s shares on the three business days
immedately preceding the date of grant Options under the Inland Revenue Approved Executive Share Option Scheme 1999 (which
carries certain tax advantages for UK employees) and the Executive Share Option Scheme 1999 are exercisable normally between three
and 10 years after the date of grant, subject to the achievement of the performance condit:on For options granted from 2003 onwards,
the following performance condition prevailed

Average compound annual earnings

per share growth (before exceptional items) Percentage of option
wn excess of RPI over the three-year penod following grant that becomes exercisable
Less than 4% 0%
4% 30%
Above 4% and below 10% 30% to 100% (straight-lne basts)
10% or more 100%

Grants of options using this performance condition were made in 2003, 2004 and 2005 Carillien met the performance target such that
80 per cent, 71 per cent and 100 per cent, respectively of the shares under opticn are now exercisable

For options granted before 1 July 2003, the performance target required that the earmings per share of Carillion over a rolling three-year
period must increase by a percentage not less than the increase 1n the UK Retail Prices index over the same period, expressed as a
percentage, plus four percentage points per annum All options granted pre-2003 are excercisable

At 31 December 2008, Executive Share Options were outstanding over 1,408,032 shares (2008 1,754,361 shares) under both schemes
at exercise prices ranging from 129 5 pence to 2107 pence

The option over 254,532 shares at an option price of 210 7 pence granted to John McDonough in March 2002 was made later in the
year than had been specified at the time of his appointment which resulted in an increased option price of 67 3 pence Therefore, in
order to ensure that he will be in no worse nor better a posttion as a result of the delay in the grant, a8 maximum cash adjustment of
67 3 pence per share (less tax) will be made when and if the option 1s exercised
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Sharesave options were granted in November 1999 over 6,140,194
shares, in October 2002 over 3,995,803 shares and in November
2006 over 2,580,461 shares At 31 December 2009, options over
1,349,565 ordinary shares of 50 pence each were outstanding
under the Sharesave Scherme (2008 1,684,664 ordinary shares

of 50 pence each)

There have been no changes to the interests of Executive Directors
In share incentives and options in the period 1 January to 3 March
2010

Employee Benefit Trust

An employee benefit trust was established to acquire shares in
Carilien ple and hold them for the benefit of participants
{(including Executive Directors) in the share incentive and share
option schemes Dunng 2009, 1,400,000 shares were issued to
the Trust At 31 December 2009, the Trust held 362,909 Carill:on
shares (2008 419,827 shares) 0 09 per cent of the issued share
capital (2008 0 11 per cent) acquired over a penod in the open
market and which have a carrying value of £11 million

(2008 £1 3 milion) The market value of the shares held at

31 December 2009 was £1 1 millon (2008 £1 0 million)

Additionally, a Qualfying Employee Share Ownership Trust
(QUEST) operates in conjunction with Carilkon in providing shares
1o employees under its Sharesave Scheme At 31 December 2009,
the QUEST held 134,683 Carilion shares (2008 8,904 shares)

{0 03 per cent of the ssued share caprtal (2008 0 002 per cent)
at subscription prices ranging from 115 5 pence to 296 25 pence
per share, to enable it to satisfy, as and when required, options
granted under the Sharesave Scheme The market value of the
shares held by the QUEST at 31 December 2009 was £409,167
(2008 £22,100)

For details of dividends paid to the above trusts see Note 24 to the
consoldated financial statements on page 89

The closing mid-market price of Canllion shares at 31 December
2009 and the highest and lowest mid-market prices during the
year were as follows

Share price Pence

31 December 2009 3038
High (16 November) 3125
Low (23 February) 2065

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) Performance Graph

The following graph shows the TSR of Carithon pic compared with
the TSR of the FTSE 350 Index The FTSE 350 was chosen as the
comparator group in order to illustrate the Company's TSR
performance aganst a broad equity market index of the UK's
leading companies TSR 15 not used as a performance measure

for any benefits provided to Executive Directors

TSR graph for penod 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2009

Approved by order of the Board

D N C Garman
Charman of the Remuneration Committee
3 March 2010
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Governance

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the annual report and
finandial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group and Parent Company financial statements, in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards
and apphcable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

The Parent Company financial statements are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Parent Company In prepanng each of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements, the Directors are required to

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

> make judgmenis and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

> for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

> for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in
the Parent Company financial statements

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregulanties

Under apphcable law and regutations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors”
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement
that comply with that law and those regulations
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website Legslation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictions

Directors’ responstbility statement

Each of the Directors of Carllion ple, whose names and functions
are set out on pages 34 and 35, confirms that to the best of his or
her knowledge

> the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards and contained in this
2009 Annual Report and Accounts give a true and fair view of
the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of Carillion plc
and the Carillion Group taken as a whole, and

> the business review, contained in the Directors’ Report and the
operating and financial review section m this 2009 Annual
Report and Accounts, includes a farr review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of Carihon plc
and the Carillion Group taken as a whole, together with
principal risks and uncertainties they face

Disclosure of iInformation to auditors

The Directors of Canthion plc confirm that at the date of ths
statement, and as far as they are indwidually aware, the Company's
auditors are aware of all relevant audit information and each
Director has taken all reasonable steps to make himself or herself
aware of relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Approved by order of the Board

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Director
3 March 2010




Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Carillion plc

We have audited the financial statements of Canilion plc for the
year ended 31 December 2009 set out on pages 56 to 121

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the parent company financial statements s
apphicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
set out on page 54, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financal statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and farr view Our responsibility is to audit the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
(APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements
A description of the scope of an audit of finanaal statements 13
provided on the APB's web-site at www fr¢ org uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinien on financial statements
In our opinion

> the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

> the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulauon

Opinton on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opiion

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

> the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, n our opinion

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us, or

> the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

> certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

> we have not received all the infermation and explanations we
require for our audrt

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

> the Directors’ statement, set out on page 29, in relation to going
concern, and

> the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specfied for our review

D K Turner
Senor Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 6GH

3 March 2010
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note fm im

Total revenue 5.426 5 52058
Less Share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue {922 3) (772 0)
Group revenue 2 4,504 2 44338
Cost of sales {4154 4) (4,069 4)
Gross profit 3498 364 4
Administrative expenses (262 4) {329 8)
Other operating (expense)income 3 (2 5) 83
Group operating profit 3 849 429
Analysed between
Group operating profit before Intangible amortisation, imparment of other investments and
non-recurring operating rtems 1309 1201
Intangible amortisation and impairment of other investments 4 (30 8) (54 5)
Non-recurring operating items!" 5 (15 2) (22 7}
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 2 659 451
Analysed between
Operating profit 86 4 740
Net finanaal expense (14 0} {18 2)
Taxation {65) (on
Profit from operations 150 8 830
Analysed between
Profit from operations before intangible amorusaton, impairment of other mvestments and
non-recurring operating items 196 8 165 2
Intangible amortisation and impairment of other investments 4 (30 8) {54 5)
Non-recurning operating items™ 5 {15 2) (227)
Non-cperating items 5 115 356
Net financial expense 6 {14 6) 77
Analysed between
Financial income 113 4 1374
Financial expense (128 0) (145 1)
Profit before taxation 1477 1158
Analysed between
Profit before taxation, intangible amortisation, imparment of other investments, non-recurring
operating items and non-operating ttems 182 2 1575
Intangible amortisation and imparrment of other mvestmenis 4 (30 8) (54 5)
Non-recurring operating itemst 5 (15 2) (227)
Non-operating items 5 115 356
Taxation 8 (115) “mn
Profit for the year 136 2 1118
Profit attnbutable to.
Equity holders of the parent 132 4 108 3
Minority interests 38 35
Profit for the year 136 2 118
Earnings per share 9
Basic 334p 28 4p
Diluted 33 2p 28 2p

(1) This includes raticnalisalion costs curtailment gan and the Office of Far Trading penalty (see note 5)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
£m fm fm f£m
Profit for the year 136 2 118
Net gain/{loss) on hedge of net investment in foreign operations 10 (8 9)
Currency translation differences on foreign operations (20 0) 89
Currency translation differences refating to minonty interests 01 02
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes (220 0) (92 7}
(238 9) (92 5}
Taxation i respect of the above 613 278
Share of recycled cash flow hedges within jontly controlled entities {net of taxation) 99 104
Share of change in far value of effective cash flow hedges within jointly controlled
entities (net of taxation) (8 3) (13 1)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (176 0) (674
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year {39 8) 44 4
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 437 407
Minority interests 39 37
(39 8) 44 4
(1) Restated on adopuon of IFRIC 14 (see note 33)
Canllion plc
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2009

Equity
h —

Share Share Translation Hedgrg Farrvalue  Merger Retamed hosldaer; Minonty Total

capital premuum reserve  reserve reserve  reserve earnings funds nterests  equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £im £m fm

At 1 January 2009 as previously reported 197 8 129 09y {(170) - 4491 2273 B692 34 8726
Impact of adoption of IFRIC 14 - - - - - - 50 (0 - (5 0}
At 1 January 2009 as restated 1978 129 09 {170 - 4491 2223 8642 34 8676
Total comprehensive income'™ - - {19 2) 16 - - (261) (437) 39 (398)
New share capital issued 08 39 - - - - - 47 - 47
Acquisition of own shares - - - - - - {42) 42 - 4 2}
Share options exercised by employees - - - - - - 05 05 - 05

Equity settled transactions
{net of deferred tax} - - - - - - 28 28 - 28
Transfer between reserves - - ~ - - (297 297 - - -
Dwidends paid - - - - - - (534) (534) (10} (54 4)
At 31 December 2009 198 6 168 (201) (15 4) - 4194 1716 7709 63 7772
At 1 January 2008 as previously reported 140 6 86 (28 (143 09 1662 2024 5016 13 5029
‘mpact of adoption of IFRIC 14 - - - - - - (156) (156} - {1596
At 1 January 2008 as restated 1406 86 28 (143) 09 1662 1868 4860 13 4873
Total comprehensive incomet” - - 19 (27) - - 415 407 37 44 4
New share capital 1ssued 572 43 - - - 3250 - 3865 - 3865
Acquisition of own shares - - - - - - @n @7 - 47)
Equsty settled transactions

{net of deferred tax) - - - - - - 24 24 - 24
Transfer to Income statement - - - - 09 - - (09) - [(e)=)]
Transfer between reserves - - - - - @21 421 - - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - @58 458 (16 @74
At 31 December 2008 1978 129 {09 (17 0) - 4491 2223 8642 34 8676

{1) Restated on adoption of IFRIC 14 (see note 33)

5 8 Canllion pic
Annual Report and Accounts 2009




Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January

2009 20080 2008"
Note fm £m fm
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 168 2 167 2 1315
Intangble assets 12 1,241 3 1,276 9 5558
Retrement benefit assets 3 26 37 116
Investments in jointly controlled entities 13 1333 2386 1859
Other investments 14 438 - 145
Deferred tax assets 15 1325 1039 137
Total non-current assets 17217 18237 9130
Current assets
Inventories 16 372 44 6 305
Trade and other recevables 18 1,038 4 1,186 8 8587
Cash and cash equivalents 19 2672 2573 3275
Income tax recevable 486 06 22
Dervative financial nstruments 27 10 11 -
Total current assets 13484 1,490 4 1,2189
Total assets 3,0701 3,3141 21319
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowing 20 (54 0) (58 0) (139)
Dernvative financial tnstruments 27 - - 07
Trade and other payables 21 (1,683 6) {1,721 8) (11757
Provisions 22 {12.5) {23 4) 69
Income tax payable (11 3) 30 23)
Total current habilities (1,761 4) {1,806 3) (1,199 5)
Non-current habilities
Borrowing 20 (188 3) {426 0) (358 5)
Retirement benefit labilitres 31 (296 4) {146 2) (575)
Deferred tax habilities 15 (37 3) (60 0) (22 4)
Provisions 22 (9.5) (8 0) 67
Total hon-current habilities (5315) (640 2} (445 1)
Total habilittes {2,292 9) (2,446 5) (1,644 6)
Net assets 1772 8676 487 3
Equity
Share capital 23 198 6 1978 1406
Share premium 16 8 129 86
Translation reserve 24 (201) (0 9) {2 8)
Hedging reserve 24 {15 4) (17 0) (14 3)
Fair value reserve 24 - - 09
Merger reserve 24 4194 4491 166 2
Retained earnings 24 1716 2223 186 8
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 7709 864 2 486 0
Minonty interests 63 34 13
Total equity 7772 8676 487 3

{1} Restated on adoption of IFRIC 14 {see note 33)

The financal stajements were approved by the Board of Diwectors on 3 March 2010 and were signed on its behalf by

Richard Adam FCA
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Group operating profit 849 429
Deprecation, amortisation and irnpairment 817 865
Loss/profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 83
Share-based payment expense 39 34
Other non-cash movements @5) 79
Non-recurring operating items 152 227
Operating profit before changes in working capital 1697 1393
Decrease In inventories 41 41
Decrease/(tincrease) in trade and other recevables 1073 (130 1)
(Decrease)/increase In trade and other payables (515} 1600
Cash generated from operations before pension deficit recovery payments and restructuring costs 22946 1733
Deficit recovery payments to pension schemes (29 0) (50 5)
Restructuring <osts (17 1) (32 4)
Cash generated from operations 1835 90 4
Financial income receved 146 171
Financial expense paid {23 3) (36 6)
Taxation 29 47
Net cash flows from operating activities 174 7 756
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 55 205
Disposal of investments in jointly controlled entities 1007 858
Dwvidends recewed from jointly controlled entiies 386 250
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed of 30 572 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 - (138 2
Acquisrion of intangible assets 43 27
Acquisitton of property, plant and equipment (48 5) {44 2)
Acquisition of equity In and net loan advances to jointly controlled entities (15 2) (28 4)
Acquisition of other non-current asset tnvestments - 0n
Net cash flows from investing activities 1340 (839)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 10 03
Repayment of bank and other loans (233 6) (78}
Payment of finance lease labilities (16 8) (16 3}
Dvidends parid to equity holders of the parent (53 4) {45 8}
Dvidends paid to mmority interests {10) (1 6}
Net cash flows from financng activities (303 8) (712}
Increase/(decrease) in net cash and cash eguivalents 49 (79 5)
Net cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2500 3238
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on net cash and cash equivalents (2 5) 57
Net cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 252 4 2500
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

Canllon plc (the ‘Company) 1s a company domiciled and
incorporated In the United Kingdom (UK) The consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2009 compnse the Company and rts subsidiaries
{together referred 1o as the 'Group’) and the Group’s interest
In jointly controlled entities

The consolidated financial statements were authonsed for
1ssuance on 3 March 2010

Statement of compliance

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared and
approved by the Directors in accordance with International
Finanoial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘Adopted
IFRSs) The Company has elected to prepare its parent company
financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP These are
presented cn pages 114 to 121

Basis of preparation

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently
in dealing with items which are considered material n relation to
the Group’s financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis
based on the assessment made by the Directors as described in
the Operating and financial review on page 29

The financial statements are presented In pounds sterling They
are prepared on the histonical cost basis except that the following
assets and habilities are stated at their fair value dernvative financial
mnstruments, pension scheme assets and financial instruments
classified as avalable-for-sale

The following relevant standards and interpretations have been
adopted in 2009 as they are mandatory for the year ended
31 December 2009

> Amendments to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1
‘Presentation of financial statements — A revised presentation’

> Rewised international Accounting Standard 23 *Borrowing costs’

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 8 —
‘Operating segments’

> International Financial Reporiing Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC} 14 'The imit on a defined benefit asset, mimmum
iunding requirements and thesr interaction’

> Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard 2
"Share-based payment — vesting conditions and cancellations’

> Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard 7
‘Improving disclosures about financial instruments’

IAS 1 'Presentation of financial statements — A revised
presentation’ requires the presentation of a consohdated statement
of changes in equity as a primary statement rather than as a note
Since the changes are presentational only, there 1s no impact on
profit, earnings per share or net assets

Revised |AS 23 ‘Borrowing costs’ requires the Group to capitalise
borrowing costs that are direcily attnbutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the
cost of the asset Previously, Group subsidiaries immediately
recognised all borrowing costs as an expense Revised 1AS 23
has been apphed prospectively from 1 January 2009 and has

no material impact an profit, earnings per share or net assets in
the year ended 31 December 2009

IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’ requires operating segments to be
identrfied on the basis of information that internally 1s provided
to the Group Chuef Executive, who 1s the Group’s chief operating
decision maker Following the adoption of IFRS 8, Middle East
construction services has been dassified as a separate operating
segment, whereas previcusly 1t was a component of the
Construction services segment In addition, IFRS 8 requires the
Group to disclose on a segmental basis the revenue that s denved
from indwidual customers that amounts to 10 per cent or more
of Group revenue Since the changes are presentational only,
there 15 no impact on profit, earmings per share or net assets

IFRIC 14 ‘The imit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction” imits the amount of defined
benefit pension assets which can be recognised on certain
schemes where the Group does not have an uncendiional night
to the refund of any surplus which may exist This results in the
derecogrition of any surplus and the recognition of a liability for
deficit funding arrangements Comparative information has been
restated for the effect of the retrospective application of IFRIC 14,
the impact of which has been to reduce net assets at 1 January
2009 by £5 Om (see note 33) The adoption of IFRIC 14 has no
impact on profit or earnings per share

The adoption of Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share based payment -
vesting ¢onditions and cancellations’ and Amendments to IFRS 7
‘Improving disclosures about financial Instruments’ in the current
year has had no impact on the financial statements

in addition to the above, amendments to a number of standards
under the annual mprovements project 1o IFRS, which are
mandatory for the year ending 31 December 2009, have been
adopted in 2009 None of these amendments have had a matenal
impact on the Group’s financial statements
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements

continued

1. Sigmificant accounting pohicies (continued}

The following standards and mterpretations are effective for the
year ended 31 December 2010

> International Accounting Standard 27 ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements (revised 2008y

> Internatienal Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee 12
'Service concesston arrangements’

> Revised International Financial Reperting Standard 3 ‘Business
combinations’

> Internaticnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee 15
‘Construction of Real Estate’

> International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 16
‘Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation”

The Group has considered the tmpact of these new standards
and interpretations in future periods on profit, earnings per
share and net assets The only impact of the above is in relation
to International Financial Reporting Committee 12, which is
expected to reduce net assets at 1 January 2010 by £9 2 million
The Group has chosen not to early adopt any of the above
standards and interpretations

Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidianies

The consolidated financial statements compnse the financial
staternents of the Company and subsidiaries controlled by the
Company drawn up to 31 December 2009 Control exists when
the Group has direct or indirect power to govern the financal and
operating pohcies of an entity so as to obtain economic benefris
from its actviies Subsidiaries are included in the consohdated
financial statements from the date that control transfers to the
Group untill the date that control ceases The finanaal statements
of subsidianes used in the preparation of the consohdated
financial statements are prepared for the same reporting year

as the parent Company

The purchase method 15 used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries

(b} Joint ventures

A joint venture 15 a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
undertakes an economic activity that s subject to joint control with
third parties The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for using the equity method Under this method the
Group’s share of the profits less losses of jointly controlled entities
15 included in the consolidated income statement and its interest
i their net assets 15 Included In investments in the consolidated
balance sheet Where the share of losses exceeds the mterest in
the entity the carrying amount 1s reduced to nil and recogmition of
further losses is discontinued Interest in the entity is the carrying
amount of the investment together with any long term interests
that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the entity

Canlhon ple
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Financal statements of jointly controlled entities are prepared for
the same reportng penod as the Group except for

> Canlhon Enterprise Ltd
> Modern Housing Solutions (Prime) Ltd

Both of these entities have 31 March year ends, and their results are
included in the Group accounts based on management accounts

Where a Group company Is party to a jointly controlled operation,
that company accounts for the assets it controls, the hahilities and
expenses It Incurs and its share of the Income Such arrangements
are reported in the consolidated financial statements on the
same baslis

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions that have occurred since 1 January
2004 represents the difference between the farr value of the cost
of acquisition and the farr value of the identifiable assets, labilities
and contingent habilities of an acguired entity Consideration
includes the attnbutable costs of the acquisition In respect of
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2004 goodwill 1s included on the
basis of its deemed cost, which represents the amount recorded
under previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

Positive goodwill 1s recognised as an asset in the consolidated
balance sheet and 1s subjeci 1o an annual iImparment review
Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of subsidiaries s recognised
separately as an intangible asset in the consolidated balance sheet
Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of jointly controlled entities 1s
included within the carrying value of the investment Negative
goodwill 1s recogrused in the iIncome statement immediately

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortsathion and imparment losses Amortisation is based on the
useful economic lives of the assets concerned, which are principally
as follows

Computer software and licences
> straight-line over three to five years

Customer contracts and hsts
> Planned Maintenance Group

consumption of economic benefits over six years
> Mowlem

consumption of economic benefits over 35 years
> Alfred McAlpine

censumption of economic benefits over 12 years
> Vanbots Group

consumption of economic benefits over five years




1. Significant accounting polictes (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combinatron Cash generating units to
which goodwilt has been allocated are tested for imparment
annually, or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the
unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit 15 less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amaount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit An impairment loss recognised for goodwaill 1s not
reversed In a subsequent period

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested for impairment at each balance sheet
date Assets subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed
for mpairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 15
recognised in the income statement based on the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to

sell and value in use

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the nisks speafic to the asset

Other non-current asset Investments

Other non-current asset investments are classified as available
for sale financial assets and are recognised at fair value Changes
In fair value in the year are recognised directly i the statement
of comprehensive income Dwidend income from investments s
recognised in the iIncome statement when the night to receive
payment Is established

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and costs are recogrised by reference

to the degree of completion of each contract, as measured by the
proportion of total costs at the balance sheet date to the estimated
total cost of the contract

Insurance claims, incentive payments and vanations ansing from
construction contracts are included where they have been agreed
with the client

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred where 1t I1s probable those costs will be recoverable

The principal estmation technique used by the Group 1in
attnbuting profit on contracts to a particular period 1s the
preparation of forecasts on a contract by contract basis

These focus on revenues and costs to complete and enable an
assessment to be made of the final out-turn of each contract
Consistent contract review procedures are in place in respect of
contract forecasting

When 1t 15 probab'e that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised immediately
Contract costs are recognised as expenses In the penad in which
they are incurred

Where costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the balance 1s shown as due from
customers on construction contracts within trade and other
recewvables Where progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the balance 1s shown
as due to customers on construction contracts within trade and
other payables

Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred until the Group 1s
appointed preferred idder or formal notification of intention to
appoint is received Provided the contract is expected to generate
sufficent net cash inflows to enable recovery and the award

of the contract is probable, pre-contract costs incurred post the
appointment as preferred bidder are included n amounts owed
by customers on construction contracts

Where pre-contract bid costs are reimbursed at financial close,
the proceeds are initally applied against the asset included in
amounts owed by customers on construction contracts Any
excess recoveries are carried forward as deferred income and
released to profit over the penod of the contract

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration recewvable,
excluding value added tax, for services supplied to external
customers It also includes the Group's proportion of work
carried out under jointly controlled operations during the year
Revenue from service contracts 1s recogmised by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage of total services
to be performed Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy
on construction contracts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements |

continued

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation 15 based on historical cost, less the estimated residual
values, and the estimated economuc lives of the assets concerned
Freehold land 1s not depreciated Property, plant and equipment 1s
depreciated in equai annual instaiments over the period of ther
estimated economic lives, which are principally as follows

Freehold buildings
Leasehold bulldings and improvements
Plant, machinery and vehicles

40-50 years
Period of lease
Three-ten years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated aver the shorter
of the term of the lease or the expected useful life of the asset

Leasing
Operating lease rental charges are charged to the ncome
statement on a straight-line basis over the Iife of each lease

Assets held under finance leases are mcluded tn property, plant
and equipment at the lower of farr value at the date of acquisition
or present value of the minimum lease payments The capital
element of outstanding finance leases 1s included in financial
liabilies The finance charge element of rentals is charged to the
income statement at a constant penodic rate of charge on the
outstanding obligations

Inventones

Inventories comprse raw matenals and land for development and
are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost s
calculated using the weighted average method

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax Income tax 1s
recognised in the iIncome statement except to the extent that it
relates to tems recognised directly In eguity, in which case It is
recogrised In equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustrment to tax payable in respect
of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and habilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounis used for taxation purposes The amount of deferred tax
provided Is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlernent of the carrying amount of the assets and habilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date
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A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed only to the extent that it 15
probable that future taxable profits will be available agamnst which
the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised

Foreign currencies

In individual entities, transactions denominated in foreign
currencles are translated inte sterling and recorded using the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date and the gans and losses on translation are
included in the (ncome statement

On consohdation, the balance sheets of overseas entities are
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Income statements and cash flows of overseas
entities are translated nto sterling at rates approximatng to the
foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction Gains or
losses arising from the consolidation of overseas entities are
recognised in the translation reserve

Net investment hedging of overseas operations 1s achieved
through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign
currencies Gains and losses anising from the effective portion
of the hedges are recognised in equity and ineffective portions
are recognised immediately in the income statement

Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefit obligations

For defined contribution pension schemes operated by the Group,
amounts payable are charged to the income statement as they
fall due

For defined benefit pension schemes, the IAS 19 cost of providing
benefits is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method The charge 1o the income statement
reflects the current service cost of such obligations, and where
applicable, past service cost

The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost of scheme
liabiries are Included within financial Income and expenses in the
Income statement




1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet
represents the excess of the present value of the scheme liabilities
over the fair value of scheme assets When the calculation results
1nan asset to the Group, the amount recognised 1s mited on
certain schemes where the Group does not have an unconditional
right to refund of any surplus which may exist Differences
between the actual and expected returns on assets and experience
gains and losses ansing on scheme liabilities during the year,
together with differences ansing from changes in assumptions, are
recognised In the statement of comprehensive Income n the year

The Group’s contributions to the scheme are paid in accordance
with the scheme rules and the recommendatiens of the actuary

(b) Other post-retirement benefit obligations

Certain Group companies provide post-retirement healthcare
benefits to therr employees The expected costs of providing these
benefits are accrued over the penod of employment and are
calculated by independent actuaries based on the present value of
the expected liability

(c) Share-based payments

Members of the Group's senior management team are entitted to
particpate in the Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP) In addrtion,
UK employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme

The fair value of the LEAP and Sharesave schemaes at the date of
grant are estimated using the Black-Scholes pncing mode! For
both schemes the fair value determined at grant date 15 expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod, based on an
estmate of the number of shares that will eventually vest

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised where the Group constructs
qualifying assets All other borrowing costs are written off to the
mcome statement as incurred

Borrowing costs incurred within the Group’s jointly controlled
entities relating to the construction of assets in Public Private
Partnership projects are caprialised until the relevant assets are
brought into operational use

Borrowing costs are charged to the income statement using the
effective interest method

Share capital

The ordinary share capstal of the Company 1s recorded at the
proceeds received, net of directly attnbutable incremenial
1S5U€ Costs

Consideration pawd for shares in the Company held by the
Employee Share Ownership Plan {ESOP) Trust are deducted from
the retained earnings reserve Where such shares subsequently
vest in the employees under the terms of the Group’s share opiion
schemes or are sold, any consideration received 1s included in the
retained earnings reserve

Prowvisions

A provision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and where it 15 probable that an ocutflow will be required to
settle the obligation

Provisions for restructuning are recognised when the Group has an
approved restructuring plan that has either commenced or been
announced publicly Future operating costs are not provided for

Finanaial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument The prinapal
financial assets and habilities of the Group are as follows

(a) Other non-current investments

Other non-current investments relate to unquoted eguity interests
that are not designated on inibial recognition as at fair value
through the income statement Instead, they are recognised

at far value wath movements in farr value recogrised in the farr
value reserve

(b} Trade recevables
Trade recewables are initially recogrused at farr value and then
are stated at amortised cost

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carned in the balance sheet at
amortised cost For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equwalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, including
bank depoesits with original matunties of three months or less
Bank overdrafts are also included as they are an integral part of
the Group's cash management

(d)} Trade payables
Trade payables are initially recogrised at fair value and then are
stated at amortised cost
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1. Sigmficant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Bank and other borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts and other 1oans are recogmised at amortised cost fess attnbutable transaction costs
All borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with the difference between initial net proceeds and redemption value
recognised in the income statement over the penod to redemption

(f) Denvative financial instruments

Derwatives are initially recogrised at fair value on the date the contract 1s entered into and subsequently remeasured in future penods at
therr fair value The method of recognising the resulting change in fair value 1s dependent on whether the dervative s designated as a
hedging instrument

A number of the Group’s PPP jointly controlled entities have entered into interest rate derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate nsk
The effective part of the change In fair value of these dervatives is recognised directly in equity Any ineffective portion is recognised
immedately in the iIncome statement Amounts accumnulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods when the
hedged items will affect profit or loss The farr value of interest rate swaps 15 the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
to terminate the swap at the batance sheet date

The Group also enters into forward contracts in order to hedge agamst small and infrequent transactional foreign currency exposures
In cases where these dervative instruments are significant, hedge accounting i1s applied as described above Where hedge accounting
15 not applied, movements in fair value are recognised In the income statement Farr values are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date

Net borrowing
Net borrowing comprises cash and cash equivalents together with bank overdrafts and loans, finance leases and other loans

2 Segmental reporting

Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group's strategic operating segments The operating segment reporting format
reflects the differing economic charactenstics and nature of the services prowided by the Group and 1s the basis on which strategic
operating decisions are made by the Group Chief Executive

Inter-segment pricing 1s determined on an arm's length basis Segment results include items directly attnbutable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

Operating segments
The Group 1s comprnised of the following main operating segments

Support services
In this segment we report the results of our facilittes management, faciliies services, road mantenance, rail services, utihty services and
consultancy businesses

Public Private Partnership projects
In this segment we report the equity returns on our investments in Pubhic Private Partnership projects n our chosen sectors of Defence,
Health, Education, Transport, Secure and other Government accommaodation

Middle East construction services
[n this segment we report the results of our building and cvil engineening activities in the Middle East and North Africa

Construction services {excluding the Middle East)

In this segment we report the results of our UK bulding, cvil engineering and developments businesses and our construction activities
In Canada and the Canbbean
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2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Segmental revenue and profit

2009 2008
Operating QOperating
profit before profit before
intangible intangible
amgrtisaton, amaoartisation
impairment and impaurment and
non-recurmng non-recurnng
Revenue operating items Revenue operating items
fm fm fm fm
Support services
Group 2,108 3 1029 2,2271 995
Share of jointly controlled entities 2812 148 2364 140
2,3895 1177 2,463 5 135
Inter-segment 1177 - 124 3 -
Total 2,507 2 1177 2,5878 1135
Public Private Partnership projects
Group 11 - 09 02)
Share of jointly controlled entities 2145 322 1775 300
215.6 322 1784 298
Inter-segment - - — _
Total 2156 322 178 4 298
Mtddle East construction services
Group 130 2 68 1m7z 64
Share of jointly controlled entities 423 4 40 2 3525 281
553 6 470 464 2 345
Inter-segment - - - -
Total 5536 470 464 2 345
Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
Group 2,264 6 317 2,094 1 68
Share of jointly controlled entities 32 {(08) 56 19
2,2678 309 20997 287
Inter-segment 577 - 395 -
Total 2,3255 309 2,392 287
Group ehminattons and unallocated items (175 4) (10 5) (163 8) (12 4)
Consolidated
Group 4,504 2 1309 44338 1201
Share of jointly controlled entities 9223 864 7720 740
Total 54265 2173 5,205 8 194 1
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Segmental revenue and profit {continued)

2009 2008
Em fm
Group and share of jointly controlled entities’ operating profit before intangible amertisation,
impairment of other investments and non-recurring operating items 2173 194 1
Net financial expense
- Group (14 6) (77
- Share of jointly controlled entities (14 0) (18 2)
Share of jointly controfled entities’ taxation (6 5) Qo7
Underlying profit before taxation 1822 157 5
Intangible amortisation and impairment of other Investments® (30 8) (54 5)
Non-recurnng operating itemst (15 2) (227)
Non-operating iternst" 15 356
Profit before taxation 14727 1159
Taxation (11 5) {41)
Profit for the year 136 2 111 8
(1) intangible amortisation and impairment of ather investments non recurring operating items and non-operating rtems arse in the following segments
2009 2008
Intangible
amartisation
Intangibie  Non-recurring Non-operating and Nen-recurnng  Non-operating
amaortisation operating items items impairment®? cperating items 1ems
£m £m fm fm fm £m
Support services (22 5) (4 6) 103 (31 5) {17 5) -
Public Private Partnership projects - - 12 nn ©4a) 356
Construction services (exctuding the Middle East) (8 3) 97) - (11 3) 211) -
Unallocated Group items - (0 9} - - 163 -
Total (30 8) (152) 115 (54 5} (227) 356
Depreaiation, amortisation and impairment and capital expenditure anise in the following segments
2009 2008
Depreciation Depretiation,
and Capnal amortisation Capntal
amortisation expenditure  and imparrment® expenditure
£m £m fm £m
Support services (42 5) {30 3) (50 2) 71
Public Private Partnership projects - - 17 -
Middle East construction services {20) {19) 12 @n
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) (111 (43 (13 8 @7
Unallocated Group items (121) (16 6) (9 6) (23 1)
Total {677) {531) (86 5) 49 0)

{2) Includes impairment of other investments wattun Public Private Partnership prajects of £11 7 milhon
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2 Segmental reporting {continued)

Segmental net assets

2009 2008™
Net operatng Net operating
Operating Operating assets/ Operating Operating assets/
assets habilities {hrabihties) assets habilities (habilities)
£m £m £fm fm £m im
Support services
Intangible assets arising from business combinations 956 5 - 956 5 986 7 - 9867
Operating assets 434 4 - 434 4 5412 - 5412
Investments 97 - 97 98 - 98
Total operating assets 1,400 6 - 1,400 6 1,5377 - 1,5377
Total operating habilities - (528 9) (528 9) - (651 9} (6519)
Net operating assets/(liabilities) 1,400 6 (528 9) 8717 15377 (6519) 8858
Public Private Partnership projects
Operating assets 55 - 55 25 - 25
Investments 79 2 - 792 136 8 - 136 8
Total operating assets 847 - 847 1393 - 1393
Total operating liabilities - (15 4) (15 4) - 92) @2)
Net operating assets/{habilities) 847 (15 4) 693 1393 92) 1301
Middle East construction services
Operating assets 101.6 - 1016 76 - 716
Investments 48 0 - 480 427 - 427
Total operating assets 149 6 - 1496 143 - 143
Total operating hiabilities - (127 0) (127 Q) - (86 2) (86 2)
Net operating assets/(habilities) 149 6 (127 0) 226 i14 3 86 2) 281
Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
Intangible assets anising from business combinations 276 0 - 2760 2839 - 2839
QOperating assets 583 4 - 5834 629 3 - 629 3
Investments 40 2 - 402 49 3 - 49 3
Total operating assets 899.6 - 8996 9625 - 9625
Total operating habilities - (939 6) (939 6) - {901 0) 901 0)
Net operating assets/{liabilities) 899 6 {939 6) (40 0} 962 5 (901 0) 615
Consolhdated before Group items
Intangble assets ansing from business combinations 1,232 5 - 1,2325 1,270 6 - 1,270 6
QOperating assets 1,124 9 - 11249 1,244 6 - 1,244 6
Investments 1771 - 1771 2386 - 2386
Total operating assets 2,5345 - 2,5345 27538 - 2,7538
Total operating habilities - {1,610 9) {1,610 9) - (1,648 3) {1,648 3)
Net operating assets/{liabilities)
before Group items 2,5345 (1,610 9) 923 6 27538 (1,648 3) 1,1055
Group 1tems
Deferred tax 1325 {373} 952 1039 {60 0) 439
Net borrowing 2672 (242 3} 249 2573 (484 0) (226 7)
Retirement benefits (gross of taxation) 26 (296.4) (293 8) 371 (146 2) (109 1)
Income tax 46 (11 3} 67 06 31 (2 5
Other 1287 (94 7} 340 1614 (104 9) 565
Net assets/(habilities} 3,0701 (2,292 9) 7772 3,314 1 (2,446 5) 8676
{1} Restated on adoption of IFRIC 14 {see note 33}
Cartlion plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

2. Segmental reporting (continued)

Geographic information - by ongin

2009 2008
£m fm
United Kingdom
Total revenue from external customers 4,241 2 4,3771
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (437 8) (359 8)
Group revenue from external customers 3,803 4 40173
Non-current assets 1,414 9 1,523 8
Middle East
Total revenue from external customers 564 4 4736
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue {434 2) (3619)
Group revenue from external customers 1302 M7
Non-current assets 537 516
Canada and the Canbbean
Total revenue from external customers 5412 3018
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (36) (75}
Group revenue from external customers 5376 294 3
Non-current assets 146 102 2
Rest of the World
Total revenue from external customers 797 533
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (46 7) {42 8)
Group revenue from external customers 330 105
Non-current assets 34 51
Consohdated
Total revenue from external customers 5,426 5 5,205 8
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (922 3) (772 0}
Group revenue from external customers 4,504 2 4,433 3
Non-current assets
Total of geographic analysis above 1,586 6 1,6827
Retirement benefit assets 26 371
Deferred tax assets 1325 i039
Total non-current assets 1,7217 18237
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2 Segmental reporting (continued)

Revenues from the Group’s major customer 1s shown below

Public Private
Support services Partnership projects Construction services Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m Em £im fm £m £m £m £m
UK Government 8238 856 4 1753 172 8 1,065 6 1,082 1 2,064 7 2,113
3 Group operating profit
2009 2008
fm fm
Group operating profit has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 347 306
Amortisation of intangible assets 330 44 2
Impairment of trade recewvables 29 34
Impairment of other non-current asset mvestments - 17
Other operating (expense)income — loss/{profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 8 3)
Operating lease charges 826 1060
Foreign exchange gains (2 3) (67
Loss on dervative financial assets and habilities held for trading 01 18
Auditors' remuneration
Fees payable 1o the Company’s audrtor for the audit of the annual accounts 03 04
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its assoaates for other services
— Audit of the Company’s subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 08 12
— Other services pursuant to legislation 01 02
— Taxation services 03 04
Fees in respect of Group pension schemes
— Audit 01 01

In addiion to the above amounts induded in operating profit, KPMG Audit Plc were paid fees associated with the acquisition of Alfred
McAlpine in 2008 of £0 8 million and the acquisition of the Vanbots Group in 2008 of £0 1 millen Such fees are treated as attributable
costs of acquisition There were no such fees in 2009

Carillion’s share of the fees paid to KPMG Audit Pl and its associates by Group jointly controlled entites in respect of audit services
amounted to £0 1 million 2008 £0 1 million)

4 Intangible amortisation and impairment of other investments

2009 2008

fm fm

Amortisation of intangible assets ansing from business combinations (30 8) 42 8)
Imparment of other Investments - 7
(30 8) (54 5)

Following the project being placed in administration, an impairment charge of £11 7 million was recognised 1n 2008 in relation to the
Alice Springs to Darwin rallway investment which 1s classified as part of other non-current investments in the balance sheet
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

5. Non-recurring operating items and non-opetating items
Non-recurring operating items

2009 2008
fm fm

Curtaifment gain 01 355
Rationalisation ¢osts (9 9) -
Alfred McAlpine integration and recrganisation costs - (55 0}
Vanbots Group integration and recrganisation costs - 32
Office of Fair Trading penalty {5 4) -
(15 2) (22 7)

As part of the Group's strategy for managing defined benefit pension scheme risk, the benefits for members of the Alfred McAlpine
Pension Plan will no longer be linked to final salary with effect from 31 December 2009 resulting in a curtailment gain of £0 1 million
{net of expenses of £3 2 million) Followtng the completion of a consultation process on the closure to future accrual of four defined benefit
schemes in December 2008, a curtallment gain of £35 5 million (net of expenses of £2 8 milllon} was recognised in 2008 There 15 no
deferred tax relating to curtaiment gains in 2009 (2008 £9 9 mill:on)

Rationahsation costs of £9 9 million relate to non-recurring redundancy and other associated costs mcurred in the rationalisation of the
Group’s structure at the end of 2009, induding ensunng that the size of the Group’s UK construction capability reflects the expected
decline in our general construction markets, while maintaining the capability to support the delivery of Public Private Partnership projects
and meet the needs of the support services business

The Office of Fair Trading (OFT} penalty of £5 4 mulkon was imposed on Canllion JM Limited (CIM) (formerly Mowlem) following the
conclusion of the OFT's investigation of cover pricing in the ¢onstruction industry {under the Competition Act 1998} The penaliy relates
to CJM’s construction business and relates entirely to the period prior to CIM's acquisition by Carilion No other member of the Group
was subject to the investigation

Alfred McAlpine and Vanbots Group integration and reorganisation costs in 2008 primarily relate to redundancy and property exit costs
ansing from a review of the Group's requirements following the acquisition of these businesses in 2008

An income tax credit of £2 8 million (2008 £16 5 million) relating to the above has been included within taxation in the
income statement

Non-operating items

2009 2008
£m fm

Profit on disposal of investments in jointly controlled entities 12 356
Profit on disposal of businesses 103 -
15 356

Further disclosure on the Group’s sale of businesses and investments in jointly controlled entities can be found in note 30

There 15 no iIncome tax assocated with any of the non-operating items in either 2009 or 2008
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6 Financial income and expense

2009 2008
£m £m
Financal income
Bank interest receivable 1 73
Other interest recevable 105 98
Expected return on retirement plan assets 1018 1203
134 1374
Financial expense
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (10 5) {25 9}
Other interest payable and similar charges (13 5) (11°5)
Interest cost on retirement plan obligations (104 0) (107 7}
{128 0) {145 1)
Net finanaal expense (14 6) an
Other interest payable and similar charges includes finance lease charges of £4 1 million (2008 £4 6 millon)
No borrowing costs have been capitalised in 2009 as they are not matenal
7 Payroll costs and employee numbers
2009 2008
£m £m
Wages and salaries 8895 8696
Socal security costs 802 875
Pension costs/Aincome) 253 (25)
Equity settled transactions 39 34
998 9 958 O

Pension costs represent amounts in respect of the Group's UK and overseas schemes as described i note 31 and ncludes a curtalment
gain of £3 3 million (2008 £38 3 milion} and a charge of £20 5 millon (2008 £10 5 milion) in respect of defined contrnbution schemes
The curtailment gain of £38 3 mulhion In 2008 arose following the closure of a number of defined benefit pension schemes to future

accrual

Detalled mformation concerming Directors’ remuneration, Inciuding their pension benefits and long term incentive arrangements, 1s set

out In the Remuneration Report on pages 47 to 53

The average number of employees during each year, induding Directors, was

2009 2008

Number Number

Support services 20,350 23,026
Public Private Partnership projects 37 46
Middle East construction services 4,578 4,902
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 8,032 7,287
Corporate centre 315 378
33,312 35,639

UK 23,972 27,54}
Overseas 9,340 8,098
33,312 35,639

In addition to the above there are 18,448 staff (2008 22,839) employed within the Group’s jointly controlled entities located in the

Middle East

Canlhon plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2009

73

SIUDLLDIE)S [EDUELIY — §0 UONIAS




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

8 Income tax
Recognised in the iIncome statement

2009 2008
£m fm
Current tax expense
Current year
- UK 09 26
— Overseas 51 29
Adjustments for prior years
- UK (LR} 03
- Dverseas 07 {18
Total current tax 12 40
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 57 69
Adjustments for prior years 46 (6 8)
Total deferred tax 103 01
Total iIncome tax expense in the iIncome statement 115 41
Reconcihation of effective tax rate
2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before tax 1477 159
Tax of jointly controlled entities 65 107
154 2 126 6
Income tax at UK standard corporation tax rate of 28 0% (2008 28 5%) 432 361
Permanent differences 30 12
Unrelieved trade losses 48 11
Capial items not taxable (8 0) &3
Effect of tax losses utilised (38) an
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (12 4) 19
Effect of foreign profits exemption {8 6) -
Over provided In prior years {02 {8 3)
Recognition of deferred tax on prior year losses - a0
Total tax (iIncluding tax of jointly controlled entities) 180 14 8
Tax of jointly controlled entities {6 5) (107)
Group income tax expense 115 41

The introduction of the foreign profits exemption with effect from 1 July 2009 has had a twofold impact on the current year tax charge
Firstly, current year profits earned 1n low tax junsdictions no longer require the provision of a taxable temporary adjustment, the impact

of which s included within *Effect of tax rates in foreign junsdictions’ Secondly, 1t has allowed the release of the hability that was
assoctated with the taxable temporary differences that arose on the historical unremitted earnings from investments overseas

The amount over provided in prior years of £0 2 million includes £Nif (2008 £8 3 million) attributable to the agreement of certan issues

with the tax authonties and the release of a taxable timing difference assocrated with an investment in an overseas subsidiary

Tax (asset)/liability recogmised directly in equity

2009 2008

fm £m

Deferred tax on actuarial losses on defined berefit pension schemes (61 5} (259)
Current tax on foreign exchange translation adjustments 02 (19
Tax recogrised n statement of comprehensive mcome {61 3) (27 8}
Deferred tax on equity settled transactions 11 10
Total tax recognised n equity (60 2) (26 8)
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9 Earnings per share

{a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 1s based on the profit attnbutable to equity holders of the
parent of £132 4 million (2008 £108 3 milllon) and a weighted average number of erdinary shares in issue of 396 0 milion

(2008 381 7 milicn), calculated as follows

in millions of shares 2009 2008
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 395.7 2812
Effect of shares issued in the year 07 1010
Effect of own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan and Qualfying Employee Share Ownership Trust (0.4) {0 5)
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 396 0 3817

(b) Underlying performance

A reconchation of profit before taxation and basic earnings per share, as reported in the income statement, to underlying profit before
taxation and earmings per share 15 set out below The adjustments made in arriving at the underlying performance measures are made to
ibustrate the impact of non-trading and nan-recurnng stems

2009 2008
Profit Profit
before tax Tax before tax Tax
£m £m £m £m
Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation as reported in the income statement 1477 15 159 41
Amortisation of intangible assets ansing from business combinations 308 86 428 122
Curtalment gain 1) - (355} 99)
Restructuring costs 29 28 58 2 165
Office of Farr Trading penalty 54 - - -
Profit on disposal of investments and businesses (11 5) - (35 6} -
Impairment of other investments - - n7 -
Underlying profit before taxation 182 2 229 1575 229
Underlying taxation (22 9) (22 9}
Underlying profit attributable to minornty interests'" (50) (35)
Underlying profit attnbutable to shareholders 154 3 1311

(1} Areconciliation of minonty interests as reperted in the Inceme staterment to underlying profit attnbutable to minanty interasts shown abave & et out below

2009 2008

£m £m

Profit attributable to minonty interests as reported in the ncome statement 38 35
Restructuring costs {net of tax of £0 5m) 12 -
Underlying profit attnibutable to minonty interests 50 35
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

9. Earnings per share (continued)

2009 2008
Pence per Pence per
share share
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 334 284
Amortisation of intangible assets arising from business combinations 56 80
Curtalment gain - &7
Restructuning costs — Group 18 109
- attnbutable to minority Interests 03) -
Office of Far Trading penalty 14 -
Profit on disposal of investments and businesses {29 (G 4)
Impairment of other investments - 31
Underlying basic earnings per share 390 343
Underlying diluted earnings per share (post-tax basis} 387 341
(c) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share Is based on profit as shown in note 9 (a) and {b) and a weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding calculated as follows
In milions of shares 2009 2008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 396 0 3817
Effect of share options in issue 22 28
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {(diluted) at 31 December 398 2 3845
10 Dividends
The following dividends were paid by the Company
2009 2008
Pence per Pence per
£m share fm share
Previous year final dividend 352 89 296 75
Current year interim dividend 18.2 46 16 2 41
534 135 458 116
The following dividends were proposed by the Company
2009 2008
Pence per Pence per
£m share £m share
Interim 182 46 162 41
Final 39.7 100 352 89
57.9 14 6 514 130

The final dmidend for 2009 of 10 0 pence per share was approved by the Board on 3 March 2010 and, subject to approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 18 June 2010 to shareholders on the register on 23 April 2010
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
Landand  equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 205 1759 19 4
Additions 174 s 48 9
Disposals n (38.6) {46 3)
Disposals arising from sale of businesses (see note 30} {02) (92 (9 4)
Reclassification (to intangible assets) - (14} {14)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates {0 5) 16 11
At 31 December 2009 295 159 8 1893
Deprecaation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2009 15 277 292
Depreciation charge for the year 38 309 347
Disposals (53) (33 0) (38 3)
Disposals arising from sale of businesses (see note 30} - (37) £}
Redassification (to intangible assets) - 0 (10)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates - 02 02
At 31 December 2009 - 211 211
Net book value
At 1 January 2009 190 148 2 167 2
At 31 December 2009 295 138 7 168 2
Included In the net book value of plant, equipment and vehicles is £40 2 million (2008 £47 7 million) in respect of assets held under
finance leases and hire purchase contracts The leased equipment secures lease obligations as disclosed in note 20
Plant,
Land and equipment
buldings  and vehucles Total
£m fm £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 188 194 138 2
Acquisitions {see note 30) 39 219 258
Addmions 68 395 463
Disposals (106 (18 1) (28 7)
Redassification {net from intangible assets} 10 11 o1
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 26 121 147
At 31 December 2008 205 1759 196 4
Deprecation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2008 25 432 67
Depreciation charge for the year 17 2889 306
Disposals (2 9) (12 4) (15 3}
Redassification 05 05 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 07 65 72
At 31 December 2008 15 277 292
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 16 3 1152 1315
At 31 December 2008 190 148 2 167 2

Acquisitions In 2008 of £25 8 million relate to the acquisition of Alfred McAlpine and the Vanbots Group as disclosed in note 30
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

12 Intangible assets

Customer Total ansing Coemputer
contracts and from business software
Goodwill lists combinations and hcences Total
£fm £m £m fm £m
Cost
At 1 January 2009 1,100 8 2506 13514 133 1,364.7
Additions - - - 43 4.3
Disposals - - - (2 5) (2.5)
Disposals ansing from sale of businesses {see note 30) - {9 8) {9 8) - (9.8)
Reclassification {from property, plant and equipment) - - - 14 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 05 01 06 - 06
At 31 December 2009 1,013 2409 1,342 2 16.5 1,358 7
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2009 - 808 808 70 878
Amortisation for the year - 308 30.8 2.2 330
Disposals - - - {2 5) {25
Disposals ansing from sale of businesses (see note 30) - (20) {(20) - {2 0)
Reclassification {from property, plant and equipment) - - - 10 1.0
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates - 01 01 - 01
At 31 December 2009 - 1097 1097 77 1174
Net book value
At 1 January 2009 1,100 8 169 8 1,270 6 63 1,276 9
At 31 December 2009 1,1013 1312 1,232 5 88 1,241 3
Customer Total artsing Computer
conjracts and  from business software
Goodwlli” fists  combinations and licences Total
£m im fm £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2008 466 4 1226 5890 104 599 4
Acquisitions (see note 30) 6335 1278 7613 - 7613
Additions - - - 27 27
Reclassification 10 property, plant and equipment - - - ©n ©on
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange rates 09 02 11 03 14
At 31 December 2008 11008 2506 1,3514 133 13647
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2008 - 380 380 56 436
Amortisation for the year - 428 42 8 14 a4 2
At 31 December 2008 - 808 808 70 878
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 466 4 846 5510 48 5558
At 31 December 2008 1,100 8 1698 1,27086 63 1,276 9

(1} Upon the adeption of IFRIC 14 on 1 January 2069 goodwill arising on the acquisition of Alfred McAlpine 1n 2008 has been restated Thss has resulted in an increase of £9 4 millon in the

goodwill ansing on acquisition reflecting the recegnition of deficit funding obhgations in relation to defined benefit pension arrangements

Goodwill of £633 5 million and customer contracts and lists of £127 8 million arose 1in 2008 on the acguisition of Alfred McAlpine and
the Vanbots Group as disclosed m note 30 The goodwill recognised on these acquisitions represents the present value of future income
streams expected to be generated from margin growth in the businesses acquired together with identifiable cost savings within the

enlarged Group
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12 Intangible assets {continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units contaiming goodwill
The following units have sigrificant amounts of goodwaill

2009 2008
fm fm
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) segment
Building 1630 163 0
Infrastructure 700 700
Canada 105 100
2435 2430
Support services segment
Business services 8057 8057
Infrastructure services 52.1 521
8578 8578
Total goodwill 1,101 3 1,100 8

(1) Restated on adeption of IFRIC 14 (see note 33)

Each year, and whenever events or a change in the economic environment indicates a nsk of imparrment, the Group reviews the value of
goodwill balances allocated to 1ts cash generating units In the absence of any identified iImpairment risks, tests are performed based on
internal valuations of each cash generating urut {CGU)

Management consider Support serwces, Public Private Partnership projects, Middle East construction services, Construction services
{excduding the Middle East), and Head office as distinct reporting segments Goodwill has been allocated to the apphcable cash
generating uruts (CGUs), within the Construction services and Support services reporbing segments detailed above Qur CGUs have
been dentified within our reporting segments as those businesses that generate cash Inflows largely mdependently of other businesses
within the Group, and which are subject to independent management

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The value tin use in 2009 was determined on a
similar basts to 2008 The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the period These assumptions were reviewed in 2008 and revisited in 2009 in the
light of the challenging economic environment which resulted in more conservative estimates about the future The impact of the global
economic downturn on the financial stability of our customers, partners and suppliers will be mitigated by continuing to apply ngorous
selectivity cnitena in relation to therr financial stabelity, the security of project funding and contractual terms and conditions

Drscount rates have been estmated based on pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks speafic to the CGUs Whilst the Group has five CGUS, the nsks and rewards assocated with Construction services are consistent,
and therefore one discount rate has been applied to each CGU Similarly the nisks and rewards encountered in the Support services
CGUs are consistent so one discount rate has been applied to each CGU In determining the discount rate management have sought
to arnve at a pre-tax Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) using the capital asset pricong model to determine the cost of equity
and then weighting the overall cost of caprtal for the Group by equrty and debt In calculating the cost of equity a range of market

nsk premiums were used with a Beta value of 0 74 (2008 09) A market premium of 9 0 per cent (2008 9 0 per cent) was used to
calculate a pre-tax discount rate of 12 4 per cent (2008 13 per cent) for the CGUs in the Construction services {excluding the Middle
East) segment A market premium of 5 8 per cent (2008 5 1 per cent) was used to calculate a pre-tax discount rate of 95 per cent
(2008 9 0 per cent) for the CGUs in the Support services segment The annual growth rates are based on internal assessments with no
growth anticipated for the Construction services segment and Infrastructure services CGU and growth expected in the Business services
CGU at 5 0 per cent for the next 5 years, 2 5 per cent growth for years six to ten which reflects expected changes to the Retail Price
Index and no growth thereafter
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

12 Intangible assets {continued}

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the following

year and extrapolates cash flows based upon the growth rates ndicated above These growth rates do not exceed the long term

industry average and reflect the synergies from recent acquisiions The impairment tests at 31 December 2009 show that for all CGUs
the number of years required to recover the carrying value is below 11 years Management consider that these pay back periods are not
excessive given the long term strateqic benefit of all the acquisitions and in particular the acquisition of Mowlem and Alfred McAlpine
Sensitwity analysis on the discount rate shows an increase of 10 per cent does not increase the number years 10 recover the carrying

amount over 12 years for any of the CGUs Sensitivity analysis on the Business services growth rate shows that with no growth the

number of years required to recover the carrying value increases to 15 years

As at 31 December 2009, based on internal valuations, Canilion plc management concluded that the recoverable value of the cash

generating units tested exceeded therr carrying amount

Amoertisation charge

The amortisation charge of £33 0 million (2008 £44 2 million) 1s recognised mn administrative expenses in the income statement

Amortisation of the intangible asset of £113 0 million ansing on the acqussition of Mowlem in 2006 will be 79 per cent complete by
2016 The remaining amortisation charge 1s mcurred aver the following 25 years Amortisation of the intangible asset of £125 4 million
ansing on the acquisition of Alfred McAlptne in 2008 will be 84 per cent complete by 2013 with the remaining amortisation charge

continuing untl 2019

13 Investments in jointly controlled entities

Equity Loan Total
inyestments advances investments Goodwill Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2009 146 6 518 198 4 21 2005
Equity investments 28 - 28 - 28
Disposals (56 2) {24 0) (80 2) - (80 2}
Net loans advanced - 124 124 - 124
Reclassification to other investments {see note 14) (35 4) - {35 4) - (35 4)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 08 13 21 - 21
At 31 December 2009 586 s 1001 21 102 2
Share of post acquisition results
At 1 January 2009 381 - 381 - 381
Share of results for the year after taxation 659 - 659 - 659
Share of change in fair value of cash flow hedges (net of tax) (8 3} - (8 3) - (83)
Disposals 1) - 91 - (91)
Distributions received Mn - "7 - a417)
Reclassification to other investments (see note 14) (8 4) - {8 4) - (8 4)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (5 4) - (5 4) - (54)
At 31 December 2009 311 - 311 - 311
Net book value
At 1 January 2009 1847 518 2365 21 2386
At 31 December 2009 897 415 1312 21 1333

Equity investments of £2 8 million relates to the acquisttion in ¢ash of interests n a number of PPP project jointly controlled entities

During the year, the Group disposed of four PPP investments as disclosed in note 30
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13 Investments in jointly controlled entities (continued)

As disclosed in note 35, the Group has equity interests in a number of PPP jointly controlled entities that are in excess of 50 per cent of
the issued share capital of the entittes concerned The Group accounts for these interests using the egurty method as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of the entities s shared under the terms of shareholder agreements

Equity Lean Total
investments advances tnvestments Goodwill Total
£m fm fm £m £fm

Cost
At 1 January 2008 1271 469 1740 - 174 0
Acquisitions (see note 30) 145 - 145 - 145
Equity investments 33 - 33 21 54
Disposals (0 2) (181) {18 3) - (18 3)
Net loans advanced - 230 230 - 230
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 19 - 19 — 19
At 31 December 2008 146 6 518 198 4 21 2005
Share of post acquisition results
At 1 January 2008 119 - 119 - 119
Share of results for the year after taxation 451 - 451 - 451
Share of change in farr value of cash flow hedges (net of tax) (ER)] - (131) - (131)
Disposals 71 - 71 - 71
Distributions received {25 Oy - (25 0) - (25 0)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 121 - 121 - 121
Al 31 December 2008 381 - 381 - 381
Net book value
At 1 january 2008 1390 469 1859 - 1859
At 31 December 2008 1847 518 2365 21 2386

Equity snvestments in 2008 of £5 4 million relates to the acquisition i cash of interests in a number of development jointly controllad
entities in Canada {(£2 8 million) and the acquisition of an addional 17 per cent of the issued share capital of Modern Housing Selutiens
(Pnime) Limited {£2 & milion) Goodwill of £2 1 millien arose an the addrtional equity in Modern Housing Selutions {Prime) Limited
During 2008, the Group disposed of a portfolio of PPP mnvestments as disclosed in note 30
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

13 Investments In jointly controlled entities {continued)

The Group's aggregate share of net assets of jointly controlled entities 1s analysed below Borrowing within jointly controlled entities
amounting to £736 7 milion (2008 £1,550 3 million) are without recourse to the Carllion Group

2009 2008
PPP PRP

projects Other Total projects™ Other Total

£m £m fm fm £m £m

Non-current assets 8627 811 943 8 15127 608 15735
Cash 346 666 1012 149 8 189 168 7
Other current assets 416 3878 4294 2632 4527 7159
Share of gross assets 938 9 5355 1,474 4 19257 5324 2,4581
Current borrowing (19 5) (34 2) (537) (25 6) (07} (26 3)
Current habilities (36 5) (379 6) 416 1) (129 9} {398 6) (528 5)
Non-current borrowing (660 8) (22 2) (683 0) (1,506 5) (175) (1,524 0)
Non-current habilities {(2007) (186) (202 3) (154 8) (138 (168 6)
Provisions (10 3) - {10 3) 51 - 51
Share of gross habilities (927 8) (4376) {1,365 4) (1,821 9) (4306) (2,2525)
Share of net assets excluding dernvatives 11 979 1090 1038 101 8 2056
financial instrument dervatives (17 2) - {17 2) (18 8) - (18 8)
Share of net (habilities)/assets (61) 979 918 850 1018 186 8
Loan advances M5 - 415 518 - 518
Total investment in jointly controlled entrties 354 979 1333 136 8 101 8 238 6

{1) Comparative amounts far 2008 in respect of PPP projects have been represented to reflect the rectassfication of other current assets to non—current assets

Non-current assets and other current assets within PPP projects mclude cumulative capitalised interest amounting to £3 8 million

{2008 £3 8 million) and £52 2 million (2008 £66 2 millon) respectively

Financial instrurent dervatives within PPP projects relate to interest rate swaps entered into by the jontly controlled entities concerned
as a means of hedging nterest rate nsk and are stated net of deferred tax In accordance with International Accounting Standard 39
‘Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’, these deriviatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges with the effective
portion of movements m fair value each year recognised in the hedging reserve

14 Other investments

£m
Fair value
At 1 January 2009 138
Redassification from investment in jointly controlled entities 438
At 31 December 2009 576
Impairment losses
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 138
Net book value
At 1 January 2009 -
At 31 December 2009 438
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14 Other nvestments (continued)

Following the disposal of Group's 32 5 per cent interest in Aspire Defence Holdings Limrted on 4 December 2009, the remaining
175 per cent non-quoted equity interest that the Group retained has been redlassified to other non-current investments Upon
reclassification, the Group's interest has been recognised at farr value, which equated to book value on the date of reclassification
Farr value 1s based on the discounted future cash flows expected to arise from the investment

£m
Far value
At 1 January 2008 166
Additions 17
Disposals (4 5)
At 31 December 2008 138
Impairment losses
At 1 January 2008 21
Impairment charge 17
At 31 December 2008 138
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 145
At 31 December 2008 i
Other investments cost of £13 8 million relates to the non-guoted equity investment in the Alice Springs to Darwin railway The
investment has been fully impaired following the project being placed in administration, with the charge in 2008 of £11 7 million
recognised In admimnistrative expenses
15 Deferred tax assets and habilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and habilities
Deferred tax assets and liabitbes are atinbutable 1o temporary differences relating to the following
Assets Liabilities Net
2009 2008 2009 2008™ 2009 008"
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Praperty, plant and equipment 16.9 189 - - 169 189
Intangible assets - - {36.5) 47 3) (36 5) 47 3)
Employee benefits 827 a4 2 - {11 3) 827 329
Working capitat 80 237 - - 80 237
Other items - - - (127) - (127)
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 241 284 - - 241 284
Tax assets/lliabilities) 1317 1152 (36 5) (71 3) 952 439
Set off of tax 08 (11 3) (0.8) 13 - -
Net tax assets/(llabilities) 1325 1039 (37 3) (60 0) 952 439

(1) Restated on adopton of FRIC 14 {see note 33)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

15 Deferred tax assets and habilities {continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

2009 2008
£m fm
Tax losses 810 7110

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to
the lack of certainty concerning the guantum and timing of future years taxable profits of the companies concerned

Following the introduction of the foreign profits exemption with effect from 1 July 2009, no deferred tax liability i1s required to be
recognised in relation to taxable temporary differences arsing on unremitted earmings from overseas businesses (2008 £12 7 million)

Movements in temparary differences during the year are as follows

Balance Recognised  Recognised Balance

1)Jan 09 Disposals Innceme n equity 31 Dec 09

£m £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 189 {10) {(10) - 16 9
Intangible assets {47 3) 22 86 - (36 5)
Employee benefits 329 - (117 61.5 B27
Working capital 237 - {(157) - 80
Other items {(127) - 127 - -
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 284 - {4 3) - 241
Equity settled transactions - - 11 {11) -
439 12 (10 3) 60 4 952

Balance Recognised Recogrised Balance

1 Jan 08 Acquisitions Disposals Inincome In equity 31 Dec 08

fm fm Em £m fm £m

Property, plant and equipment 34 58 - 97 - 189
Intangible assets {23 5) (359 - 121 - (47 3)
Other investments {0 4) - 04 - - -
Employee benefits 165 222 - (31D 259 329
Working capital 23 91 - 123 - 237
Other tems (7 0) - - 5N - (127}
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised - 260 - 24 - 284
Equity settled transactions - - - 10 {10) -
87) 272 04 01 249 439

16 Inventones

2009 2008

£fm fm

Raw matenals and consumables 16 3 191
Development work in progress 209 255
372 44 6

The amount of Inventories recognised as an expense during the year was £28 1 million {2008 £14 8 million) and the amount of any
write down of inverttories recognised as an expense was £106,845 (2008 £21,033) Development work in progress of £13 9 million
(2008 £12 2 million) 15 expected to be recovered after more than 12 months
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17 Construction contracts
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
2009 2008
£m fm
Due from customers for contract work 3617 399 8
Due to customers for contract work (188 1) (163 Q)

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recogrised losses) for all contracts in progress at the balance sheet
date was £5,866 8 millon (2008 £4,293 6 million) Advances received from customers relating to contracts in progress amounted to

£166 1 million (2008 £107 5 million)

The amount of construction contract revenue recogrised as revenue In the year amounted to £2,632 8 millon (2008 £2,409 2 milion)

18 Trade and other recewvables

SIUBWALLIS |RIIURUYY - GO UOIIRS

2009 2008

£m £m

Trade recewables 3001 438 ¢
Amounts owed by customers on ¢construction contracts 3617 3998
Other recevables and prepayments 3037 3021
Amounts owed by jointly controlled entities 366 370
Amounts owed under jointly controlled operations 16 3 90
1,038 4 1,186 8

Al 31 December 2009, retentions of £67 2 rullon (2008 £99 2 mullan) relatng ta construction contracts and other amounts

recoverable after more than one year of £23 9 million (2008 £66 2 million) are included above as they are recoverable within the normal

operating cycle of the Group

19 Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing
Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing compnse

2009 2008

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 2672 2573
Bank overdrafts (14 8) {73)

Net cash and cash equivalents 2524 2500
Bark loans (141 &) {365 9)
Finance lease obligations (64 6) {79 1)
Other loans (21.5) 317
Net cash/(borrowing) 249 (2267)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

19 Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing {continued)

Reconaliation of net cash flow to movement in net borrowing

2009 2008

Em £m

Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 49 (79 5)
Repayment of bank and other loans 2337 78
Payment of finance lease habities 16 8 16 3
Decrease/(increase) in net borrowing resulting from cash flows 2554 {55 4)
Net borrowing in subsidianes acquired - (143 2}
Loan notes ssued on acquisition of Alfred McAlpine - {13}
Finance lease additions (049) (21}
Finance lease disposals - 73
Currency translation differences (3 4) 129
Change in net borrowing 2516 (181 8)
Net borrowing at 1 January (226 7) (44 9)
Net cash/(borrowing) at 31 December 249 (226 7)

20 Borrowing
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings For more information
about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 27

2009 2008
£m im
Current habilities

Bank overdrafts 148 73
Bank loans 10 109
Finance lease obhgations 16 4 166
Other loans 118 232
540 580

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 1304 3550
Finance lease obligations 48 2 625
Other loans 97 85
188 3 4260
Total borrowing 242 3 4840

All bank loans and overdrafts are unsecured and bear interest at floating rates !inked to London Interbank Offered Rate Other loans and
finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate

Finance lease habilities
Finance lease labiities are payable as follows

2009 2008

Minimum Minimum

lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m Em fm fm
Less than one year 198 (34) 16 4 206 ao| 166
Between one and five years 522 (a0) 482 690 (70) 620
More than five years - - - 05 - 05
720 (74) 64 6 901 (1 Q) 791

Under the terms of the lease agreements, no contingent rents are payable
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21 Trade and other payables

2009 2008

£m £m

Trade payables 599.6 626 0
Amounts owed to customers on construction contracts 188 1 1630
Other tax and social security costs 432 552
Amounts owed to jointly controlled entities 408 356
Amounts owed under jointly controlled operaticns 154 103
Other creditors 2121 2750
Accruals and deferred income 584 4 556 7

1,683 6 17218

Within trade and other payables are £36 0 million (2008 £34 7 million) of babilities due in more than one year but are payable within
the normal operating cycle of the Group All other trade and other payables are due within one year

22 Prowisions

Onerous

Restructunng leases Total

Em im £m

At 1 January 2009 150 16 4 314

Provisions creaied 48 22 70

Provisions utihsed during the year (13 9) (2 5) {16 4)

At 31 December 2009 59 161 220
Disclosed within

Current habilites 59 66 125

Non-current labilities - 95 95

59 161 220

The restructuring provision at 1 January 2009 relates primarily to a review of the Group's requirements following the acquisition of
Alfred McAlpme and the Vanbots Group in 2008 The provisions created in the year of £4 8 million relates to operational structure
review costs associated with the rationafisation of the Group's structure at the end of 2009

The onerous lease provision at 1 January 2009 relates to a number of onerous leases acquired with Mowlem and Alfred McAlpine and 15
expected to be utilised over a pericd of four years The provisions created in the year of £2 2 million relates primarily 1o property nterests
retained following the disposal of Canllion IT Services Linmited and Envires Group Lumited

Onerous

Restructuring leases Total

fm fm fm

At 1 January 2008 51 85 136

Provision ¢reated 159 59 218

Acquisitions {see note 30} - 45 45

Provisions utlised {6 0) (2 5) 85

At 31 December 2008 150 164 3i4
Disclosed within

Current liabiities 150 84 234

Non-current habilities - 80 80

150 16 4 314
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

23 Share capital

2009 2008
£m Em
Authonsed
700,000,000 (2008 525,000,000) ordinary shares of 50p each 3500 2625
The increase In the authorised share capital was approved at the AGM on 6 May 2009
Issued and fully paid
2009 2008
Number Nurnber
million fm midhon £fm
At 1 January 3957 1978 2812 140 6
New share caprtal ssued 16 08 1145 572
At 31 December 3973 198 6 3957 1978

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries no right to fixed income In 2008 112 9 milion Carllion plc shares were
ssued in relation to the acguisition of Alfred McAlpine

24 Reserves

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group’s net mvestment in foreign operations The translation
reserve also includes any related current taxation

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change In fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related
1o hedged transactions that have not yet occurred, together with any related deferred taxation

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the farr value of available-for-sale investments until the investment 1s
derecogrised, together with any related deferred taxation

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose on the demerger from Tarmac plc on 29 July 1999 The reserve increased on acquisition of Mowtem on

23 February 2006 and Alfred McAlpine on 12 February 2008 whereby the consideration included the issue of Carillion plc shares
The Group has opted to credit the merger reserve rather than the share premium account as permitted by The Companies Act

The £29 7 million transfer 1o the retained earnings reserve dunng the year represents the amortisation of intangible assets recognised
on the Mowlem and Alfred McAlpine acquisitions
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24 Reserves (continued)

Retained earnings

Retained earnings include the reserve for the Company’s own shares which comprises of the cost of the Company’s shares held by the
Canllion Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded to employees under the
Group’s share ncentive schemes The movements in the reserve for own shares included within retained earnings are as follows

2009 2008

£m fm
At 1 January {13) ©on
Share options exercised by employees (exercaise price) 05 -
Share options exercised (transfer to retained earrings) 39 41
Acquisition of own shares {4 2) 47
At 31 December {11) (13)

At 31 December 2009, the ESOP held 362,909 (2008 419,827) of the Company's shares and had a market value of £1 1 million
(2008 £1 0 millien) Duning the year the Company acquired 14 milion of its own shares for £4 2 million to meet the plan’s future
commitments The ESOP has elected to waive all dividends except for a total payment of 1 pence at the time each dividend is paid

In addition to the ESOP, the Company has also established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust {(‘Quest”) During the year,
91,376 ordinary shares (2008 210,859)in the Company held by the QUEST were transferred to employees of the Group following the
exercise of options under the Sharesave Scheme

At 31 December 2009 the total number of shares held under the QUEST amounted to 134,683 (2008 8,904) and had a market value of
£409,167 (2008 £22,100) The QUEST has elected to waive all dvdends in excess of 0 01 pence per share

25 Share-based payments
The Group has established a share option programme that entitles key management personnel and senior employees to shares in the
Company Full details of share option schemes can be found i the Remuneration Report on pages 47 to 53

The recogmition and measurement principles in International Financial Reporting Standard 2 *Share-based payment” {IFRS 2) have not

been applied to grants of options before 7 November 2002 in accordance with the transitional provisions in Internationat Financal
Reporting Standard 1 ‘First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” and IFRS 2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

25 Share-based payments (continued)

The terms and conditions of option schemes within the scope of IFRS 2 are as follows, whereby all options are setiled by physical

delwery of shares

MNumber of Contractual life Exerase
Grant date instruments Vesting conditions of options price
ESOS option grant at 1 July 2003 256,471 Three years of service and increase 10 years 163 4p
in EPS of RPI plus a minimum of 4%
over a rolimg three year period
ESOS opuion grant at 31 March 2004 182,540 Three years of service and increase 10 years 184 9p
in EPS of RPI plus a mimmum of 4%
over a rolimg three year period
ESOS option grant at 15 March 2005 116,034 Three years of service and tncrease 10 years 242 75p
In EPS of RPI plus a mimmum of 4%
over a rolling three year perod
Sharesave option grant at 8 November 2006 1,349,565 Three years of service 3 years 3375p
LEAP option grant at 10 April 2007 910,827 Three years of service and increase 3 years ul
in EPS of RPI plus a minimum of 3%
over a rolling three year period
LEAP option grant at 4 Apni 2008 928,830  Three years of service and increase 3 years ul
In EPS of RPI plus a mimimum of 3%
over a rolling three year period
LEAP option grant at 7 Apnl 2009 1,334,224 Three years of service and increase 3 years il
mn EPS of RPI plus & minimum of 3%
over a rolling three year period
Total share options 5,078,491

In addition to the above, the Group has three ESOS option schemes which have a grant date before 7 November 2002 The total
number of aptions outstanding at 31 December 2009 for these schemes amounted to 852,987 (2008 1,010,733) with a remaining

contractual life of either one or two years

The number and weighted average exercise prices of all of the Group’s share options 1s as follows

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise prnce of options  exeroise price of options
2009 2009 2008 2008
At 1 January 1358p 6,677,809 1516p 6,905,249
Forfeited dunng the year 1318p (952,345) 1502p {639,699
Exercised during the year 70 2p (1,290,975) 1096p (1,286,220)
Granted during the year - 1,496,989 S69p 1,698,479
At 31 December 116 4p 5,931,478 1358p 6,677,809
Exercisable at the end of the year 250 4p 2,757,597 162 2p 2,083,274

The range of option prices for those options exercisable at the end of the year 15 129 5 pence - 337 5 pence and the weighted average
remaining contractual term for these options exerasable is one year The weighted average share price during the year was 269 1 pence
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25 Share-based payments {continued)

The fair value of services recewed n return for share options granted are measured by reference to the {aw value of share oplions
granted The estimate of the fair value of the services receved 15 measured based on a Black-Scholes model using the following
assumgptions

2009 2008 2007 2006 2006

LEAP LEAP LEAP Sharesave LEAP
Fair value of share options and assumptions
Farr value at grant date 232 Sp 358 5p 392 0p 102 Op 295 0p
Share price at grant date 258 S5p 383 8p 421 0p 3850p 3190p
Exercise price - - - 3375p -
Expected volatiity 18 04% 16 01% 2197% 27 44% 28 55%
Option life 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Expected dividend yield 354% 227% 234% 2 45% 2 58%
Risk-free interest rate (based on national government bonds) 216% 396% 5 35% 5 0% 4 80%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility {catculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information

Employee expenses

2009 2008
£m £m
Equrty settled share options granted in
2005 - {04
2006 05 17
2007 12 12
2008 13 ¢9
2009 09 -
Total expense recognised as employee costs 39 34

The expected life of the options i1s taken to be the full vesting period, as historical exercise patterns have shown this to be appropnate
The esumate of the number of shares that will eveniually vest ignores the possibility that market conditions will or will not be achieved
given that these market conditions are already included in the fair value of the options

26 Guarantees and contingent habilrties

2009 2008
£m fm
Guarantees n respect of deferred equity payments in PPP jointly controlled entities - 32
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit 1ssued by banks in relation to deferred equity
payments in PPP jointly controlled entities 524 774
Guarantees in respect of letters of ¢redit 1ssued by banks in relation to performance
contracts in PPP jointly controlled entities 300 300

Guarantees and counter indemnities have been given to financial institutions in respect of the provision of performance and other
contract related bonds that are 1ssued in the normal course of business

Claims under contracts and other agreements, including joint arrangements, are outstanding in the normal course of business

The Group, In the normal course of its construction activities, 1s the subject of certain legal proceedings The resolution of these
proceedings Is regarded as unkkely to succeed or to have a matenal effect on the Group’s financial position

There are no habilities of jointly controlled entities for which the Group is contingently liable
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

27 Fimanaal instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Finanaial Financial
Loans and  habilities at assets
receivables at amortised Avaifable for held for
amortised cost cost sale trading Total
31 December 2009 £m fm £m £m £m
Financial assets
Other non-current investments - - 438 - 438
Cash and cash equivalents 2672 - - - 267 2
Trade recewvables 3001 - - - 3001
Dervative financial instruments - - - 10 10
Total 5673 - 438 10 6121
Finanaal habilities
Bank overdrafts - (14 8) - - (14 8)
Bank loans - 1141 43) - - (141 4)
Fmance lease obligations - (64 6) - - (64 6)
Other loans - 215) - - {21.5)
Trade payables - (599 &) - - (599 &)
Total - {841 9) - - (841 9)
Financial Financial
Loans and liabilities at assets
receivabtes at amortised Avatlable for held for
amortised cost Cost sale trading Total
31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m £fm
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2573 - - - 2573
Trade recevables 4389 - - - 4389
Dervative financial instruments - - - 11 11
Total 696 2 - - 11 697 3
Finanaial habiimies
Bank overdrafts - 73 - - {73)
Bank loans - (365 9) - - {365 9)
Finance lease obligations - (an - - {791}
Other loans - 17 - - {317)
Trade payables - (626 Q) - - (626 O
Total - (1,110 0} - - {1,110 0)

Finanaal risk management

Financial nsk management 15 an integral part of the way the Group 1s managed In the course of its business, the Group 1s exposed
primarily to foreign exchange risk, mterest rate nisk, iquidity risk and crednt nsk The overall aim of the Group's finanoial nsk management
pohctes is to minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance and net assets

The Group's treasury department manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by the Board
of Directors Treasury 1s not a profit centre and does not enter into speculative transactions
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27 Finanaal instruments {(continued)

Foreign currency nsk

The Group operates in a number of overseas regions, pnmarily the Middle East, Canada and the Caribbean In order to protect the
Group's balance sheet from the impact of foreign exchange rate volatility, foreign currency denominated net assets that exceed

£10 millon equivalent are hedged, as a minimum, to at least 60 per cent of the net asset value Net investment hedging of cverseas
operations 1s achieved through borrowing denominated in the relevant forergn currencies or where this 1s not practicable tn a currency
which the relevant currency closely follows

Group policy 1s to recognise gains and losses from the effective portions of the hedges in equity and to recognise ineffective portions
immedately in the income statement

Profits arising within overseas operations are not hedged unless it is planned to make a distnbution Such disiributions are then treated
as currency transactions and hedged accordingly

Pnimarily the Group has refatively small and infrequent transactional foreign currency exposures Any tndividuat exposures that are
significant are hedged using forward contracts or other appropriate risk management iechniques

Foreign currency exposure
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowing denominated i foreign currency 1s as follows

2009 2008

£m fm

United States of America Dollar (156) (17 6}
Canadian Dollar (91 6) (82 2}
United Arab Emirates Dicham (76) (8 5
Other (0 5) (15)

{115 3) (109 8)

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £115 3 million (2008 £109 8 million), the amount of berrowing used for hedging overseas
cuirency net assets amounts to £61 6 million (2008 £62 6 million} The foreign exchange gain of £1 0 milhon (2008 loss of £8 9 million)
on transfation of the borrowing into sterling has been recogrised in the translation reserve

The Group does not have a significant amount of foreign currency exposure In respect of financial assets

Each movement of five per cent in exchange rates aganst stering would have changed reported profit before tax and equity as follows

Five per cent increase Frve per cent decrease
Profit Equity Profit Equity
£m £m £m fm

United States of America Dollar 07 07 (0 8) {0.8)
Canadian Dollar (16) {4 6) 18 51
United Arab Emirates Dirham {(19) 42 21 46
Oman Rial 14 04 (15) (0 5}
Euro 01 16 (01) (18)
Danish Kroner (13) {0 3) 15 03
Qther - (05) - 05
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

27 Finanaal mstruments (continued)

Interest rate rnisk

The Group's interest bearing debt 1s predominantly sterling borrowing that arose from the acquisition of Mowlerm in 2006 and Alfred
McAlpine in 2008, ongoing working capital requirements and foreign currency denominated borrowings for hedging net assets of
averseas operations Such borrowing 1s subject to floating rates of interest linked to London Interbank Offered Rate No interest rate
hedging 1s currently undertaken by the Group's subsidiaries However, a number of the Group's Public Private Partnership jointly
controlled entrties have entered into interest rate swaps

A one percentage point rise in respect of US dollar denominated borrowing interest rates would increase the annual net interest charge
by approximately £0 3 million, in respect of Canadian dollar denominated borrowing an increase of £0 7 milhon, in respect of sterling
denominated borrowing an increase of £3 1 milllon and in respect of United Arab Emirates Dirham dencminated borrowing an increase
of £0 4 million

Liquudity risk

The Group's policy on liquidity risk 1s to ensure that sufficent borrowing faciliies are available to fund ongoing operations without the
need to carry significant net debt over the medium term The Group's prinapal borrowing faciliies are provided by a group of core
relationship banks in the form of a syndicated loan and short term overdraft facilities The guantum of committed borrowing facilities
avallable to the Group 1s reviewed regularly and 1s designed to exceed forecast peak gross debt levels The average net borrowing dunng
2008 was £274 4 milhon (2008 £329 8 miltion for the perod post the acquisition of Alfred McAlpine)

Maturity of financial habihities
The matunty profile of the contractual cash flows of the Group's liabilities 1s as follows

Trade Bank Bank Other Finance
payables overdrafts leans loans leases Total
31 December 2009 £m fm £m £m fm £m
Less than one year 5996 148 133 125 198 660 0
Between one and two years - - 25 44 213 28 2
Between two and three years - - 1311 35 179 1525
Between three and four years - - 05 30 123 158
Between four and five years - - - - 07 07
599 6 148 147 4 234 720 857 2

Trade Bank Bank QOther Finance
payables overdrafts loans loans. leases Total
31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m fm £m
Less than one year 6260 73 288 247 206 7074
Between one and two years - - 178 a1 194 413
Between two and three years - - 178 30 207 415
Between three and four years - - 368 4 17 173 3874
Between four and five years - - - 02 1ne 118
More than five years — - - - 05 05
6260 73 4328 337 901 11899
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27 Finanaal instruments {continued)

Borrowing facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at the year end in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met

2009 2008
£m £m

Expiring withun one year 74 65
Expiring between two and five years 5110 2358
518 4 242 3

Credit nisk

Credit risk anses on financial instruments such as trade recevables, short-term bank deposits and foreign currency hedging contracts
Policies and procedures exist to ensure that customers have an appropnate credit history Short-term bank deposits and foreign currency
hedging transactions are executed only with highly credit-rated authorised counterparties based on ratings 1ssued by the major rating
agencies Counterparty expasure posrtions are monitored regularly so that credit exposures to any one counterparty are approved at
main board level or within predetermined hmits The maximum exposure to credit nisk is represented by the carrying value of each
financial asset

Trade and other recevables included m the balance sheet are net of an impairment prowision which has been estmated by management
following a review of indvidual receivable accounts and 1s based on prior experience and known factors at the balance sheet date
Recewvables are written off against the impairment provision when management considers that the debt 1s no longer recoverable The
ageing of trade recevables 1s as follows

2009 2008
Net Net
trade trade

receivables  Impairment recewvables Impairment

£m £m fm fm

Not past due 1827 - 244 3 -

Past due less than 3 months 758 08 1181 11
Past due between 3 and 6 months 183 46 396 125

Past due between 6 and 12 months 129 15 280 21

Past due more than 12 months 104 27 89 11
3001 96 4389 168

The movement in the impairment provision 1s as follows

2009 2008

£m fm

At 1 January 168 134
Provision acquired - 12
Prowision created 29 34
Provision utilised (76} 04
Prowision released 25 0 8)
At 31 December 96 168

In the current global economic chimate, whilst uncertainty surrounding counterparty nsk has increased, on balance the Group believes
that debtors will meet their payment obligation in respect of the amount of trade receivables recognised in the balance sheet that are
past due and unprowided as at 31 December 2009

Overall, the Group considers that it 15 not exposed to a sigmficant amount of credit nsk
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

27 Financial instruments (continued)

Denvative finanaal instruments

2009 2008

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Em £m fm fm

Forward foreign currency contracts 10 - 11 -

The movement In fair value of forward foreign currency contracts has been recognised in administrative expenses in the income statement

In addition to the above, a number of the Group's Public Private Partnership (PPP) ointly controlled entities have entered into interest rate
derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate nsk Interest beaning debis and the associated interest rate dervatives within these PPP
jontly controlted entities are without recourse to the Group The life of these hedge arrangements track PPP contract terms and hedge
future movements across a range spanning up untl September 2035 The fair value of these denvatives 1s based on guoted prices in
active markets, with the movement in fair value each year recognised in the share of change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges
within jointly controlled entiies in the staterment of comprehensive income At 31 December 2009 the Group’s share of the total net

fair value liabiiity of interest rate derwvatives in PPP jointly controfled entities amounted to £31 6 million (2008 £43 7 mulion) of which

£23 9 million (2008 £26 1 million) (and the related deferred tax asset of £6 7 million (2008 £7 3 million)) has been recogrised n the
hedging reserve

Fair values

Finanaal mstruments carned at fair value in the balance sheet are non-current asset other investments and denivative financial
instruments The fair value of non-current asset other investments i1s determined based on a level 3 valuation method, using valuation
techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable market data Fair value s calculated by discounting expected future cash
flows using asset specific discount rates, with the movement in fair value each year recogrised in the fair value movement on avallable
for sale assets In the statement of comprehensive ncome The farr value of denvative financial instruments is based on a level 2 valuation
methed, using Inputs from quoted prices In active markets, with the movement in fair value each year recognised in adminsstrative
expenses In the income statement

The movement in fair value of non-current asset other investments derived using a level 3 valuation method 1s shown below

£m
At 1 January 2009 -
Transfer from investments in jointly controlled entities 43 8
Farr value adjustments -
At 31 December 2009 43 8

The farr value of non-current investments 15 most sensitive 1o movements in the discount rate used A one percentage point INCrease In
the discount rate would reduce the fair value by £5 3 million

Where there are differences between the amortised cost carrying value and fair value of the Group's prinaipal financial instruments at
31 December 2009 these are shown below

2009 2008
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Farr value
£m £m £m fm
Trade recewables 3001 2992 4389 4373
Trade payables (599 6) (599 6) 626 0) (626 0)
Cash and cash equivalents 267 2 2672 2573 2573
Bank overdrafts {14 8) {14 8) (73) (73
Bank loans (141 4) (141 4) (365 9) (365 9)
Finance lease obligations (64 6) (56 6) (791) 65 4)
Other loans {21 5) {21 5) 317 317

Far value 1s calculated by discounting future cash flows using appropriate interest rates Finance lease obligations are valued by
calculating the present value of the future minimum lease payments
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27 Finanaal nstruments (continued)

Capital nsk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and {or other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal debt and equrty structure

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of the dividends paid to shareholders, return
capnal to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt The Group has a policy of progressively mcreasing dividends
paid to shareholders broadly in line with earnings per share growth, after taking account of the Investment needs of the business
No changes were made In the objectives, policies or process during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008

2009 2008
£m £m
Total borrowings 2275 4767
Less net cash and cash equivalents {(note 19) (252 4) (250 0)
Net (cash)/borrowing (24 9) 2267
Total equity 7772 8676
Total capital 752 3 1,094 3
28 Financial and capital commitments
2009 2008
£m Em
Commitments for capital expenditure in subsidiaries - 100
Commitments for equity and subordinated debt mvestments n PPP jontly controlled entities 752 895
752 995
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2009 2008
Property Other Praperty Other?
£m £m fm fm
Within one year 160 315 177 267
Between one and five years 408 528 435 344
Over five years 319 13 337 42
887 856 949 653

(1} Cormparatve amounts for 2008 in respect of other lease commitments have been restated 1o reflect operating lease commitments now identfied as part of the integration of Alfred McAlpwme

The Group leases properties and vehicles for operational purposes Property leases vary considerably in length up to a maximum
period of 99 years Vehicle leases typically run for a period of 3 5 years None of the leases includes contingent rentals

The total future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be recewed under non-cancellable sub-leases amount to £3 9 million
(2008 £4 7 million} at the balance sheet date

29 Related parties
Identity of related parties
The Group has related party relationships with its key management personnel and jointly controlled entities

Transactions with key management personnel
The Group's key management personnel are the Executive and Non-Executive Directors as identified in the Remuneration Report on
page 48

In addition to therr salanes, the Group also provides non cash benefits to Executive Directors, and contributes to a post-employment defined
benefit plan or a defined coninbution plan on therr behalf Executive Directors also participate in the Group's share option programme

Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for their serwvices to the Carillion plc Board
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

29 Related parties (continued)

Full details of key management personnel compensation i1s given in the Remuneration Report on pages 47 to 53

Other than disclosed in the Remuneration Report, there were no other transactions with key management personnel in erther the

current or preceding year The IFRS 2 cost charged to administrative expenses relating to share options of key managerment personnel

amounted to £2 0 million (2008 £1 8 milion}

Transactions with jointly contrelled entrties

The table below summarises the principaf receivable and payable balances, together with sales to the Group’s jointly controlled entities,
which are in the normal course of business and on commercial terms

2009 2008
Sales Recewvables Payables Sales Recevables Payables
£m fm £m f£m fm Em
PPP jointly controlled entities
Aspire Defence Holdings Limited 1914 19 - 1857 03 -
Inspiredspaces Nottingham Limited 453 66 - 65 - -
Eastbury Park (Holdings} Limited 451 21 - 76 8 - -
Inspiredspaces STaG Limited 406 51 (4 5) 113 - -
The Hospital Company {QAH Portsmouth) Holdings Limited 348 01 - 1016 06 -
Holdfast Training Services Ltd 320 05 - - - -
Inspiredspaces Nottingham (Project Company 1) Limited 226 33 - 130 - -
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Project Company 1) Limited 167 15 - - - -
Inspiredspaces Durham Limited 141 11 - - - -
Clticenta (Hertfordshire) Ltd 139 - - - - -
Integrated Accommodation Services Limited 120 13 - 07 01 -
Inspiredspaces STaG (Heldings) Limited 11 - (10.0) 126 - -
Inspiredspaces Tameside Limited 79 02 - - - -
Education 4 Ayrshire {Holdings) Limited 55 18 {5.2} 299 14 -
Sheppey Route {(Holdings) Limited 18 20 - 15 09 02)
Aspire Services Limited - - - - - B2
Others 270 14 - 306 10 (07)
5218 389 (19 7) 470 2 43 @an
Other jointly controlled entities
CardiionEnterprise Limited 453 - (3.2 673 66 (87)
Al Futtaim Carillion LLC 39 30 {0.7) 48 50 (02}
Carlion Richardson Partnership - 143 (62) - - 62
CR Thanet Lumited Partnership 1 01 - 73 17 45)
Canflion Richardson - - (10 8) - i76 {102
Others 12 03 {0.2) 13 18 an
5723 566 (40 B) 5509 370 (35 6)

30 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisttions in 2009
There have not been any business acquisitions durning 2009

Acquisitions in 2008

On 12 February 2008, the Group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Alfred McAlpine for total consideration of £554 5 million

The total consideration was sausfied by the issue of 112 9 mulion Carillion plc shares valued at the quoted mid-market price at the

close of business on the day preceding the effective date of acquisition of 337 75 pence and £171 7 mifion in cash and £1 3 miflion

of loan notes
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30 Acquisttions and disposals (continued)

Alfred McAlpne, its subsidiartes and jointly controlled entrties operate in a number of sectors and industries, particularly facilities
management, infrastructure services, civil engineermg and construction

The acguistion had the following effect on the Group’s assets and habiles

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date

Inztial Carrying Accounting Acquired

carrying amount Carrying Farr value policy intangible Recognised

amounts™  adjustments® amounts  adjustments®  adjustrments assets velues

fm fm £m £m £m im £m

Property, plant and equipment 264 - 264 (VI - - 257
Intangible assets 2298 {45 3) 1845 (184 5) - 1254 125 4
Investments in jointly controlled entrties 134 - 134 09 - - 143
Deferred tax assets 279 331 610 09 - - 619
Inventories 12 - 12 - - - nz
Trade and other receivables 3040 (101 2) 2028 - (15 5) - 1873
Assets held for sale 167 - 167 23 - - 190
Cash and cash eguivalents 468 - 468 - - - 168
Borrowing {143 2) - (143 2) - - - (143 2)
Trade and other payables (292 2) - (292 2) 03 - - (291 9)
income tax 14y - (14) - - - (14}
Retirement benefit liabilities (42 8} (29 0) {71 8) (3 2) - - {75 0}
Deferred tax habiities (29} - (29 29 - {35 1) (35 1)
Provisions (4 5) - (45) - - - {45
Net identifrable assets and liabilities 1892 (142 4) 46 8 (181 1) (15 5} 90 3 (59 5)
Goodwill recagrised on acquisition 624 4
Total consideration (including attributable costs) 564 9

{1} Upon the adoption of Internaticnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (FRIC) 14 on 1 January 2009 the carrying amounts In relation to retirement benefit liabilities and deferred
tax assets have been restated This has resulted in an increase in the carrying amount adjustments to retirerent benefit labiities and deferred tax assets of £13 1 milbon and £3 7 milhen
respectively reflecting the recognitron of deficit funding chligations in relation to defined benefit pension arrangements together with the associated deferred tax asset The overall impact

of IFRIC 14 has been to increase goodwill recognised on acquisiion by £9 4 milkon

There are two types of adjustments which have been reflected in the above, {3) those which have been made to Alfred McAlpine’s initial
carrying amounts for events up to the acquisition date and (b) those which have been made to the acquired assets and liabilities of

Alfred McAlpine The allocation of these adjustments between these two categories involves a degree of jJudgement and both

categories should therefore be considered when reviewing the Alfred McAlpine balance sheet

The determination of the carrying amount adjustments by Alfred McAlpine included 1n {a} followed a dialogue between Alfred

McAlpmne's and Carillion’s management teams during the course of the due diligence period granted to Carillion by Alfred McAlpine

Both types of adjustments are discussed further below

(a) Carrying amount adjustments

The £46 8 million carrying amount of net assets acquired at 12 February 2008 (restated for the impact of IFRIC 14 as set out above)

Incorporates a number of adjustments made to Alfred McAlpine’s instial carrying amounts These adjustments followed a nigorous

review of all balance sheet categories, including over 400 contracts, and include the following items, which are stated net of deferred
tax where approprate

A reduction in the capitalised value of IT assets of £45 3 million which followed an imparrment review of all IT caprtaised intangible assets

A £101 2 million reduction In the carrying amount of contracts which comprised a £53 8 mithon reduction in the carrying amount of
completed contracts, with a view to faclitating a swift resolution of all cuistanding matters, including cash settlements pertaining to
these contracts and a £47 4 million reduction in the carrying amount of ongoing contracts A deferred tax asset of £25 O million was
recogrised in relation to these reductions n carrying amounts

The increase in retirement benefit labiliies of £29 0 milhon (restated for the impact of IFRIC 14 as set out above) reflected changes in
general market assumptions in respect of the rate of increase in salaries, the rate of increase in pensions, the inflation rate and the
discount rate In addition to this an associated deferred tax asset of £8 1 million was also recognised
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

30 Acquisttions and disposals (continued)

(b) Farr value adjustments

The principal farr value adjustment relates to £184 5 million of goodwill on the Alfred McAlpine balance sheet at the date of acquisition
which 1s redassified at the same value as goodwill on Carillion’s balance sheet under the requirements of International Fmancial
Reporting Standards

The £15 5 millon accounting policy adjustment results from applying Cardlion’s policy in respect of expensing rather than capitalising
certain mobilisation costs associated with the commencement of new contracts

The £90 3 millon of acquired mtangible assets relates to the value ascribed to acquired customer lists and contracts

Total consideration for the acquisition comprises the following

fm

Equity shares issued 3815
Cash 1717
Lean notes i1ssued 13
5545

Attributable costs 104
Total consideration 564 9

Attributable costs include direct adviser costs incurred in relation to the acquisition contracts and due diligence procedures

On 8 QOctober 2008, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of the Vanbots Group for a total consideration of £18 4 mullion
The Vanhots Group operates primarily as a construction management services group in Canada

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities

Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisiion date

Accounting Acguired
Carrying Fair value policy intangible Recognised
amounts  adustments adjustrments assets values
tm fm £m £fm fm
Property, plant and equipment 0z on - - 01
Intangible assets - - - 24 24
Investrents In jointly controlled entities 05 a3 - - 02
Deferred tax assets 09 03 - - 12
Trade and other recewables 342 (18) {13 - 311
Assets held for sale 08 18 - - 26
Cash and cash equvalents 17 - - - 17
Trade and other payabtes (40 3) - - - (40 3)
Income tax M - - - 11
Deferred tax labilities - - - {0 8) {0 8)
Net identifrable assets and liabilites 91 1N (13) 16 93
Goodwill recognised on acquisition 91
Total consideration 18 4

The principal fair value adjustments relate to a £1 8 mdlion market value adjustment to the carrying value of an investment that was sold
post acquisition and a £1 5 million provision against contract batances

The accounting policy adjustment of £1 3 million relates to the alignment of profit recognition policies on construction contracts
The £1 6 milllon of acquired intangible assets relates to the value ascribed to acquired customer lists and contracts

The goodwill recognised on acquisttion of £9 1 million represents the present value of future Income streams expected to be generated
from margm growth In the Vanbots Group together with identifiable cost savings within the enlarged Group
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30 Acqguisitions and disposals (continued)

Total consideration for the acquistion comprises the following

fm

Cash paid 132
Promssary note 1ssued 26
Deferred consideration 12
170

Attributable costs 14
Total consideration 84

Cash flows assouated with acquisitions are included in the cash fiow statement as follows

Alfred McAlpine Vanbots Total

fm fm fm

Cash pard 1717 132 1849
Attributable costs paid 104 14 118
1821 146 1967
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (46 8) m7 {58 5)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 1353 29 138 2

In the penod from acquisiion to 31 December 2008, Alfred McAlpine and the Vanbots Group coninbuted a reported loss before tax

of £34 1 million (after £83 2 million of restructuring costs and intangible amortisation) to consolidated profit for the year If both

acguisitions had occurred on 1 January 2008, Group revenue would have been £4,681 4 million and profrt before tax would have been

£113 2 million for the year ended 31 December 2008

Disposals in 2009

On 30 June 2009, the Group disposed of the entire ssued share capital of Carnillion IT Serwices Limited for total cash consideration of
£36 0 million and on 30 October 2009 disposed of the entire issued share capital of Enviros Group Limited for a total cash consideration

of £26 4 milion
The disposals had the following efiect on the Group’s assets and labilities

Net assets at the date of disposal

Canllion Enviros
IT Services Group
umited Limsted Total
£m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 48) 09 57
Intangible assets (2 2) {5 6) (78)
Inventories (0 3) - 03)
Deferred tax assets - (10 (10}
Trade and other recevables (21 3} &84 (297
Cash and cash equivalents (0 5) {13) (18)
Trade and other payables 85 57 142
Deferred tax habilities 06 16 22
Net identifiable habilities 20 0) (59 (299)
Total consideration 360 28 O 640
Transaciion costs 77 2 3) (10 0)
Other costs of disposal & 8) (70) {13 8)
Profit on disposal 15 88 103
{1} includes £1 6 muelhon of deferred consideraton payable on agreement of completion accounts
The above amounts are provisional pending completion of legal and other due diligence procedures
Canlhon plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

30 Acquisitions and disposals (continued)

Cash flows assoaated with disposals are induded in the cash flow statement as follows

Canllion Enviros

IT Services Group
Limited Limited Total
Em £m £m
Cash proceeds received 360 264 624
Disposal costs paid (31) (03} 34
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (0 5} {13} {1 8)
Net cash inflow on disposal 324 248 572

Dunng 2009, the Group disposed of equity investments in four Public Private Partnership jointly controlled entities The disposals
generated cash consideration of £100 4 million (after deducting disposal costs of £0 3 million} and a non-operating profit of £1 2 million

Disposals in 2008
During 2008, the Group disposed of equity investments in six Public Private Partnership jointly controlled entities The disposals
generated cash consideration of £59 9 million (after deducting disposal costs of £0 1 milhon) and a non-operating profit of £35 6 midlion

In February and March 2008, the Group recewed £25 9 million of cash consideration relating to the disposal of three Public Private
Partnership jointly controlled entittes announced by Alfred McAlpine prior to acquissien These disposals do not generate any profit
in the post acquisition period as the investments were included at far value in the acquired balance sheet of Affred McAlpine

31. Retirement benefit obligations
Cariflion operates a number of pension schemes for eligible employees as disclosed below

Prinapal defined benefit schemes

Canllion Staff and ‘B’ Pension Schemes

Both schemes are defined benefit schemes and were closed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2003 Existing members no longer accrue
benehits for future service with effect from 5 Apnl 2009 but instead are ehgible to participate in the Carllion 2009 Pension Plan, which
15 a defined contibution scheme

An actuanal valuation of the Staff and 'B' schemes was undertaken by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 31 December 2005
using the projected unit credit method The market value of the schemes’ assets at that date were £485 0 million and £106 4 miltion
respectively, which represented approxsmately 90 per cent and 94 per cent of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date
on an ongaing basis, after allowing for future increases in salaries An actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees’ independent
actuaries as at 31 December 2008 is currently being undertaken

The regular cngoing contributions paid to 5 April 2009 were £2 4 million (2008 £9 9 million) In respect of the Carillion Staff Pension
Scheme and £0 2 million (2008 £0 9 million) In respect of the Carillion ‘B’ Pension Scheme Regular ongong contributions are no longer
payable following the closure of the Staff and ‘B’ schemes to future accrual on 5 Apri 2009

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees of the Staff and ‘B’ schemes, payments were made to the schemes during
2009 of £2 6 milkon and £0 3 million respectively (2008 £16 0 milion and £2 0 million respectively) Recovery payments of £2 6 mulion
and £0 3 million to the Staff and ‘B’ schemes respectively are scheduled 1o be made in 2010

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the above The PPF levies for the year ended 31 March 2009 were
£1 0 million (2008 £1 0 mithon) for the Staff scheme and £16,000 (2008 £14,000) for the ‘B’ scheme
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31 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Mowlem Staff Penston and Life Assurance Scheme
The Mowlem Staff Pension and Life Assurance scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006

The majonty of employees who participate in the scheme are in defined benefit arrangements The defined benefit section of the
Mowlern Staff Pension and Life Assurance scheme dlosed to new enitrants on 1 January 2003 Existing members will no longer accrue
benefits for future service with effect from 5 Apnl 2009 but instead are eligible 1o participate In the Carillion 2009 Pension Plan, which
I1s a defined contibution scheme

A defined contnbution section was opened for new employees from 1 Aprif 2003 Existing final salary members could opt to continue
on that basis from 1 Apnl 2003 if they agreed to pay a higher member contribution or could pay the same rate and accrue benefits on
a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) basis from that date

An actuanal vatuation of the Mowlem Staff Pension and Life Assurance scheme was undertaken by independent actuaries as at 31
December 2006 using the attamed age method The market value of the schemes assets at that date were £459 6 million, representing
approximately 93 per cent of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for future
Increases in salares An actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees’ independent actuanes as at 31 December 2008 is currently
being undertaken

The regular ongoing contributions paid to 5 Apnl 2009 were £1 7 million (2008 £7 S milion) Regular ongoing contributions are no
longer payable followsng the closure of the scheme to future accrual on S April 2009

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made to the Mowlemn Staff Pension and Life Assurance
scheme in the year of £5 9 million (2008 £5 4 million) Recovery payments of £5 9 million per annurm continuing until 2012 have been
agreed with the Trustees of the scheme

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF} levy 15 payable 1n addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£1 6 milion (2008 £1 6 mullion}

Carillion Pubhc Sector Pension Scheme
The scheme is a defined benefit scheme and remains open 1o eligible employees transferring from the public sector as part of the
commercial obkgations under PFl, PPP and Best Value contracts with public sector employers

An actuanal valuation of the scheme was undertaken by the Trustees’ independent actuanes as at 31 December 2007 using the attained
age method The market value of the scheme’s assets at that date was £105 3 million, which represented approximately 89 per cent of
the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an angoing bass, after allowing for future increases in salaries The next
actuarial valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries 1s due at 31 December 2010

The regular ongoing employer contributions paid duning the year were £3 3 million (2008 £3 4 million) The Group expects to pay
regular contributions of approximately £3 5 million during 2010 representing 27 5 per cent of pensionable salaries at the end of 2009
If any employees are admitted into the scheme through PFI, PPP or Best Value contracts duning 2010 the level of contributions will increase

As part of the defiat recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments of £4 7 million were made during 2008 (2008 £4 3 million)
Further payments of £2 3 million per annum are scheduled to be paid until 2015

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 15 payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£0 4 mulhon (2008 £0 3 milhon)

Shared Cost Sections of the Rallways Pension Scheme (RPS)
Employees of GTRM and Centrac, and former employees of British Rail transferred to these businesses, have pension provision via Shared

Cost Sections of the Railways Pension Scheme Both the GTRM and Centrac Sections are closed to new entrants

Shared cost arrangements are such that the employer and members share the cost of future service hiabilities on a 60740 split respectively
and any surplus or deficit emerging over time 1s dealt with on a similar basis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

31. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Independent actuanies appointed by the Railways Pension Trustee Company Limited carried out a formal valuation of the Railways
Pension Scheme at 31 December 2007 using the projected unit credit method for GTRM and the attained age method for Centrac
The market values of the scheme assets of the GTRM Section and Centrac Section at 31 December 2007 were £152 9 million and
£22 1 mithion respectively, which represented approximately 99 per cent and 106 per cent of benefits that had accrued to members
at that date on an ongomng basis, after taking account of future increases in salaries, contributions payable and reserves The next
actuanal valuation of the schemes by the Trustees' independent actuares is due at 31 December 2010

The regular ongoing contributions paid by the employer during the year were £1 6 million (2008 £1 6 millon) The Group expects to pay
regular ongoing contributions in 2010 for both sections of £1 & million representing 21 per cent of pensionable salaries

No defiat recovery plan payments were made during 2009 (2008 £2 O millon) As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with Trustees
a payment of £0 6 million per annum will be made for 10 years commencing in 2010

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2008 for
both sections totalled £0 6 mullion (2008 £0 5 mulkon)

Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan

The Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan was part of Alfred McAlpine, which was acquired on 12 February 2008 The pension plan is a defined
benefit arrangement which was closed to future service accrual on 31 July 2003 Dunng the year, it was agreed that the benefits for
members will no longer be linked to final salary with effect from 31 December 2009

An actuanal valuation of the pension plan was undertaken by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 31 December 2005 using the
projected unit credit method The market value of the plan assets at that date were £264 1 million, which represented approximately

71 per cent of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date An actuanal valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent
actuaries as at 31 December 2008 15 currently being undertaken

The regular angoing employer contnbutions paid during the year were £0 2 milion (2008 £01 milion) The Group expects to pay
regular ongoing contributions of £0 2 million in 2010 representing 42 per cent of pensionable salanes

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made in 2009 of £9 3 mullion (2008 £7 8 million) Recovery
payments of £9 5 million are scheduled to be made in 2010 which will continue until 2015, Increasing In each year by the increase in the
Retail Price Index over the preceding twelve months

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addiion to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£0 2 million (2008 £0 2 million)

Other defined benefit schemes

The PME Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

The PME Staff Pension and Life Assurance scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme and is closed to new entrants Existing members will no
longer accrue benefits for future service with effect from 5 Apni! 2009 but mstead are eligible to participate in the Canllion 2008 Pension
Plan, which 1s a defined contribution scheme

The deficit in the scheme at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 15 £7 3 million (2008 restated £3 5 million)

An actuanal valuation of the scheme was undertaken by the Trustees' independent actuaries as at 31 December 2006 using the attaned
age method The market value of the scheme’s assets at that date was £49 7 million, which represented approximately 92 per cent of
the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for future increases in salanes An actuarial

valuation of the scheme by the Trustees' independent actuaries as at 31 December 2008 15 currently being undertaken

The regular ongoing contributions pard to 5 April 2009 were £0 5 milkon (2008 £15 mullion) Regular ongoing contributions are no
longer payable following the closure of the scheme to future accrual on 5 Apnl 2009
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31 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Aspart of the defiat recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, a payment of £1 3 milion was made duning 2009 (2008 £10 milhon)
Recovery payments of £1 3 million per annum have been agreed for 2010 and 2011

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan and was £0 1 million for the year ended
31 March 2009 (2008 £0 1 million)

Canlhion Canada Inc

The Canlion Group operates a defined benefit scheme for employees of Canllion Canada Inc managed locally In additton certain
executives have supplemental arrangements in place, namely the Senior Executive Retirement Plan and the Post Retirement Benefit Plan
The net defiait in tota! for these three schemes at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 1s £4 2 million (2008

£2 8 million)

Contnbutions dunng the year were £Nil (2008 £NIl} 1n respect of the Canllion Canada Inc defined benefit scheme and £0 4 million
(2008 £0 3 milhon) in respect of other post-retirement benefits for senior Canadian employees Contributions for 2010 are estimated
to be £0 4 million

Mowlem (1993) Pension Scheme
The Mowlem (1993} Pension scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006 and 1s a defined
benefrt arrangement

The deficit in the scheme at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 1s £8 8 milion (2008 restated £6 8 million)

An actuanal valuation of the Mowlern (1993) Pension scheme was underdaken by independent actuaries as at 31 December 2006 using
the attained age method The market value of the scheme’s assets at that date were £46 1 million, representing approximately 80 per
cent of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date on an ongoing basis, after allowing for future ncreases in salanes An
actuanial valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 31 December 2008 s currently being undertaken

The regular ongoing contributions paid duning the year were £2 7 million (2008 £2 7 million) The Group expects to pay regular ongong
contributions of approximately £2 7 milhon representing 28 2 per cent of pensionable salary during 2010

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made to the scheme during 2009 amounting to
£39 million (2008 £3 4 million) Recovery payments of £3 9 mullion per annum untl 2016 have been agreed with the Trustees

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy is payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£0 6 million {2008 £0 6 million)

ESPS Scheme
The ESPS scheme was part of Alfred McAlping, which was acquired on 12 February 2008 and is a defined benefit arrangement

The defict in the scheme at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance with IAS 19, 15 £18 4 million (2008 £10 0 million}

An actuanal valuation of the scheme was undertaken by the Trustees' independent actuartes as at 31 March 2007 using the projected
unit credit method The market value of the plan assets at that date were £47 1 million, which represented approximately 76 per cent
of the benefits that had accrued to members at that date The next actuanal valuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ independent
actuaries i1s due as at 31 March 2010

The regular ongoing employer contributions paid during the year were £0°S milion (2008 £0 7 million) The Group expects to pay
regular ongoing contributions of £11 millicn in 2010 representing 50 0 per cent of pensionable salaries

As part of the deficit recovery plan agreed with the Trustees, payments were made in the year of £10 millon (2008 £1 0 millon)
Recovery payments of £1 0 million are scheduled to be made in 2010 which will continue untl 2015

Canllion plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

31. Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF fevy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£0 3 million (2008 £0 3 million)

Bower Group Retirement Benefit Scheme
The Bower Group Retirement Benefit Scheme was part of Mowlem, which was acquired on 23 February 2006 The scheme 1s
a defined benefit arrangement and 15 closed to future accrual

The defict i the scheme at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance with 1AS 19, 15 £2 2 miuflion (2008 £0 8 million)

An actuanal valuation of the scheme was undertaken by the Trustees’ independent actuaries as at 29 February 2004 using the projected
unit credit method The market value of the plan assets at that date were £5 0 millon, which represented approximately 92 per cent of
the benefits that had accrued to members at that date An actuanal vatuation of the scheme by the Trustees’ mdependent actuaries as
at 28 February 2007 1s currently being undertaken

As the scherne 15 closed to future accrual, the Group does not make any regular ongoing contributions to the scheme

There were no deficit recovery payments made during 2009 Recovery payments of £0 8 millon per annum have been agreed with the
Trustees as part of the deficit recovery plan

The Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy 1s payable in addition to the funding plan The PPF levy for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
£0 1 mullion (2008 £0 1 mullion)

Alfred McAlpine (Ireland) Pension Plan and Inshenco Pension Plan

The Group has two small defined benefit pension schemes for the employees of operations in the Republic of Ireland, the Alfred
McAlpine {Ireland) Pension Plan and the Inshenco Pension Plan The deficit in the schemes at 31 December 2009, calculated in accordance
with 1AS 19, 15 £0 4 milion and £0 5 million for the Alfred McAlpine {lreland) Pension Plan and the Inshenco Pension Plan respectively

Defined contnibution schemes

The Group operates five pnncipal UK defined contribution schemes, the Canllion 2009 Pension Plan, the Carillion Pension Plan, the
Mowlem Staff Scheme (defined contribution section), the PME Defined Contribution Plan and the Carillion Retirement Plan (closed to
new entrants since 2001) In addition, the Group operates two Stakeholder Plans ('Stakeholder Plus’ and the Alfred McAlpine 2003
Penswon Plan)

The Carilion 2009 Pension Plan commenced on 6 April 2009 for existing employee members of the Canllion Staff, Canllion 'B’, Mowlem
Staff and PME Staff Pension and Life Assurance Schemes, which closed to future service accrual on 5 April 2009 Under the plan '
employees contribute a minimum of 5 0 per cent and the employer a minimum of 10 0 per cent of basic salaries Death in service lump

sum benefits are provided in addition The employer meets the cost of administration and managing the Plan Employer contributions

dunng the year were £3 & million

The Carillion Pension Plan commenced on 1 April 2003 The majority of new employees across the Group are ehgible to join this Plan
Employees contribute a minimum of 5 0 per cent and the employer a minimum of 70 per cent of basic salanes Up to 3 0 per cent of
any additional voluntary contributions paid by employees 1s matched by the employer resulting in a maximum employer contnbution of
10 0 per cent of basic salary The employer meets the cost of administration and managing the Plan equwvalent to a further 2 O per cent
of basic pay Employer contributions duning the year were £4 1 muflion (2008 £3 2 milion)

The defined contribution section of the Mowlem Staff Scheme commenced on 1 April 2003 The plan 1s principally only open to late w
entrants on applicaton Employees contribute between 3 0 per cent and 5 0 per cent depending on their age and the employer !
between 4 5 per cent and 8 Q per cent of basic salary The employer meets the cost of administration and managing the Plan in addition

to the cost of the Iife assurance premiums Emplaoyer contnbutions during the year were £0 2 milion (2008 £0 8 million)

Employees of Carilion Services Limited who are not eligible for the Carillion Pension Plan are invited to participate in the Carilhon

Stakeholder Plus managed by BlackRock Pensions Limited Employees contribute 5 0 per cent and the employer 6 5 per cent of basic salary
Death in service lump sum benefits are provided in addmon Employer contributions dunng the year were £0 7 millon (2008 £0 9 mullion}
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31 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

The PME Defined Contributton Plan commenced in Aprif 1999 All new PME employees are offered memberstup of the Plan Employees
contnbute 4 G per cent of basic pay and the employer pays 5 O per cent of basic pay (inclusive of a 1 0 per cent allowance for insurance
premiums and audit fees) Employer contrnbutions during the year were £0 7 milion (2008 £0 8 mullion)

Employer contnbutions to the Canllion Retirement Plan during the year were £0 1 milhion (2008 £0 1 million)

Employees of businesses acquired on the purchase of Alfred McAlpine may be eligble to participate in the Affred McAlpine 2003
Pensian Plan managed by Zunch Assurance Employees contribute between 3 0 per cent and 9 0 per cent depending upon job grade
and the employer contributes matching amounts Death in service lump sum benefits are provided in addiion  Employer contributions
during the year were £3 5 million (2008 £2 8 million)

Until the disposal of the company on 30 QOctober 2009, employees of Enviros Group Limited were able to participate in a pension plan
provided by Friends Provident Employer contributions in the period until disposal amounted to £1 0 milhon {2008 £1 3 million)

Stakeholder pensions are also provided by B&CE Insurance and Scottish Widows where required by Working Rule Agreements and
defined contribution penstons provided where required by the Joint Industnies Board Working Rule Agreements

Various companies within the Group participate in admission agreements with local authorties in order to allow former public sector
employees to continue membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme Contributions during the year, which have been
accounted for on a defined contribution basis, were £0 5 million (2008 £0 6 million)

I1AS 19 disclosures
The weighted average of the principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in providing the IAS 19 position were

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
UK Canada UK Canada
Rate of increase in salaries 4 40% 300% 3 80% 3 00%
Rate of increase n pensions* 340% 2 00% 2 80% 204%
Inflation rate 340% 200% 2 80% 2 04%
Discount rate 580% 6 25% 6 30% 750%

* Where schemes have adopted the 2 5% per annum cap on increases ta pensions in payment the assumption s 2 4% per annum (2 2% p a n 2008) rather than the higher amount shown above

The market values cf the schemes’ assets, which are not mtended to be realised in the short term, may be subject to significant change
before they are realised The present values of the schemes’ liabilities are calculated by reference to the investment return on Grade AA
corporate bonds The assumptions used do not necessanly represent the investment return that may be achieved

For all schemes the mortality basis 1s in line with the basis used by the respective Trustee at the last valuation All the schemes, except
the Railways Penston Scheme, have adopted a basis using the medium cohort tables on the recommendation of the Scheme Actuary
The Railways Pension Scheme uses scheme specific assumptions based on industry experence

The Carilhon Staff Scheme, the Canllion Publc Sector Scheme, the Mowlem Staff Scheme, the Mowlem (1993} Scheme and the
Alfred McAlpine Pension Plan adopted the 'PA92(YOB=1965)mc + 2 years' table for non-retired member’s mortality and the
‘PAS2(YOB=1935)mc¢ + 2 years' for retired member's mortahty at the last valuation: The previous bases were 'PA92(Base) - 3 years’
and 'PA92(Base) — 1 year' respectively

The ife expectancies for a male aged 65 are shown below

2009 2008

PA92(YOB=1965)mc + 2 yrs PA92{YOB=1965)m¢ + 2 yrs

Non-retired members 21 3 years 21 3 years
PA92(YOB=1935)mc + 2 yrs PAS2(YOB=1935)mc + 2 yrs

Retired members 19 7 years 197 years
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

31 Retirement benefit obligaticns (continued)

The Canadian Actuary annually undertakes an actuarial valuation and accounting exercise for reporting on lecal employee benefits
under the local GAAP, CICA 3461 The same assumptions have been used for local medical and dental inflation rates in relation to

the Post Retirement Benefit Plan The iImmediate trend rate 1s ight per cent per annum with an ultimate trend rate of five per cent per
annum {2013} An increase of one per cent In the valuation trend would increase labilities by £0 8 mullion and the total service cost

by £0 1 millon A decrease of one per ¢cent in the valuation trend would reduce habilities by £0 6 million and total service cost by

£01 millien The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined by reference to local long term interest rates, the yield on gilts
or Treasury stock and the Actuary’s recommendation on the allowance for the potential long term extra return from investing in equities

Cardhon has adopted immediate recogniion of any actuanal gans or losses through the Statement of Camprehensive Income as
permitted under [AS 19

Following the adoption of IFRIC 14 “The limit on a defined benefit asset, mirimum funding requirements and their interaction’ on
1 January 2009, comparative information for 2008 has been restated accordingly

The IAS 19 position for the schemes 15 as follows

Alfred

Expected McAlpine

rate of Canllon Mowlem Canlion Pension Pubhc Railways Other

return % Staff Staff " Plan Sector Pension schemes Total
31 December 2009 UK Canada £€m £m £m £m fm £fm £m £m
Equrties 8 20 857 1832 2301 245 1644 731 905 943 8601
Government bonds 435 520 1735 14 2 407 43 2 230 97 443 3486
Corporate bonds 5 50 - 1736 1598 327 56 3 173 213 386 4996
Other 100 325 37 44 11 56 12 133 38 331
Market value of scheme assets 5340 4085 990 2695 1146 1348 1810 1,741 4
Present value of funded scheme obligation (5730) (4973) (1119) (3378 (1227) (163 0) (216 0)(2,0217)
Present value of unfunded scheme obligation - - - - - - (6 8)" (6 8)
Minimumn funding requirernent - -~ - - 67 - - 67
Total deficit (390) (888) (129) (683) (148) (282) (418) (293 8)
Related deferred tax asset 82.7
Net pension hability 2111
(1) All schernes are funded except the Senior Executive Retirement Plan and the Post Retirement Benefit Plan held in Canada

Alfred
Expected McAlping
rate of Canlion  Mowlem  Carllion Pansion Fublic  Railways Other

return % Staff Staff "B Plan Sector  Pension  schemes Total
31 December 2008 (Restated) UK Canada fm £m £m fm fm fm £m £m
Equities 790 785 1639 1986 235 M0 574 824 770 7438
Government bonds 365 712 1706 265 420 473 195 94 442 3595
Corporate bonds 655 - 1663 1528 322 427 145 203 338 4626
Other 300 250 46 30 12 26 10 128 34 286
Market value of scheme assets 5054 3809 989 2336 924 1249 1584 1,594 5
Present value of funded scheme obligation 4709 @4188) (1015 (2988 (924 (1258 {(1700){(1,678 2)
Present value of unfunded scheme obligation - - - - - - (54 (549
Minimum funding requirement - - - - (131} - 69 (200)
Total surplus/deficit) 345 (379 (26) (652) (13 1) 09 (239) (10971}
Related deferred tax asset 329
Net pension lability (76 2)
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31 Retirement henefit obligations {continued)

Expense recognised in the income statement

2009 2008
£m fm
(Charge)/credit to operating profit
Current service cost relating to defined benefit schemes B8 24 1)
Settlements - {12
Curtalments 33 383
Total (4 8) 130
Credit/{charge) to other finance income
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1018 1203
Interest cost on pension scheme liabilities (104 0) {1077)
Net finance return (22) 126
Total actuanal (losses)/gains recogmised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Etfects of changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities (319 2) 3092
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 859 (416 6)
Movement in minimum funding requirement 133 147
Total actuanal losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (220 0} (92 7)
2009 2008
£fm £m
Changes in defined benefit obligation
Obligation at 1 January (1.6836) (1,5913)
Current service cost (81) 24 1)
Interest cost {104 Q) (1077}
Contributions from scheme members 27) (78)
Acquisition of Alfred McAlpine - (384 1)
Benefits paid 867 704
Settlements - 152
Curtailments 33 383
Actuanal (losses)gains (3192) 3092
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 09 47
Obligation at 31 December (2,0285) (1,6836)
2009 2008
£m £m
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets
Farir value at 1 January 1,594 5 1,567 0
Expected return on scheme assets 1018 1203
Contributions from the employer 425 791
Contributions from scheme members 27 78
Acquisition of Alfred McAlpine - 3222
Benefis paid {(867) (70 4}
Settlements - (16 4)
Actuanal gains/(losses) 859 (416 6)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 07 15
Fair value at 31 December 17414 1,594 5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

31. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The amount induded in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes is as follows

2009 2008
fm fm ,
Present value of defined benefit obligation {(2,0285) (1,683 6)
Farr value of scheme assets 17414 1,594 5
Minimum funding requirement 67 (20 0}
Net deficit {293 8) {109 1
Schemes in surplus (within non-current assets) 26 371
Schemes in deficit (within non-current liabilities) {296 4} (146 2)

(293 8) (109 1)

The actual return on plan assets was £187 7 million (2008 £296 3 mullion}

History of expenence gamns and losses

2009 2008" 20070 2006" 20050
£m fm £m £m fm
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (2,0285) (1,6836) {(1,5913} (1,583 0} (963 7)
Far value of scheme assets 1,7414 1,584 5 1,5670 1,476 1 895 8
Mirmmum funding requirement %7 (200} {216) (12 8) {47
Deficit (293 8) (109 1} (45 9) (125 7) (72 6)
Experience gains and losses on scheme obligation (fm) (319 2) 3092 472 128 (198 8)
Percentage of defined benefit obligation (%) 157 184 30 08 206
Difference between expected and actual returns
on scheme assets (E£m) 859 416 6) (150) 218 2055
Percentage of scheme assets {%o) 49 261 10 15 229

(1) Restated on adopuon of IFRIC 14 (see note 33)

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recogrised since 1 January 2004 in the Group statement of comprehensive mcome I1s

£236 5 milhon {2008 restated £16 5 million) The Group Is unable to determine how much of the pension scheme defiit recognised
on transition to IFRS of £85 2 million and taken directly to total equity 1s attnbutable to actuanal gains and losses since inception of the
schemes Therefore, the Group s unable 1o determine the amount of actuanal gans and losses that would have been recognised in
the Group statement of comprehensive income before 1 lanuary 2004

32 Accounting estimates and jJudgements
Management has discussed with the Audii Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s criticat accounting
policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and ather key saurces of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
sigrificant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below

Construction contracts

In determining the revenue and costs to be recognised each year for work done on construction contracts, eshmates are made in
refation to final out-turn on each contract On major construction contracts, it Is assessed, based on past experience, that their outcome
cannot be esumated reliably during the early stages of the contract, but that costs incurred will be recoverable Once the ocutcome can
be estimated rehably the estimates of final out-tumn on each contract may include cost contingencies 1o take account of the specific risks
within each contract that have been dentified during the early stages of the contract The cost contingenctes are reviewed on a regular
basis throughout the contract Ife and are adjusted where appropriate However, the nature of the risks on contracts are such that they
often cannot be resoived until the end of the project and therefore may not reverse until the end of the project Management
continually reviews the estimated final out-turn on contracts and makes adjustments where necessary
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued})

Intangible assets
In determining the fair value of identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilties of businesses acquired, judgement 15 reguired In
relation to final out-turn on construction contracts, discount rates and expected future cash flows and profitability

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit to which the mtangble assets are attached Note 12 provides details of the carrying value of intangible assets

Defined benefit pension scheme valuaticns
In determining the valuation of defined benefit pension scheme assets and liabilities, a number of key assumptions have been made
The key assumptions, which are given below, are largely dependent on factors outside the control of the Group,

> expected return on plan assets
> Inflation rate

> mortahty

> discount rate

> salary and pensions increases

Details of the assumptions used are included in note 31
33 New accounting standards and interpretations

Upon the adoption of IFRIC 14 on 1 January 2009, the Group has restated pnior year information, which has had the following impact
on net assets

At At
31 December 1 lanuary
2008 2008
fm £m
Net assets as previously reported 8726 5029
Impact of adoption of IFRIC 14 on - goodwill 94 -
- retirement benefits (20 0) (21 6)
- deferred tax 56 60
50 {15 6)
Net assets as restated 8676 4873

The impact on goodwill of £9 4 million relates to the effect of IFRIC 14 on retirement benefit liabilities (net of deferred tax) at the date
of acquisition of Alfred McAlpine on 12 February 2008 reflecting the recognition of minimum funding arrangements In addition to the
above, IFRIC 14 reduced actuanal losses and taxatron in the 2008 consolidated statement of comprehensive income by £14 7 million and
£4 1 million respectively

In 2008, IFRIC 14 reduced actuanial fosses and taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income by £13 3 millon and
£3 7 million respectively, leading to an increase in net assets of £9 6 million

The adoption of IFRIC 14 has no impact on reported profit or cash flow None of the other new accounting standards adopted on
1 January 2009 as referred to in note 1 has any impact upon reported profit, net assets or cash flows
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

34 Off-balance sheet arrangements
The Group Is party to a number of contractual arrangements for the purposes of the Group's principal activities that are not required to
be mncluded on the Group balance sheet The principal off-balance sheet arrangements that the Group are party to are as follows

> operating leases (see note 28}

> pledged assets secunng finance lease habilities {see note 11)

> contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees for deferred equity payments and performance contracts in PPP jointly controlled entities
(see note 26)

> capital commitments for capital expenditure and equity and subordinated debt investments in PPP jointly controlled entities (see note 28)

> outsourcing contracts

In respect of outsourcing contracts, the Group has entered nto vanous arrangements to outsource the provision of certain back-office
functions with a third party provider These arrangements are on commercial terms and any penalty or termination clauses associated
with these arrangements will not have a matenal impact on the financial position of the Group

35 Principal subsidianes, jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations
A st of significant investments in subsidianes, jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations, induding the name, country of
Incorporation and proportion of ownership interest 1s given on page 113

Except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings and jointly controlled entities are ncorporated in Great Britain and operate in the UK
All holdings are of ordinary shares and except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings are 100% owned {with equivalent voting rights)
and jointly controlled entittes and jointly controlled operations are 50% owned Shares of those undertakings marked with an asterisk
are directly owned by Carillion plc
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35 Prinapal subsidianes, jointly controlled entsties and jointly controlled operations (continued)

Principal subsidiary undertakings
Canlhion (Aspire Construction Holdings No 2 Ltd
Carnllion Canada Inc ({Canada)

Canllion {Caribbean) Ltd {Tnrudad & Tobagao)
Canllion CR Limited

Canlion Construction Ltd *

Carilion fleet Management Ltd *

Canllion Highway Maimntenance Ltd *
Carilion Private Finance Lid *

Carilon Services Lid *

Monteray Ltd 51%

Planned Maintenance Engineening Ltd
Postworth Ltd *

Sovereign Hospital Services Ltd

Cartllion (AMBS} Ltd

Principal jointly controlled entities

Public Private Partnersheps

Accommodation Services (Holdings) Ltd 20%

Arden Partnership {Derby) Hotdings Ltd

Arden Partnership (Leicester) Holdings Ltd

Arden Partnership {Lincolnshire) Holdings Ltd

COE (CAMH) Limited Partnership (Canada)

Clinicenta (Hertfordshure} Ltd

Eastbury Park (Holdings) Lid

Education 4 Ayrshire (Holdings) Ltd 47 5%

Ellenbrook Holdings Lid

Holdfast Traning Services Lid 26%

Inspiredspaces Durham (Holdingst) Ld 80%
Inspiredspaces STaG (Holdings1) Lid 40%
Inspiredspaces 5TaG (Holdings2} Lid 80%
Inspiredspaces Nottingham (Holdingst) Ltd 80%
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Holdings1) Lid 80%

LCED (Sauit) Limited Partnership 25% (Canada)

Road Management Services {(A13) Holdings Ltd 25%
Sheppey Route (Holdings) Ltd

STaG PCT (Holdco) Ltd

The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada (RCH) Inc{Canada)
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada (WGHC) Inc (Canada)
The Hospital Company {QAH Portsmouth) Holdings Lid
UK Highways AS5 (Haldings) Ltd

Yorkshire Transformations Holdings Ltd 33 3%

Others

CarlionEnterpnse Ltd 50 1%

Modern Housing Solutions (Pnme) Lid 67%

Al Futtaim Carillion LLC (UAE) 49%

Arcadis Aqumen Faality Management BV (The Netherlands)
Cartlion Alawi LLC (Oman) 49%

Canlhon Richardsen Partnership

Emrill Services LLC (UAE)* 33%

Servus Ltd (Trinidad & Tobago)

Jointly controlled operations

Nature of business

Military accommodation at Aldershot and Sahsbury Plain
Construction and infrastructure services
Construction and infrastructure services

Halding company for property development
Construction and infrastructure management
Supply and maintenance of vehicles

Roads and ground maintenance and reparr
Holding company for PPP project companies
Facilities management

Property and faclhties management services
Bullding services and mantenance

Supply of operatives to the construction industry
Faciies management in healthcare sector
Facities management

Associated Project

GCHQ, Cheltenham

Mental heatth facilittes, Derbyshire

Mental health faahties, Leicestershire

Mental health facihtes, Lincolnshire

Centre for Addiction & Mental Health, Toronto
Lister Surgicentre, Stevenage

Permanent Joint Headquarters, Northwood
South Ayrshire Schools

Unwversity of Hertfordshire Student Accommodation
Royal School of Military Engineering, Chatham
Durham Schools

South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools (Jarrow)
South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools {South Shields)
Nottingham Schools

Tameside Schools

Sault Area Hospital, Canada

A13, Thames Gateway

A249 Kent

Cleadon Park Primary Care Centre

Royal Ottawa Hospital, Canada

Wiliam Osler Hospital, Canada

Queen Alexandra Hospntal, Portsmouth

AS55 North Wales

Swardhffe Socal Housing, Leeds

Nature of business

MoD buidings

MoD housing

Building and cvil engineering
Facilities management
Building and avil engineering
Property Development
Facilittes management
Facilities management

Name, proportion of interest held and address of principal place of business

Balfour Beatty Carillon Joint Venture — East London Line 50%
Canltion-URS Jont Venture 70%

Carllion-WSP V¥ 60%

Bonhill Street, London, England

Pyichley Maintenance Compound, Pegasus Court, Ketterning, England
South Business Park, Kettering, Northamptonshire, England

Bradford, West Yorkshire, England

A complete hst of Group subsidiary undertakings will be attached to the Company’s annual return to the Registrar of Companies
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Note £m fm
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures 3 1,146 2 1,104 2
Current assets
Debtors 4 602 7 8119
Cash at bank and in hand 49 2 71
6519 8190
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5
Borrowing {152 3) (103 6}
Other creditors (516 9) (583 1)
(669 2) (686 7}
Net current {habilities)/assets
Due within one year (17 6) i314
Dehtors due after more than one year 4 0.3 Q9
(17.3) 1323
Total assets less current habihties 1,128 9 1,236 5
Creditors amounts falhing due after more than one year
Borrowing 6 {129 8) (3559
Net assets 9991 8806
Financed by
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7 198 6 1978
Share premium 8 168 129
Merger reserve a 516 3 5163
Other reserve 8 52 32
Profit and loss account 8 2622 150 4
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 9991 880 6

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2010 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Richard Adam FCA é %

Group Finance Director

1 ‘I 4 Canlhon plc
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered matenal in relation to the
Company’s financial statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented n pounds sterhing They are
prepared on the histoncal cost basis, except for denvative financial

insiruments which are stated at fair value, and in accordance with

applicable UK accounting standards and law

Taxation

Delerred tax assets or habilities anse from timing differences
between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial
statements and their recognition in the tax computation that
have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except
as otherwise required by FRS 19 'Deferred tax’ Liabilities are
calculated on a non-discounted full provision basis Assets are
calculated on the same basis, but are recogrised only to the
extent that it s probable that they will be recovered

Fixed asset iInvestments

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary
undertakings and joint ventures are stated at cost, less provision
for any iImparrment

Leasing

The Company enters into finance lease arrangements on behalf
of subsidiary companies As permitted by SSAP 21 'Accounting
for leases and hire purchase contracts’, the assets relating to the
finance leases are included in the financial statements of the
subsidraries concerned The capital element of outstanding
finance leases I1s included within borrowings The finance charge
element of rentals is charged to the profit and loss account at a
constant penodic rate of charge on the outstanding obligations

Own shares

Consideration paid for shares in the Company held by the
Employee Share Ownerstup Plan (ESOP) Trust are deducted
from the profit and loss account reserve Where such shares
subsequently vest in the employees under the terms of the
Company’s share option schemes or are sold, any consideration
receved 15 Included in the profit and loss account reserve

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into sterhing and recerded using the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and Iabilities
denorminated in foreign currencies are translated mto sterling
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and the
gains and losses on translation are induded in the profit and
loss account

Financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial assets and liabilities are cash at
bank and in hand and borrowings Cash at bank and in hand 1s
carnied In the balance sheet at amortised cost Borrowings are
recognised inrmially at fair value less attributable transaction costs
and subsequently at amortised cost In addition, the Company
enters Into forward contracts in order 10 hedge aganst small and
infrequent transactional foreign currency exposures The forward
contracts are measured inmally at fair value, with changes in farr
value dunng the year recognised in the profrt and loss account
Fair values are based on quoted market prices at the batance
sheet date

Share-based payments

Members of the Group’s senior management team are entitled to
participate in the Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP) In addition,
UK employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme

The farr value of the LEAP and Sharesave schemes at the date of
grant are estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model For
both schemes the farr value determined at grant date 1s expensed
on a straight-line basis over the period in which any performance
condittons are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (vesting date)

Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the
employees of its subsidiaries 1t recognises, in its individual financial
statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidianes
equivalent to the equity-settled share-based payment charge
recogrused In its consolidated financiat statements with the
corresponding credit betng recognised directly n equity Amounts
recharged to the subsidary are recognised as a reduction in the
cost of the investment in substchary If the amount recharged
exceeds the increase n the cost of Investment the excess s
recagnised as a dvidend to the extent that it reflects post
acquisition profits of the subsidiary

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to
guarantee the indebtedness of subsidrary companies, the Company
considers these to be tsurance arrangements and accounts for
them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee
contract as a contingent hiability until such time as it becomes
probable that the Company will be required to make a payment
under the guarantee

Canllion pl¢
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Notes to the Company financial statements
continued

1 Significant accounting pohcies {cominued)

Retirement benefit ohligations

Penston costs are recognised in the financal statements in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits’ Employees
of the Company participate in the Carilhon Staff and 'B’ schemes which provide pensions on a defined benefit basis The assets and
habilities of these schemes relating to the Company cannot be readily ascertained on a reasonable and consistent basis as the schemes
are operated for the benefit of the Canlion Group as a whole Conseguently, the Company accounts for these schemes as if they were
defined contnbution schemes Details of the Group's pension schemes are disclosed 10 note 31 of the consolidated financial statements

Cash flow statement

A cash flow statement has not been presented as permitted by FRS 1 {revised) ‘Cash flow statements’

2. Profit for the year and dividends
As permitted by the Compantes Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year
Carillion plc reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 of £167 5 millon (2008 £62 5 million}

Fees paid to KPMG Audt Plc and s associates for non-audrt services to the Company itself are not disclosed 1n the individual accounts
of Canllion plc because the Company's consolidated accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

A final dividend, declared in the previous year, of 8 9 pence per share was paid dunng the year, amounting to £35 2 million
(2008 £29 6 million)

An intenm dividend of 4 6 pence per share was paid during the year, amounting to £18 2 million (2008 £16 2 million}
A final dwidend of 10 0 pence (2008 8 9 pence) per share, amounting to £39 7 million (2008 £35 2 million), was approved by the

Board on 3 March 2010 and, subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 18 June 2010 to
shareholders on the register on 23 April 2010

3 Investments

Subsidrary Joint
undertakings ventures Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2009 11146 02 1,114 8
Additions 420 - 420
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2009 1,156 6 02 1,156 8
Impairment losses
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 106 - 106
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 1,146 0 02 1,146 2
At 31 December 2008 11040 02 1,104 2

Additions in the year of £42 0 million relates prinapally to additional shares in Carllion Construction Limited amounting to £40 0 milion
acquired at par

The principal subsidiary undertakings and jont ventures of the Company are shown on page 113
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4 Debtors

2009 2008
fm fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 5976 7993
Other debtors 07 03
Amounts owed by joint ventures 0.7 08
Income tax 24 95
Dervative finanaal instruments 10 11
Amounts falling due within one year 602 4 8110
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 03 09
Total debtors 602 7 8119

The amounts owed by Group undertakings falling due after more than one year of £0 3 millon (2008 £09 million) relates to finance

lease transactions entered into with Cariflion Fleet Management Limited Further detalls are disclosed in note 6

5 Creditors amounts faliing due within one year

2009 2008
£m fm
Bank overdrafts 1441 945
Bank loans 76 85
Net obligations due under finance leases 06 06
Barrowing 152 3 1036
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 482 4 5559
Amounts owed to joint ventures 340 221
Accruals and deferred income 05 51
669 2 686 7

6 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
2009 2008
fm fm
Bank loans 1295 3550
Net obligations due under finance leases 03 09
129 8 3556

Net obligations due under finance leases relate to finanang agreemenits for fixed assets that are used by Canllion Fleet Management
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary The assets have been recognised in the accounts of the Carillion Fleet Management Limited in
accordance with 'SSAP 21 Accounting for leases and hire purchase contracts’, together with corresponding habilities to the Company

The Company recognises these inter company debts within amounts owed by Group undertakings in note 4

Interest 15 charged on the above bank loans at floating rates inked to London Interbank Offered Rate

All bank loans and overdrafts are unsecured Net obligations due under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they reiate

The matunty profie of all borrowings is disclosed in note 13 on page 121
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Notes to the Company financial statements

continued

7 Share capital

2009 2008
fm £m
Authonised
700,000,000 (2008 525,000,000) ardinary shares of 50p each 3500 2625
The increase in the authonsed share capital was approved at the AGM on 6 May 2009
Issued and fully paid
2009 2008
Number Number
million £m miflion fm
At 1 January 3957 1978 2812 1406
New share capital issued 16 08 145 57 2
At 31 December 3973 198 6 3957 1978
8 Reserves
Profit
Share Merger and loss Other
premum reserve account reserve Total
Em £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 129 516 3 1504 32 682 8
Profit for the year - - 1675 - 1675
New share capital subscribed 39 - - - 39
Acquisition of own shares - - (42 - (4 2)
Share options exercised by employees - - 05 - 05
Equity settled transactions (net of deferred tax) - - 14 2.0 34
Dwidend paid to shareholders - - (53 4) - (53 4)
At 31 December 2009 168 516 3 262.2 52 8005

The profit and loss account reserve includes the reserve for the Company’s own shares which compnises of the cost of the Company's
shares held by the Carillion Employee Share Qwnership Plan (ESGP) The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded to
employees under the Group's share incentive schemes The movements in the reserve for own shares induded within the profit and loss
account reserve are as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January {13) ©7)
Share options exercised by employees (exercise price} 05 -
Share options exercised (transfer to retained earnings) 39 41

Acqusition of own shares @2 (4 7

At 31 December (11) 13

At 31 December 2009, the ESOP held 362,909 (2008 419,827) of the Company’s shares and had a market value of £1 1 miflion
(2008 £1 0 milien) During the year the Company acquired 14 million of its own shares for £4 2 millien to meet the plan's future
commitments The ESOP has elected to wawve all dvidends except for a total payment of 1 pence at the time each dnidend is paid

In addition to the ESOP, the Company has also established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust {QUEST") Dunng the year,
91,376 (2008 210,859) ordinary shares in the Company held by the QUEST were transferred to employees of the Group following
the exercise of options under the Sharesave Scheme

At 31 December 2009 the total number of shares held under the QUEST amounted to 134,683 (2008 8,904) and had a market value of
£409,167 (2008 £22,100) The QUEST has elected to waive all dividends tn excess of 0 01 pence per share
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9 Reconchation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit for the year 1675 625
New share capital issued 47 3865
Equity settled transactions (net of deferred tax) 34 31
Share options exercised by employees 05 -
Acquisihon of own shares (42 47
Dwidends paid to shareholders (53 49) {45 8)
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 1185 4016
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 8806 4790
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 9991 880 6
10 Other guarantees and contingent liabilities
2009 2008
£m fm
Guarantees in respect of borrowings of subsidianes, joint ventures and joint arrangements 890 323
Guarantees In respect of deferred equity payments in PPF joint ventures - 32
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in relation to deferred equity payments
in PPP joint ventures 524 774
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit 1ssued by banks in relation to performance contracts
in FPP joint ventures 300 300

The Company has issued performance guarantees in respect of its subsidiaires, joint ventures and joint arrangements in the
normal course of business

Guarantees and ¢ounter indernibes have been given to financial institutions in respect of the provision of performance and other
contract related bonds that are issued in the normal course of business

11 Pension arrangements

As the Caniflion Staff and ‘B* defined benefit schemes are run for the Canllion Group as a whole, the Company is unable to identify

its share of the schemes’ assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis Hence, as permitted by FRS 17, the schemes are
accounted for by the Company separately as if the schemes were defined contributton schemes Details of the Group's pension schemes
are disclosed 1n note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

12 Share-based payments

The Group has estabhshed a share option programme that entitles key management perscnnel and senior employees to shares in the
Company Detarls of the Group's share option programme are disclosed 1n note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
Remuneration Report on page 50
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Annual Report and Accounts 2009

SIUALLALEIS |BIIUBUI = S} UOIPDDS




Notes to the Company financial statements
continued

13 Financial instruments
Detalls of the Company’s principal financial instruments are discussed under accounting policies The numencal financial instrument
disclosures are set cut below

Denvative finanaal instruments

2009 2008

Assets Liabilitres Assats Liabilities

£m £m fm im

Forward foreign currency contracts 10 - 11 -

Effective interest rates
The Company's interest bearing borrowing were subject to effective interest rates at the balance sheet date as follows

2009 2008

Range (%) Range (%)

Bank overdrafts 150t05 20 300

Bank loans 080to312 265t0699

Finance lease obligations 4 00to6 54 400t06 54

Foreign currency exposure

The carrying amount of the Company’s borrowing dencminated in foreign currency 1s as follows

2009 2008

£m £m

United States of Amenica Dollars 156 176

Canadian Dollars 38S 367

United Arab Emirates Dirhams 76 85

Euro 05 14

622 64 2

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £62 2 milhion (2008 £64 2 million) the amount of borrowing used for hedging currency net
assets of overseas operations of the Group amounts of £61 € million (2008 £62 6 million) The foreign exchange gain of £1 0 million
(2008 loss £8 9 millien) on translation of the borrowing inte sterding has been recagnised in the profit and loss account

Fair values
Where there are differences between the carrying and farr values of the Company’s pnnapal financial instruments at 31 December 2009
these are shown below

2009 2008
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value valug Farr value
£m £m fm £m
Finance lease obligations (09) (0 8) {15) 14
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13 Financial instruments (continued)

Matunity of frnancial habilities
The ratunty profile of the contractual cash flows of the Company's non-current borrowing is as follows

Bank Bank Finance
overdrafts loans leases Total
31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m
Between one and two years - 21 02 23
Between two and three years - 1307 01 1308
Between three and four years - 04 - o4
Between four and five years - - - -
More than five years - - - -
More than one year - 1332 03 1335
Less than one year 1441 99 06 154 6
1441 1431 09 2881

Bank Bank Finance
ovardrafis loans leases Total
31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m
Between one and two years - 178 08 186
Between two and three years - 178 02 180
Between three and four years - 3684 - 3684
Between four and five years - - - -
More than five years - - - -
Mare than one year - 404 0 10 405 0
Less than one year 94 5 85 06 1036
945 4125 16 508 6

Borrowing facilities
The Company had the following undrawn committed borrowng facility available at the year end in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met

2009 2008

£m £m

Expining within one year 74 65
Expiring between two and five years 5110 2358
5184 242 3

14 Related party transactions
In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 8 ‘Related party transactions’ the Company has taken the exemption to not disclose
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the Canlien Group
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Shareholder information

Dividends

Dwidends are normally paid twice a year The proposed final
dividend n respect of the year to 31 December 2009 will be
payable on 18 June 2010 to those shareholders on the register
on 23 Apni 2010

A dwidend reinvestment plan {DRIP) will also be offered

For those shareholders who prefer not to participate in the DRIP,
arrangements can be made to pay your dividends automatically
into your bank or bullding society account This service has a
number of benefits

> there 1s no chance of the dividend cheque going missing in
the post,

> the dividend payment is received more guickly as the cash is
pard directly into your account on the payment date without
the need to wait for the cheque to clear, and

> you will help Canllion to improve its efficiency by reducing
printing and cheque cleanng costs

If you wish to reqgister for this service please call Equiniti on the
number detalled below to request a dividend mandate form

Results
Half year to 30 June 2010 announced 26 August 2010
Full year to 31 December 2010 announced March 2011

Shareholder Enquirtes

Equiniti maintain the share register of the Company If you have
any quenes concerning your shareholding, or If any of your details
change, please contact Equinit

Equiniti

The Causeway
Worthing
West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone
Textphone for shareholders
with heanng difficulties

0871 384 2522
0871 384 2255

Share Dealing Service

Carilion offers its UK shareholders, Shareview Dealing, a telephone
and internet share dealing service operated by Equiniti For
telephone purchases and sales call 0845 603 7037 between

8 30am and 4 30pm, Monday to Friday, or log on to www
shareview co uk/dealing For the sale of shares, you will need your
shareholder reference number as shown on your share certificate

Canlhan plc
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Multiple Accounts on the Shareholder Register

If you have received two or more sets of the documents
concerning the Annual General Meeting this means that there is
more than one account In your name on the shareholder register,
perhaps because erther your name or your address appear on each
account in a shghtly different way For secunty reasons, Equintt will
not amalgamate the accounts without your written consent, so if
you would like any multiple accounts combined Into one account,
please write to Equintt at the address given above

Shareview (Electronic Communicattons}

www shareview co Uk Is a service offered by Equiniti that enables
you to check your heldings in many UK companies and helps you
to organise your investments electronically You can also notify
Equinri of a change of address or a change to dividend mandate
Instructions You can register for this portfolio service which 1s easy
to use, secure and free as long as you have access to the internet
by logging on to www shareview co uk and following a simple
registration process

Electronic Proxy Appointments

For the AGM to be held on 5 May 2010, you may, if you wish,
register the appointment of a proxy electronically by logging on to
the website www sharevote co uk

You will need your voting reference numbers (the three 8-digit
numbers shown on your form of proxy) Alternatively, if you have
registered for a Shareview portfolio, log on te your portfolio at
www shareview co uk and click on “Company Meetings”

Please note that any electronic communication that is found o
contain a computer virus wilt not be accepted

ShareGift

ShareGift is a charity share donation scheme for shareholders,
administered by the Orr Mackintosh Foundation It 1s especially
for those who may wish to dispose of a small parcel of shares
whose value makes it uneconomic to sell on a commission basis
Further information can be obtained at www sharegift org or
from Equiniti
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Five Year Review

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Group Income statement £m £m £m £m fm
Total revenue 5.4265 52058 39517 35124 2,2491
Analysed between
Support services 2,3895 2,4635 1,793 6 1,458 7 9536
Public Private Partnership projects 2156 1784 1541 1480 654
Middle East construction services 5536 4642 3370 2687 1605
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 2,2678 2,0997 1,6670 16370 1,069 6
Underlying Group and Joint Ventures operating profit before
intangible amortisation, impairment of goodwill and other
investments, non-recurring operating items and jointly
controlled entities’ net financial (expense)/income and taxation 2173 1941 1201 974 553
Analysed between
Support services 177 1n3s 739 588 405
Public Private Partnership projects 322 298 254 265 83
Middle East construction services 470 345 254 139 42
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 309 287 160 185 127
Group eliminations and unallocated items (105) (12 4) {20 6} (20 3) (104
Share of jointly controlled entities’ net financial (expense)income (14 0) (182) (99 (8 0) 11
Share of jointly controlled entittes’ taxation (65) (107) (9 0) 817 (50)
Underlying profit from operations before intangible
amortisation, impairment of goodwill and other
investments and non-recurring operating items 196 8 165 2 101 2 813 514
Group net financial (expensel/income {14 6) 77 06 13 40
Underlying profit before tax 182 2 1575 1018 826 554
Intang:ble amortisation and impairment of goodwili
and other investrents (308) (54 5) (215) (172) 28
Non-recurning operating items (15 2) 227) (14 2) (22 6) -
Non-operating items 15 356 283 253 {0 8}
Profit before taxation 1477 1159 94 4 681 518
Taxation (115) {41 (8 3) (72) {11 1}
Profit from continuing operations 136 2 1118 861 609 407
Discontinued operations - - (76) {05) 01
Analysed between
Trading loss from discontinued cperations - - {14 {05 01
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - - 62) - -
Profit for the year 136 2 118 785 604 408
Group financial statistics
Underlying operating profit margin
Support services Percentage 49 46 41 40 42
Middle East construction services Percentage 85 74 75 52 26
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) Percentage 14 14 10 11 12
Underlying operating profit margin
Total Group before share of jointly controlled
entities’ net financial {expense)income and taxation Percentage 40 37 30 28 25
Underlying profit from operations margin
Total Group Percentage 36 32 26 23 23
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Group balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 168 2 167 2 1315 146 6 1009
Intangible assets 1,241 3 1,276 9 5558 5961 623
Investments 1771 2386 1859 178 8 627

1,586 6 1,6827 8732 9215 2259
Inventaories, receivables and payables (608 0} (490 4) {286 5} (282 O) (119 5)
Net retirement benefit hability {net of deferred tax) (2111) (76 2) (29 4) (84 8) (50 8)
Other net (labiliiesyassets (15 2} (21 8) (25 1} (22 O) 01
Net operating assets 7523 1,094 3 5322 5327 557
Net cash/borrowing) 249 {226 ) (44 9) (108 0) 908
Net assets 7772 8676 4873 4247 146 5
Group cash flow statement
Underlying Group operating profit 1309 1201 64 4 497 350
Depreciation and other non-cash items 388 192 159 185 144
Working capital 599 340 n7v 152 360
Dvidends received from joint ventures 386 250 237 157 84
Underlying cash flow from operations 268 2 198 3 1357 991 938
Deficit pension contributions (29 0) (530 5) 46 3 (31 8) {10 0}
Restructuring costs (a7 (32 4) 65 (18 2 -
Interest, tax and dividends (63 2) {62 2) (304) (257 (35 3)
Net caprtal expenditure {47 3) (26 4) 44 (28 2) (46 4)
Acquistions and disposals 1427 (227 0} 96 {190 9) (35 4)
Other (including discontinued operations) 27) 184 (3 4) (31) 47)
Change in net hquidity 2516 (181 8) 631 (198 8) (380)
Net (borrowing)/cash at 1 January (226 7} (44 9) (108 0) 90 8 128 8
Net cash/(borrowing) at 31 December 249 (226 7) 44 9) (108 0) S0 8
Group financial statistics
Earnings per share
Underlying earmings per share - continuing operations Pence 390 343 289 237 204
Underlying earnings per share — continuing and
discontinued operations Pence 390 343 262 235 204
Basic earnings per share - continuing and
disconttnued operations Pence 334 284 271 216 187
Dividends
Proposed full year dividend per share Pence 146 130 10 S0 80
Underiying proposed dividend cover — continuing operations Times 27 26 26 26 26
Basic proposed dividend cover — continuing and
discontinued operations Times 23 22 25 24 23

Prior year balance sheet information has been restated following the adoption of International Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee {|FRIC} 14 ‘The hmit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and thew interaction’ on 1 January 2009
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